% e
W MASON GROUP HOL DIENGSHRENMISHED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability 7&K Z BRAF)
Stock Code B&A5E :

3

273

i A R 2 )

21 ANNUAL

REPORT
FE®RS



22

26

41

67

101

110

112

115

117

120

280

ONTENTS B 8%

Corporate Information

Deputy Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographies of Directors

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of Financial Information

BB WEAN

BEEMEE

FAaRERER
BTSRRI AT
MBEEMEE



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER
DIRECTORS EE
Executive Directors HITESE

Ms. Han Ruixia (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi

BB XL (B7TBAE#H)
SRIRFE LA

Non-executive Director FEITES

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol B¢ S

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Mr. Tian Ren Can RICEEE

Mr. Wang Cong FHASEA

Mr. Wu Xu'an RNMLEE

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RF#EAE

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREEE

Mr. Wu Xu'an (chairman) RNREE (FE)

Mr. Tian Ren Can R %EE

Mr. Wang Cong FHa%k4E

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RF#EAE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEESE

Mr. Wang Cong (chairman) FRELE(ERE)

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol B¢ S

Mr. Tian Ren Can RICBEE

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RF#EAE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEE

Mr. Wang Cong (chairman) FRELE(ERE)

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol B¢ S

Mr. Tian Ren Can RICBEE

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RF#EAE

COMPANY SECRETARY ARAWE

Mr. Zhang Zhenyi (appointed with effect from 25 March 2021) RIEERGE (N E-—F=A-+HBEZT)
Ms. Dong Jiayin (resigned with effect from 25 March 2021) BEEELT(R-E-—F=A=-+HBET)
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERK

Ms. Han Ruixia (appointed with effect from 25 March 2021) BIRELT (RS -_—F=-A_+HBAEZEF)
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi RiRE A

Ms. Dong Jiayin (resigned with effect from 25 March 2021) EERAT(RZT—F=A-ZTHBET

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021



CORPORATE INFORMATION
QXAEHR

AUDITOR
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

REGISTERED AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE
Portion 1, 12/F, The Center,

99 Queen’s Road Central,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited, Hong Kong Branch
Dah Sing Bank Limited

China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Transfer Office

Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East Hong Kong

Investor Centre
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.masonhk.com

B ED

BRI ERREMEEMAERDA]

HEEF AT

THREEEREE
&

ERKEFIHR
RIRABOIBIE

TEERBRIT

B LSELRTARA A
ERIR(T(FE) BRAH
EERITERA R
RBIBITRABRAE - BEDT
RIBITERA
hERERITRHERA

ROEMRBFE
BEERRELELERA A
BEE
BAEZRERNBERI83HR

A M7
1712171688 48

REZRFEH D
BB 2R RERI83R
AR LT7MEE

MAut

http://www.masonhk.com

EREEZERERAT / 2021FERE

38



4

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

RIITHRARKS

On behalf of the management of Mason Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present to shareholders the consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”) and
prospects of the Group's business in the future.

The year 2021 witnessed profound changes in global economic
and political landscape. Amidst the significant changes, the
Group's management unswervingly implemented our management
and governance policy, and spared no effort in reshaping our
corporate culture, enhancing internal collaboration and focusing
on sustainable businesses. We actively responded to challenges by
leveraging on various measures, such as reducing operating costs,
business restructuring and disposing of non-core assets, with a
view to improving the operation and management efficiency of the
Company.

1) Amid increasingly intensive competition and more challenging
macro environment, the Group has further adopted
revenue-raising and expenditure-cutting measures during
the Year and delivered remarkable achievements in reducing
operating costs. Benefiting from the notable enhancement
in operating efficiency achieved through measures such as
optimizing the staffing structure, reducing non-essential daily
expenses and specifying management of various expenses,
the Group’s employee welfare costs and operating expenses
in 2021 further decreased by approximately 27% over last
year, and significantly decreased by approximately 63% and
68% as compared with 2019 and 2018, respectively.

2)  The financial segment of the Group has delivered steady
performance while making progress in an orderly manner
in various aspects during the Year. Most of the financial
platforms that the Group intensively acquired with significant
investment between 2016 and 2019 performed below
expectation after acquisition. Therefore, the Group was more
cautious in dealing with the needs of capital contribution
of each platform in 2021. Instead, the Group focused on
expanding output and increasing efficiency by utilizing
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
BITHARRE

existing investments. Despite of the challenges in the
business market, the Group's two major financial platforms,
Mason Securities and HFG Group, delivered remarkable
performance during the Year again, with significant growth in
operating profits of approximately 36% and 60% respectively
as compared to those of the correspinding period of last year.
Shengang Securities Company Limited, the first domestic
fully-licensed joint venture which is engaged in securities
business founded by the Group in accordance with the
Investment Agreement under the Mainland and Hong Kong
Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), was on
a steady upswing in results and performance. Exceptional
operating results and financial performance in the year 2021
laid a solid foundation for our listing on the A share market.
The European private banking business acquired by the
Group in 2018 has recorded losses in successive years after
acquisition, and the losses have been growing due to the
stubbornly high operating costs. At that time, it would be
difficult to reverse the business weakness without increasing
investment, while further investment would bring greater
investment risks to the Group. In view of this, the Group has
decisively carried out voluntary liquidation in order to avoid
heavy burden arising from mounting losses. On the other
hand, the size of financing services provided by the Group
through its lending licenses has been further reduced. During
the Year, the Group focused on recovering and resolving
the risks of previous loans, granted no new loan, and made
great achievements in loan recovery by means of debt
restructuring and through legal procedures. Except for two
loans, the rest have been repaid in strict compliance with
the agreed plan, and the relevant loan exposure has been
decreased continuously. In the future, based in Hong Kong,
the international financial center, the Group will be committed
to providing better securities, insurance brokerage and wealth
management services to customers around the globe.

In respect of healthcare services, as the Group maintained
its disposal strategy in the previous year, it successfully
completed the disposal of its assisted reproduction business
in Hong Kong during the Year, following the disposal of its
assisted reproduction business in Australia in the previous
year. The disposal has significantly increased the cash reserve
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
BITHARRE

of the Group. From 2016 to 2019, the Group made intensive
acquisitions and investment in several healthcare segments.
After prudent review and investigation, it was found that
there were various high risks. To safeguard the interests of
the Group's investment and the general shareholders, various
appropriate actions were gradually initiated. In addition,
upholding a more prudent and responsible approach for the
benefit of investors, the Group also made another one-off
impairment loss on its interests in the associates in the
healthcare segment.

In terms of the mother-infant-child consumer segment,
AYD Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“AYD Group”), a
mother-infant-child retailer acquired by the Group previously,
and Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd (“B&P”), an Australian infant
formula manufacturer, have both experienced a decline
in turnover and profitability in recent years. Following the
Group's loss of control of AYD Group in 2019, the operations
of AYD Group have been deteriorating and encountered
greater financial difficulties and crises during the Year.
The Group is seeking professional advice to obtain a valid
assessment of the investment risks posed to the Group by
AYD Group. Given the deteriorating performance of AYD
Group after the Group’s loss of control of the company, an
one-off impairment loss was made to the equity interests
in the company during the Year, and a provision was also
made for the Group's current accounts with the company.
Benefiting from the operational management and control
as a result of the Group’s controlling stake in the company,
B&P successfully resolved the operational and financial risks
during the Year brought about by the stagnation of Sino-
Australian relations and increasing global trade barriers.
During the Year, B&P was basically self-financed and did
not require any additional financial support from the Group.
Looking ahead into 2022, the Group will continue to embark
on various effective initiatives with the aim of improving
B&P’s operating revenue and operating profit margin, which
are expected to contribute to the Group’s revenue and profit
gradually.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

BITHRARKS

5)  On the basis of sufficient cash reserve. while obtaining certain
capital gains through risk-free products such as certificates of
deposit and fixed deposits, the Group also maintained its high
liquidity allocation strategy in the previous year and made
corresponding adjustments in response to market changes
on that basis. Through a diversified portfolio consisting of
Hong Kong shares, U.S. shares and A shares, the Group has
made its best efforts in reducing the concentration risk of
its investments. Currently, the global landscape and global
market is experiencing significant changes unprecedented
in a couple of years. In particular, heightened uncertainties
of the international economy due to prolonged COVID-19
pandemic, adverse geopolitical environment, continuous
policy adjustments, and the gradual tapering and rate hike
cycles of central banks in various countries, have increased
the volatility of financial markets. Such macro and micro
factors have further increased the uncertainty in business
and investment. In view of this, the Group will adopt a
more prudent investment approach in 2022, preserving
cash reserve so that it can make decisive moves when the
direction is clear. These initiatives are intended to focus on
sustainable business development to survive and continue to
grow in a challenging market environment.

Looking ahead into 2022, the Group will continue to focus on
the development of the financial services segment and seize the
opportunity of post-pandemic economic recovery. The Group
will explore new market opportunities in the financial services
segment, including securities, asset management and insurance
brokerage, by integrating resources, embracing changes and
proactively undertaking service innovation and product innovation
to achieve better returns on equity for our shareholders. Despite
the uncertainties and fierce competition in the market environment,
by leveraging on the Group's sufficient cash reserve, united and
aggressive corporate culture and various optimized management
measures adopted by the management, we are confident to
achieve better performance in 2022.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

RIITHRARKS

Finally, on behalf of the Board and the management, | would like
to thank our shareholders, business partners and staff for their
support and contribution.

Han Ruixia
Mason Group Holdings Limited
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MEEJEHTHE& *ﬁ'

OVERVIEW

As a Hong Kong based company, the Company principally provides
comprehensive financial services in Mainland China, Japan, South
Korea and Europe, with businesses covering private banking, wealth
and asset management, securities and futures brokerage, securities
margin financing, corporate finance advisory services, investment
in securities trading and money lending. As an investment holding
company, in addition to directly investing in the healthcare sector
and mother-infant-child consumer products sector, the Group
also takes trading of securities as a principal business and invests
conservatively in local and global stocks.

RESULTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year"), the Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$4,012.51 million (2020:
HK$1,274.36 million) and operating income of approximately
HK$604.43 million (2020: HK$528.96 million). The increase in
turnover and operating income for the Year was mainly due to
the increased turnover and operating income generated from
wealth and asset management, financial brokerage, and trading of
securities investments.

During the Year, loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
was approximately HK$733.62 million (2020: loss attributable to
equity holders of HK$140.71 million), and basic and diluted loss
per share were 1.65 Hong Kong cents (2020: loss per share of 0.32
Hong Kong cents). The increase in loss for the Year was mainly
due to impairment loss on financial assets for expected credit loss
of HK$205.52 million (2020: HK$67.17 million), impairment l0ss on
property, plant and equipment of HK$77.52 million (2020: nil), and
impairment loss on investment in associates of HK$194.51 million
(2020: HK$191.35 million). The Company engaged an independent
professional valuer, Avista Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”)
to perform the valuation for each business segments as at 31
December 2021 under the requirements of HKFRS.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

As the global economy continues to sink into contraction in light
of the impact of novel coronavirus, Hong Kong, an open economy
highly dependent on the service sector, suffered a heavy economic
blow. Under the triple negative factors of Sino-US trade frictions,
global economic slowdown, and local social incidents, Hong
Kong's economy was further impaired by the implementation of
rapidly evolving social distancing and quarantine measures. These
measures have been very testing on the Group’s business model
in respect of each of its core business, where the Group's financial
services and healthcare businesses do, in particular, require
face-to-face contacts with customers. Previous border crossing by
personnel of the Group’s business units, which are based outside
Hong Kong, also became further challenged and frustrated.

Despite Hong Kong's slight pandemic alleviation during the latter
part of the Year alongside slight global economic revival, business
units of the Group still faced huge economic battles during
the Year. Against the backdrop of huge U.S. monetary policy
uncertainties, Mainland China’s regulatory tightening and the
coronavirus supply chain disruption, the Hong Kong local stock
market corrected sharply in the second half of the Year, with the
Hang Seng Index suffering a sharp decrease from approximately
29,100 points in June 2021 to approximately 23,500 points in
December 2021.

The above said, the Group demonstrated resilience by operating
costs reduction, achieved through effective group restructuring,
and its further development of its financial services and
investments. In particular, the Group’s brokerage business and
securities trading grew, which resulted in considerable income
recorded during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MEEJEHTHE& *ﬁ'

Financial Services — Provision of wealth and
asset management, financial brokerage and
related services

The Group’s financial services business segment primarily
focused on wealth management platform consisting of securities
and futures brokerages, private banking, fixed income sales
and distribution, discretionary account and asset management,
insurance brokerage services, securities margin financing, leverage
financing solutions and provision of corporate finance advisory and
related services.

The total operating income contributed by this business segment
during the Year was approximately HK$339.48 million (2020:
HK$277.51 million) and the loss was approximately HK$92.10 million
(2020: HK$135.96 million). The loss was reduced by approximately
32.26% due to the Group’s continuous cost management efforts
and the absence of impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$22.81 million in last year. Despite the ever-increasing
competition among financial institutions in the market, the two
major financial services platforms of the Group, Mason Securities
Limited ("MSL") and Harris Fraser Group Limited (“HFG"), achieved
promising results during the Year. Both MSL and HFG operating
profits recorded considerable growth over the same period last
year, increasing by approximately 36% and 60% respectively.

Voluntary Liquidation of MPL

During the Year, Mason Strategic Investment Company Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which wholly
owns Mason Privatbank Liechtenstein AG (“MPL"), resolved the
voluntary liquidation of MPL, with the process and procedure for
such voluntary liquidation commenced in March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

MPL has become loss making since the financial year of 2019,
given the macro-environment of the European banking industry
became more challenging with tightened local regulations and the
continuous negative interest policy. The severe situation of MPL
was exacerbated by the declining global economy, which was
further dampened by the impact of the COVID-19, as was globally
felt since 2020. Given MPL has continuously sustained losses since
2019, with no reasonable means or prospect of improvement for
the foreseeable future, on 12 March 2021, the Group considered
the continuing holding of MPL being disadvantageous to the
Group and therefore resolved for the voluntary liquidation of
MPL. Especially given the Group is of view that MPL is likely to
remain unable to generate sufficient revenue to cover its own
operating expenses and liabilities, MPL's voluntary liquidation
would enable the Group to release the financial burden resulting
from its holding of MPL. With reference to MPL's voluntary
liguidation, PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH and Walpart Trust
Registered are appointed as liquidators, where for further details
of the subject voluntary liquidation, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 12 March 2021 and 26 May 2021. The
liguidation and management’s assessment on the financial impact
to the Group were still in progress as at the date of this report.

Financial Services — Provision of financing
services

During the Year, the Group’s provision of financing service,
mainly including leverage and acquisition financing activities and
mortgage loan securitisation business in Hong Kong, contributed
a total operating income of approximately HK$24.96 million (2020:
HK$45.14 million) and net loss of approximately HK$4.94 million
(2020: HK$25.08 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MEEJEHTHE& *ﬁ'

The decrease in operating income attributable to this segment
was aligned with a more conservative credit strategy imposed
by the Group since late 2019. After comprehensive and diligent
evaluation, the overall loan portfolio was reduced, with effective
actions taken to accelerate the recovery of outstanding loans. With
the implementation of these efforts, credit ratios and collaterals
quality in the overall loan portfolio have notably improved. With
the Group's focus geared towards a more granular risk appetite, its
active portfolio management actions involved all credit proposals
being subject to robust credit risk assessments. Regular credit
monitoring and the credit mitigation through enhancement of
collaterals are also part of the controlling tools in the Group's
credit risk management life cycle. For the Year, the total size
of the Group’s loan portfolio of mortgage and loan business
was approximately HK$351.27 million (2020: HK$413.76 million),
with credit impairment of approximately HK$16.53 million (2020:
HK$50.78 million).

Financial Services — Trading of securities
investments

The listed securities held by the Group, for the purpose of
proprietary investment, are mainly listed on the Australian,
Mainland China, Hong Kong, and United States stock markets.
The Group focused its investment, including but not limited to
securities trading and funds investment, in specialised sectors, with
investments conducted with a cautious attitude and under strict
discipline. During the Year, with the Hang Seng Index suffering a
sharp decrease from approximately 29,100 points in June 2021
to approximately 23,500 points in December 2021, the Group's
proprietary trading of securities recorded a loss of approximately
HK$93.47 million (2020: profit of HK$73.43 million).

Healthcare service — Provision of medical and
laboratory services

The Group's healthcare business comprises of the provision of
assisted reproductive services, genetic diagnostic and counselling
services, and health check services. During the Year, the results
of the Group’s healthcare business are entirely contributed by
associated companies of the Group, The Women's Clinic Group
Limited and its subsidiaries (“TWCGL") and Pangenia Inc and its
subsidiaries (“Pangenia”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 in 2021, social distancing
measures, inclusive of travel restrictions and quarantine
arrangements, directly reduced the number of customers from
Mainland China and overseas who patronise the Group’s the
healthcare services. The operating income of the segment
significantly decreased in 2021 as the Group no longer consolidates
TWCGL's result as a subsidiary upon the disposal in February
2021. As a result, the loss of approximately HK$23.18 million was
recorded in the healthcare segment during the Year (2020: loss of
HK$157.82 million) and impairment of HK$17.20 million resulted
from the deterioration of the business prospect of Pangenia.

In February 2021, the Group realised its investment in the assisted
reproductive services business in Hong Kong through the disposal
of Mason Reproductive Technology Limited at a cash consideration
of HK$268 million. The Group’s exit from the assisted reproductive
services business has allowed the Group to focus on other core
businesses.

Mother-infant-child consumer products — infant
formula manufacturing and sales

This business segment mainly includes AYD Group Limited and its
subsidiaries (“AYD Group”) which operates the franchise operating
and managed retail stores of mother-infant-child products in
Mainland China, as well as Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd ("B&P"), the
Australia-based manufacturer of infant formula and nutritional
products.

During the Year, this business segment contributed an operating
income of approximately HK$182.87 million (2020: HK$161.79
million) and a loss of approximately HK$433.97 million (2020: profit
of HK$24.55 million). The significant increase in loss was due to
an increase in impairment loss on financial assets for expected
credit loss of HK$188.79 million (2020: HK$0.06 million) and the
impairment loss on interests in associates of HK$177.31 million
(2020: HK$Nil) resulted from deterioration of the business prospect
of AYD Group.
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Investment holding

The investment holding business segment mainly holds the
investments in private equity and funds, for earning dividend
and investment income and capital appreciation purpose. As
at 31 December 2021, the segment assets of this segment was
approximately HK$1,495.06 million (2020: HK$1,554.92 million), of
which HK$942.98 million (2020: HK$1,026.88 million) represents
investment in a private equity, and HK$16.24 million (2020:
HK$95.02 million) represents investments in funds. During the Year,
segment income of approximately HK$0.05 million (2020: HK$15.68
million) and segment loss of approximately HK$101.35 million (2020:
profit of HK$68.29 million) generated from fund investments were
recorded.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total assets amounted to
approximately HK$4,806.75 million (31 December 2020: HK$6,926.06
million), among which 36.15% (2020: 29.49%) was bank deposits
and cash of approximately HK$1,737.45 million (31 December 2020:
HK$2,042.43 million). The bank deposits and cash comprised fixed
deposits of approximately HK$551.46 million (31 December 2020:
HK$1,194.30 million) in aggregate.

As at 31 December 2021, the net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,725.12 million (2020:
approximately HK$2,288.89 million), which included bank deposits
and cash of approximately HK$1,737.45 million (2020: approximately
HK$2,042.43 million). The current ratio, expressed as current assets
over current liabilities, was approximately 9.68 (2020: approximately
2.56).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group does not have any
interest-bearing borrowings and therefore the gearing ratio is not
applicable to the Group for both years.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company’s total amount of
issued and fully paid share capital is HK$6,142.96 million and the
total number of issued shares with no par value is 44,364,885,557
shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total equity amounted to
approximately HK$4,414.18 million (2020: HK$5,400.88 million),
taking into account of non-controlling interest of approximately
HK$49.39 million (31 December 2020: HK$211.32 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's the total debt to equity ratio
was 0.04, being the Group’s repurchase agreements divided by the
total equity. The total debt to equity ratio is no longer applicable to
the Group as at 31 December 2021, as the repurchase agreements
were fully settled during the Year.

After taking into account the capital structure and liquidity
analysis of the Group during the reporting period, as well as the
estimated cash flows generated from the Group’s operations, the
management of the Group is satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient working capital in the future to sustain the development
of our current continuing operations and focus on the major
advantageous businesses.

Treasury Policies

Having considered the Group’s current cash and cash equivalents,
bank and other borrowings and banking facilities, the management
believes that the Group’s financial resources are sufficient
for its day-to-day operations. The Group did not use financial
instruments for financial hedging purposes during the Year. The
Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Australia dollars, Swiss Franc, Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. Fluctuations in foreign currency may have an
impact on the Group’s results and net asset value as the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group's treasury policy is to manage its foreign
currency exposure only when its potential financial impact is
material to the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS

With Mainland China’s great success in the coronavirus control, as
augmented with well-implemented vaccination programs across
key markets, there were good windows of asset reallocation to
capture market opportunities in key equity markets, fixed income,
and credit markets. The continuous facilitation of cross-market
wealth management for investors in Hong Kong and the Greater
Bay Area is expected to bring new innovation and market opening
for inbound and outbound flows of wealth management business.
Therefore, the Group is expected to capture these new market
opportunities for its clients via various wealth management
platforms.

Despite the widespread of the highly transmissible Omicron
coronavirus variant across the globe during the fourth quarter of
the Year, the Group believes that the global economy will recover
and is therefore cautiously optimistic for the year 2022 ahead. The
Group considers it an opportunity to, within the year 2022, expand
its competitive financial strength to establish a stronger presence
in the Hong Kong financial industry by increasing new market
share within the securities margin financing business as well as
expanding opportunities in Southbound Trading and Northbound
Trading.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total capital commitment
of approximately HK$56.65 million (2020: HK$66.96 million),
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group previously entered into agreements to provide certain
parent guarantees for bank loan facilities granted to AYD Group
for its working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2021,
the maximum aggregate amount of the guarantees was RVMB7.43
million (approximately HK$9.09 million) (2020: RMB13.50 million,
approximately HK$16.05 million) which were fully utilised. A
guarantee fee will be charged at 1.5% per annum of the drawdown
amount.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group does not have any
pledged assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND/OR DISPOSALS

On 26 February 2021, Mason Healthcare Group Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tongsheng
International Enterprise Limited entered into the share purchase
agreement, pursuant to which MHGL agreed to sell to Tongsheng,
and Tongsheng agreed to acquire from MHGL, 648,538 issued
shares in Mason Reproductive Technology Limited at the
consideration of HK$268 million in cash. Completion had taken
place on the date of the share purchase agreement. For the details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26
February 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not undertake any material
acquisitions or disposals during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group remains cautious about the trading performance of its
portfolio of securities. With volatile global financial markets during
the Year, the Group proactively grasp investment opportunities
and made stock investments to capture trading profits. A net
fair value loss recognised for the Group's trading of securities
investments amounted to approximately HK$119.90 million (2020:
gain of HK$92.31 million) during the Year. The Group held a few
listed investments with market value over HK$50.00 million as at 31
December 2021 as set out below:
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List of significant stocks in terms of market value R=-T=-—-+-A=+-—HBHHES

as at 31 December 2021 THEERRESIX
Percentage
to total
Number of Proportion of assets value
Name of stock shares held shares held Investment Market value of the Group
listed on Stock Brief asat asat cost as at asat as at
Exchange/overseas description 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
stock exchange of the business 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
R=B=-%
RERF/ R=%=-% R=B=-F  HZB=-f% RZ%--% +ZR=+1-A
BARERAM tZA=t-B +ZA=t-B +ZR=t+-B +ZR=t-H HAREEE
Il GER E3 ) FsRf®e  FrsnRGLA NRERE W BENED
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THR
Analogue Holdings Limited 1977 Provision of electrical and 37,946,000 271% 50,908 67,544 141%
mechanical engineering building
Services
RETREEARAA REASTRRTRE
Tencent Holdings Limited 700 Provision of value-added services, 237,300 0.002% 131,350 108,627 2.26%

FinTech and business services
and online advertising services

BARRARAR RIUEERE  2RBER
EBRBERBEEERY
Xtep Intemational Holdings 1368 Design, development, 3,934,500 0.15% 33,053 51,149 1.06%
Limited manufacturing, sales, marketing
and brand management of
sports products
REARERERAT BERGMRT W2

BE 2HELmiER
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BE_ZF_—-F1+-A=1t—-HLHFE
EEZRENKE (FR)

Significant stock gain/(loss) for the year ended 31
December 2021

Name of stock
listed on Stock

Exchange/overseas Stock

stock exchange

RERF/
BHEHR G
i) T

code

%)
4

Brief
description
of the business

ES 3 MY

Realised
gains/(losses)
for the

year ended

31 December
2021
BE-Z=--%
T=ZA=t-H
LEENESR
6 YA i)
HK$'000
TER

Unrealised
gains/(losses)
for the

year ended
31 December
2021
BZE-_5_-%
r=EEr=E
LEEHRER
i/ (&8)
HK$'000
TER

Dividend
received

for the

year ended
31 December
2021
E-—F
=t+-H
LEE
B WERE
HK$'000
TER

8z
T=

A

Analogue Holdings 1977 Provision of electrical and 2,524 21,720 4,487
Limited mechanical engineering
building services

STEEBERAA RUBRETREETRE
Tencent Holdings 700 Provision of value-added services, (1,792) (23,076) 254
Limited FinTech and business services

and online advertising services

BAERERA R RUEERS  2RBER
EBRRERPEESRS
Xtep International 1368 Design, development, 9,010 18,096 646
Holdings Limited manufacturing, sales, marketing

and brand management of

sports products
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, as at 31 December 2021, the
Group did not have any immediate plan for material investments or
acquisition of material capital assets.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 121 employees
globally (31 December 2020: 153), including 115 full-time and 6
part-time employees. The decrease in the number of employees
was mainly due to company restructuring. Staff costs of the
Group were approximately HK$72.74 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$145.79 million). The remuneration
policy and package of the Group’s employees are structured in
accordance to market terms and statutory requirements where
appropriate. The Group also provides other staff benefits such as
discretionary bonus, medical insurance and mandatory provident
fund.

EVENT AFTER THE YEAR
No important event that affects the Group has taken place since 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types of
risk within the organisation and the external environment with
active management participation and effective internal control
procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
ESEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Han Ruixia, aged 37, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since 16 April 2020. Ms. Han is also the
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group, chairman of the
management committee of the Group and a director of certain
subsidiaries and associates of the Company. Ms. Han has over
12 years' experiences in the field of finance, fund management
and risk management. Ms. Han is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Gold International Resources Corp.
Ltd. (@ company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2099). She was the head of operations and risk of MEC
Advisory Limited, which is the sole investment advisor to Can-
China Global Resource Fund. Ms. Han's role covered investment,
accounting, finance treasury and investor relationships related
matters. Prior to joining MEC Advisory Limited in 2014, Ms. Han was
an investment manager at The Export-Import Bank of China (China
EXIM Bank). Ms. Han has obtained her PhD of Economics (Finance),
Master degree in Applied Economics (Venture Capital) and Bachelor
of Economics (Finance) from Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang Zhenyi, aged 41, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since 21 April 2020. Mr. Zhang is also
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group, company secretary of
the Company, member of the management committee of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries and associates of the
Company. Mr. Zhang has over 18 years' experience in financial, risk
and investment management. From January 2018 to February 2020,
he was an executive director, chief financial officer, authorised
representative and authorised person of Wan Kei Group Holdings
Limited ("Wan Kei Group”) (a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1718), and has been re-designated
to a non-executive director of Wan Kei Group since March 2020.
Mr. Zhang also acts as an independent non-executive director of
Jiangsu Protruly Vision Technology Group Company Limited (;T
HmERTEREREEERMD AR A R) (@ company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600074) and subsequently
delisted in June 2020) since July 2018 and an independent
non-executive director of Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 643) since March 2017. Mr. Zhang currently serves as an
corporate instructor of MPAcc at Harbin Institute of Technology,
a practical instructor of postgraduate students of accounting and
auditing at Jinan University and a students mentor of postgraduate
students of University of Science and Technology Beijing. Mr. Zhang
obtained a master degree of business management” (T 75 & 1%
B+ 247)from the University of Science and Technology Beijing
in 2011. He holds gualifications as a Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Senior Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Zhang is
also an International Affiliate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and CPA Australia, respectively and
holds the certificate of independent director of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol, aged 46, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company, a member of each of
the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company since 5 October 2016. Ms. Hui has more than
22 years' experience in property development, and more than
15 years' experience in management and strategic planning
of listed companies. Ms. Hui is currently the vice chairman of
Shanghai Shimao Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600823), and the vice chairman and
president of Shimao International Holdings Limited. Ms. Hui is
also the sole director of Future Achiever Limited (“FAL") and the
daughter of Mr. Hui Wing Mau, the beneficial owner of FAL which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Ms. Hui obtained
a Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce majoring in Accounting from
Macquarie University in Australia in 1997. She is also a Certified
Practising Accountant in Australia. Ms. Hui is currently a member
of Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a council member of Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association and a member of the Youth
Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Ren Can, aged 60, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, a member
of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company since 26 April 2016.
Mr. Tian has more than 23 years of working experience in the field
of finance and investment. Mr. Tian is currently the chief executive
officer of UBP Investments Management (Shanghai) Limited. Before
that, Mr. Tian worked for multi-national financial institutes. Mr. Tian
obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration awarded
jointly by Manchester Business School and University of Wales
of the United Kingdom. He obtained a Master Degree in Political
Sciences International Relations from Shanghai International Studies
University. Mr. Tian graduated from Shanghai Foreign Languages
Institute with a Bachelor Degree in French Language and French
Literature.
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Mr. Wang Cong, aged 31, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, a member of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 1 December 2018. He was
appointed as chairman of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company on 1 December 2019 and
13 January 2020 respectively. Mr. Wang graduated from National
University of Singapore with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering
Science in 2013. He obtained his Master Degree and Ph.D. degree
in Aeronautics from California Institute of Technology in 2014
and 2019. He is a co-inventor of one formal patent and two
patents under application* filed with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office, including medical device and fluid dynamic.

*Notes:

(1)  US Patent 10,787,231 "System, Methods, and Apparatuses for
Reducing Hydrodynamic Frictional Drag”

(2)  Patent application no. 14/947767 filed on 20 November, 2015 “Micro-
Needle Drug Delivery Systems”

3 Patent application no. 15/411544 filed on 20 January, 2017 “Vertical
Carbon Nanotube and Lithium lon Battery Chemistries, Articles,
Architectures and Manufacture”

Mr. Wu Xu'an, aged 42, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and chairman of the audit
committee of the Company since 12 March 2020. Mr. Wu has over
18 years of solid experiences in tax issues, auditing, accounting
and business management. Mr. Wu is currently the Tax Partner
of Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited and the executive director of
Huarong Hongyi Management Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited®.
He is primarily responsible for providing consultancy services on
tax and audit issues to the listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu
graduated from Guangdong Polytechnic Normal University with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 2004 and obtained his
master’'s degree in software engineering from Xiamen University
in 2016. Mr. Wu is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr. Ng Yu Yuet, aged 49, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 16 April 2020. Mr. Ng has more
than 27 years' experience in auditing, accounting and finance
He is currently running a professional accounting firm with other
partners in Hong Kong. He has also worked for a number of
local and international accounting firms in Hong Kong and listed
companies on the Stock Exchange, between the years of 1993 to
2009. Mr. Ng obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong (now known as Hong Kong
Metropolitan University) in 2004 and is a member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

# for identification purposes only
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The board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) presents
their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “"Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As a Hong Kong based company, the Group principally provides
comprehensive financial services in Mainland China, Japan, South
Korea and Europe, with businesses covering private banking, wealth
and asset management, securities and futures brokerage, securities
margin financing, corporate finance advisory services, investment
in securities trading and money lending. As an investment holding
company, in addition to directly investing in the healthcare sector
and mother-infant-child consumer products sector, the Group
also takes trading of securities as a principal business and invests
conservatively in local and global stocks.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review with financial key performance indicators
analysis and future development in the Group’s business can
be found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
of this annual report while details of the principal activities and
other particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and
discussion on the environmental policies and performance were set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section
of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 110
to 111. The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the Year (2020: nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the notes 34 and 49 to the consolidated
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 115 to 116 of the consolidated financial statements.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to HK$5,000 (2020: HK$30,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 280.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The Group does not have any pledged assets as at 31 December
2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in notes 33 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 22 May 2012 (the “Adoption Date") which will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date to
give the participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options to
participants including all directors and employees of the Group
and any other persons including consultants, advisors, agents,
customers, suppliers, service provider, contractor, business partner
or connected person of the Group or its associates to subscribe for
shares in the Company.
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The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at any point in time, without prior
approval from the shareholders of the Company. The limit may be
refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has
been obtained in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”). A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by
the Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of the grant of the options; (i) the average
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.
Details of share option scheme of the Group are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OF SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Han Ruixia
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi

Non-executive Director
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong

Mr. Wu Xu'an

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

Pursuant to Article 115 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Han
Ruixia, Mr. Wu Xu'an and Mr. Ng Yu Yuet will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and
re- election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. The Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non- executive directors an annual confirmation of the
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES MEBARES
The names of Directors who have served on the Boards of the HE-ZT-—F+-A=+—BILFE BARQ
Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021 FIMBATEEFSMGHEEFLEEHIIWT -

30

are set out below:

Attrux Clare Attrux Clare
Chan Kit Wai PRGE(E
Chan Siu Lui BN
Cheong Kwee Heng & &
Chow Wai Man Ronny BAEER
Dong Jiayin EER
Doo Alexander Kenneth B2 gE
Fok Kenny Tsz Chun EFE
Geng Xiaohui Bk Bz RE
Grant Andrew James Grant Andrew James
Han Ruixia FRinE

Ho Chan Yuk Lin Anita frIPR E 3
Ho Wing Chiu, Clement Al K 8
Hung Wai Choi Leo HER

lun Sio Hong B Jk it

Jiang Eric Hua Jian
Kwok Wang Hei

Jiang Eric Hua Jian

BEE

Lam Po Mui BB

Lam Ching Shuen Lam Ching Shuen
Lam Sze Wai Derek HEE

Lam Wai Hung MR

Lau Cheuk Hang =1

Lau Kin Yip B

Lau Tuen Mui 2inte
Leong Milton Ka Hong RHEE

Li Haifeng 251

Lin John Sian-zu AR

Lui Choi Yiu, Angela BRIk
Meng Zhaoyi wBE
Moritz Blasy Moritz Blasy
Ng Yuen Yee R,
Phey Serene Sai Lin Phey Serene Sai Lin
Ting Sai Man THR

Tse Kin Wai 2B

Tsui Yee Ni IRIEIR
Wang Xiaobo Wwang Xiaobo
Wong Chi Kit Nelson E=LS
wong Hoi Ki m=aE
Wwong Shun Yun TR
wong Yui Ho FE
Yang Tao 5

Yeung Tsang Keung 158594
Zhang Zhenyi SRR
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, no interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) were held by the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or have been entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Appendix 10 (the “Model Code”) of
the Listing Rules.

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following interests and short positions
of 5% or more of the issued share capital and underlying shares
of the Company (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) were recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions

Nature of interest
ERME

Hui Wing Mau Interest of controlled corporation
FTERIX SRS EE R

Chen Sung-Tse
PR AL 2

Interest of controlled corporation
REHEE R
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i)

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
shares held shareholding
FiEEEREAE REBNBT DL
7,656,916,000 17.26%

(Note f#15#1)
3,976,495,616 8.96%

(Note f#15#2)
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Notes:

1. These shares are held by Future Achiever Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Hui Wing Mau.

2. These shares are held by Investment Talent Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Sung-Tse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
in Hong Kong to all staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income. Details of the retirement
scheme are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

the largest supplier 82%
the five largest suppliers in aggregate 96%
Sales

the largest customer 27%
the five largest customers in aggregate 65%

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a Director,
an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of the Company has respectively entered into a service
contract/letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 3
years unless terminated by seven days’ to three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. The non-executive
director of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company with no specific term and such service contract can
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Details of the capital commitments are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 December 2021, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$887,297,711
based on the total number of 44,364,885,557 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$0.02 per share.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the corporate governance report contained in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, no
Director of the Company is considered to have an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group (which did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the Year
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements
contained herein.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group did not undertake any connected
transactions that were subject to the Listing Rules’ reporting
requirement for disclosure in annual report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

Details of the financial risks management objective and policies
of the Group are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Continuity Risk with the Mutation of
COVID-19

The roll-out of vaccination program in early 2021 helped to resume
normal life in Hong Kong during 2021. However, the threat of new
variants increased and the restrictions remained. A complete
resumption to pre-pandemic level of social interaction is unlikely
in the short to medium term. The Company’s operations have
been resilient throughout the pandemic years. The Company will
continue to monitor the pandemic situation closely to ensure the
continuation of normal operations.

Rules and Regulations Risk

Rules and Regulations Risk is the risk of regulatory sanctions,
material financial loss, or 10ss to reputation a financial institution
may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with laws, regulations,
rules, related self-regulatory organisation standards, and codes of
conduct applicable to its business activities. Generally, compliance
with rules and regulations cover matters such as observing proper
standards of market conduct, managing conflicts of interest,
treating customers fairly, and ensuring the suitability of customer
advice.
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This risk has become one of the most significant ongoing concerns
for financial institutions. Nonetheless, the regulatory fees have
dramatically increased relative to financial institutions’ earnings,
and the scope of regulatory focus continues to expand. Even
though a lot of work has been done to respond to new rules and
regulations, financial institutions need a more structural mechanism
that will allow them to effectively and efficiently enhance their
risk-and-control frameworks and make it become more robust and
sustainable over time in order to mitigate this risk.

Investment Risk

The Group's portfolios built up through mergers and acquisitions
may not meet their investment objectives or there may be a failure
to deliver expected performance. Investment performance could
be significantly disrupted by a range of external factors including
turbulent social and economic environment, natural disaster,
regulatory landscape, product and service evolution and technology
advancements.

The Group re-evaluates the invested projects on regular basis. In
order to mitigate the inherent risk of its investments not performing
according to expectations, the Group has been strengthening its
independent post-investment monitoring processes across all its
investment projects. The Group considers reputational risks when
initiating changes to its strategy or operating model and maintain
high standards of conduct.

Liquidity Risk
As the Group’s financial service businesses are highly capital
intensive, any cash shortfalls of the Group may lead to inadequacy
of funds to support its daily operations and in severe cases,
bankruptcy, business expansion failures, reputational damages and
stakeholders’ suits. In order to finance the growth of its financial
services businesses and its current strategic expansions, the
Group requires substantial funding resources and a strong capital
base. The Group’s finance department is responsible to manage
its relationship with banks and other financial institutions and to
closely monitor the Group's cash flow adequacy. The Group may
consider other fund raising activities, such as share placements,
the issuance of convertible bonds, etc. to strengthen the Group's
capital base and bank/other borrowings and trade facilities to
improve its financial position if necessary.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's businesses and investments for the year were mainly
located in the mainland China, Hong Kong, Europe and Australia,
and therefore is mainly affected by the fluctuations of RMB, CHF
and AUD. The Group closely monitors its foreign exchange exposure
and would consider hedging when necessary. Please refer to note
41 to the financial statements of the annual report for the foreign
currency risk exposures as at the end of the reporting period.

Systems vulnerability and Cyberattacks

The operation of the Group’s businesses and in particular, its
financial services sector is highly dependent on its trading, data
management and information technology platform. The information
technology (IT) landscape of the Group may be vulnerable
to a number of disruptions such as computer viruses and/or
cyberattacks. Such disruptions may cause data corruption and
interruptions, delay or cessation in the services provided through
the Group’s securities trading facilities, exposure of sensitive/
confidential information to unauthorised persons, non-compliance
with data privacy requirements, stolen intellectual properties,
etc. The Group has initiated a review on the IT infrastructure and
conduct regular reviews on its compliance with The Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC") cybersecurity regulations and provides
training on cybersecurity to its relevant staff.

Market Risk

Market risk, including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and
price risk, is the potential for loss of economic value due to adverse
change in financial market rates or prices. The Group’s financial
services related businesses, as well as its direct investments in
listed securities, are exposed to market risk. The investments are
directly and/or indirectly affected by, among others, the global
and local political, economic and social environments. The Group
may suffer losses in these investments if the market price goes
adversely.
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Credit Risk

The Group encountered credit risk and may expose to credit l0ss
if the borrowers/counterparties default and the realisation value of
collaterals could not cover the loan amount. Credit risk is largely
correlated to the repayment ability of the borrower and the quality
of the collaterals. Deterioration in the quality of its loan portfolio
may occur due to the general slowdown of the economy, actual
or perceived deterioration of the creditworthiness of borrowers,
reduced profitability or cash flows of corporate borrowers or
the unemployment of individual borrowers. All these may cause
increase in credit risk which may ultimately lead to significant
increase in its allowance for impairment losses on loans. The
Group normally obtains sufficient securities and/or cash deposits
as collateral for providing margin financing to its clients. Margin
loans provided to a client is required to be maintained within the
margin value of his pledged securities, which means the aggregate
market value of his pledged securities after discounts. In the event
that a client is unable to meet a margin call, the Group is entitled to
dispose of the pledged securities and use the sale proceeds thereof
towards repayment of the loan. However, there is a risk that the
amount recovered from the disposal of the pledged securities may
fall short of the outstanding amount of the loan. The Group would
suffer a loss if it fails to recover the shortfall from its clients even
though the Group has strived to mitigate the concentration risk and
closely monitor the asset quality at all times.

Settlement Risk

There is a minimum margin deposit for the opening of each futures
contract as required by The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
(the “Futures Exchange”). Clients of the Group are required to
maintain such minimum margin deposit with the Group at all times
as determined by the Futures Exchange. Although the Group is
entitled to close out the futures contract when a client is unable
to meet his/her margin call, in the event that the client’'s margin
deposit with the Group is unable to cover the loss arising from
closing out of the futures contract, the Group would be exposed to
the risk of not being able to recover such shortfall from the clients,
particularly in times of a volatile market.
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Other Investment Risk in Non Financial Service
Area

Healthcare Business Related Risks

As part of the re-evaluation of investment strategy, the Group
exited the investment in the Women'’s Clinic (“Women's Clinic"),
a fertility group offering a comprehensive range of assisted
reproductive service and innovative technologies in assisted
reproduction, in February 2021. Having considered the economic
uncertainties associated with the economic slowdown in Hong
Kong and worldwide together with the mutation of the COVID-19,
we believes that the disposal of the Women’s Clinic allows the
Group to recoup funds through asset restructuring in order to
optimise its capital allocation, consolidate its core business with
competitive advantages and strengthen the Group’s overall ability
to control risks.

Consequently, the management adopted the conservative
approach in reassessing our investments in the mother-infant-child
consumer product business, which caused a significant decrease
in the profit for the Year for our mother-infant-child consumer
product business.

Mason Privatbank Liechtenstein AG (in liquidation)
(“MPL")

MPL, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
a licensed bank in Liechtenstein. Its head office is in Vaduz, the
capital of Liechtenstein.

As MPL has been continuously making losses since it was acquired
by the Group, with no reasonable means or prospect of making
any material improvement on its own financial performance or
operations in the foreseeable future, MPL was unable to generate
sufficient revenue to cover its own operating expenses or its other
liabilities.

In light of the challenging macro environment faced by MPL and
the business prospect of the Group, the continuing holding of MPL
by the Group may not be advantageous to the Group. The Board
believes that the voluntary liquidation is in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. In so doing, the
Company will be able to cut losses in connection with MPL as
well as to allocate more resources and management efforts to its
profitable businesses.
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The process and procedure for the voluntary liquidation
commenced in March 2021. Upon completion of the Voluntary
Ligquidation and all incidental procedures, MPL will cease to be
a subsidiary of the Company and the financial position and the
results of MPL will be deconsolidated from those of the Group.

Based on the latest management accounts of MPL as at 31
December 2021, total assets and total liabilities of MPL amounted to
CHF36,785,000 (equivalent to HK$313,915,000) and CHF22,590,000
(equivalent to HK$192,775,000) respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate and effective risk management
procedures which enable it to identify, measure, monitor and
control the various types of risks that it faces. This is supplemented
by active management involvement and effective internal controls
in the best interests of the Group.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

No important event that affects the Group has taken place since 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by BDO Limited, who
will retire and a resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mason Group Holdings Limited

Han Ruixia
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer

30 March 2022
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The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance to protect and enhance the
benefits of shareholders. The Board and senior management of the
Company recognises their responsibility to maintain the interest
of the shareholders and to enhance their value. The Board also
believes a deliberate policy of corporate governance can facilitate a
company in rapid growth under a healthy governance structure and
strengthen the confidence of shareholders and investors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Following specific enquiry by
the Company, all of the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the requirements as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE
Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise-
wide risk is a priority of the Company. The Company is convinced
that corporate governance and Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance (the "“D&O Insurance”) complement each other. The
Company has arranged appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on
Directors” and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
directors and senior management arising out from corporate
activities. The D&O Insurance will be reviewed and renewed
annually.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
two executive Directors, one non-executive Director and four
independent non-executive Directors namely:

Executive Directors
Ms. Han Ruixia (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi

Non-executive Director
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong

Mr. Wu Xu'an

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business
strategy, management planning and control of the Company.
The management is responsible for day-to-day management and
operation of the business of the Group and to make suggestions
to the executive Directors for their consideration. The Directors
have accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to carry out
their duties in an efficient and effective manner. Details of the
backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are set out in the
section headed "Biographies of Directors” on pages 22 to 25 of
this annual report. None of the members of the Board have, in any
respect, relation to each other in any circumstances.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with an induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she
has adequate understanding of the businesses and operations of
the Group. The Directors are also kept informed on a timely basis
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules,
as well as other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements.
The Company also encourages its Directors to participate in other
continuous professional development programmes for directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the effectiveness of the
corporate governance and system of internal non-financial controls
of the Group. The Board shall introduce and propose relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and to review and
determine the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices in the
Group.

During the Year, the Board regularly reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors,
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements. The Board regularly reviewed and
monitored the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to employees and Directors; and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report accordingly.

All of the Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for
the best interests of the Company and the shareholders of the
Company. Other than the statutory duties imposed on each of
them, all of the Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave
concern, sufficient time and attention to all the significant issues
and affairs of the Group.

Management Committee

A management committee of the Company (the “Management
Committee”) was established on 1 November 2019 by the order
of the Board, to make suggestions on the management and
operation of the business of the Group to the executive Directors
for their consideration and approval and to manage and operate
the business of the Group. The Management Committee is also
responsible for the day to day operation, among other matters,
the implementation of overall strategy and direction set by the
Board. The Management Committee includes members with solid
management experience in finance, banking, fund management
sector, risk management and legal and compliance. It currently
comprises Ms. Han Ruixia, an executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, and Mr. Zhang Zhenyi, an executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
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Non-executive Directors

Each of the existing independent non-executive Directors was
appointed for a specific term of 3 years and the non-executive
Director has been appointed with no specific terms of office,
subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of directors
under the Articles of Association of the Company.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors.
At least one of the independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

Board Composition

The Board has established a set of board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board aiming at
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well
as achieving our business objectives and sustainable development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The current Board consists of a diverse mix
of Board members appropriate to the requirement of the business
of the Company.

The Board is also a mixed-gender board with female representation
brought by Ms. Han Ruixia, an executive Director and deputy Chief
Executive Officer, and Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol, a non-executive
Director. The Board recognises the importance and benefits of
gender diversity at Board level and shall continue to take initiatives
to identify suitable female candidates for board succession planning
and enhancement of gender diversity in the Board. The Company
has also gender diversity at the employee’s level. For details,
please refer to p.84 of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”.
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Attendance Records o FE R0 8%

Details of the attendance of the Board members are as follows: BEEREZHEFBOT

Meeting Attended/Held During the Year Ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--St-A=t-ALFEHE BT2eR
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting
Exg ERZE. FMzEE REZEE EVN-

Executive Directors HTES

Ms. Han Ruixia BB L 10/11 N/ATNER N/ANE A N/ARNE A 17
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi wIRE LA 11/M N/ATR i F N/AT i F N/AT i F 111
Non-executive Director FETES

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol Bt e N 9/11 N/ATN G B 2/2 171 0/1

Independent Non-executive BIEHTES

Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can A% E 11/11 2/3 2/2 /1 01
Mr. Wang Cong FHEE 11/11 3/3 2/2 1/1 0/1
Mr. Wu Xu'an RNLEE 11711 3/3 N/AT i N/ATE 0/1
Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RT#EE 11/ 3/3 2/2 11 01
Save for regular board meetings held in 2021, meetings of BR-IZE-_—FRBIT7EFTeFHeZIN &S

the Directors were held to discuss and transact other special @SR fTeRftsREEHMERSE EE@
businesses. The Board members are provided with appropriate and M EE€REINEEEBEZE AR W TRAE
sufficient information in a timely manner to keep abreast of the Erz&HERBRL - -FEREEeSRRENS
Group's latest developments. All businesses transacted at board BB ZEZ77 Ka0eE o

meetings are properly documented and recorded.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings of the Company RARQFIBREAE FIZHMERERHUEE
were voted by way of poll and the announcement on the poll vote — FR#ETERFR  WARARTBERREAEEIZ -
results was made by the Company after the general meetings in ~ H#RAIFE139OER T A RIEL IR ER AER
the manner prescribed under rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules. N o
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Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has arranged and funded suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director. The company secretarial department
of the Company would provide relevant reading materials to the
Directors to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company'’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forum,
or training course on relevant topics. During the Year, the Directors
had provided their records of continuous professional development
to the Company. The Board has reviewed and monitored the
continuous professional development of the Directors.

The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed
and refreshed by, inter alia, the following means:

EERHEEXRER

RIBERERTRIMTRIRICALS - FTEE ST
R2RFEREREE  URSRERENI R
B tMBEREEEZEATRIEAENER
TREFEEHER -

ARRIERERESEETI  BERALHA
AESHRS BEMBE RERESETH
ARRIERBABNEE  AEMEERENRH
B WERHMBREKEE  ARARNARMWE
e REFRMEMBENE - 1IN TREEFT
FEZ2EAWFEBNI S mBIIFIRE - R
REE EFCAARARUEENFEREER
RicHk - EEGCESNEBEEHBETRUR -

BREPERB)UATHARERRNENESEZ
FB KA BE

Types of
Trainings
B
Executive Directors HITESE
Ms. Han Ruixia BiE LT AB
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi SRR S A AB
Non-executive Director FBTES
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol ER et AB
Independent Non-executive Directors BIkHTES
Mr. Tian Ren Can BB EE AB
Mr. Wang Cong FRELE AB
Mr. Wu Xu'an ERMERE AB
Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RFBEAE AB
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A attending seminars/courses/conferences in person or by
teleconference in relation to the responsibilities of directors’ of a
listed company, corporate governance and regulatory updates

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company, comprising Mr. Wu Xu'an as
chairman as well as Mr. Tian Ren Can, Mr. Wang Cong and Mr. Ng
Yu Yuet as members, has reviewed the audited final results for the
Year.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among others, are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditor

(@ to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) to act as the key representative for overseeing the Company'’s
relations with the external auditor;

(d) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” shall include any entity that is under
common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Audit Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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Review of the Company’s financial information

©)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. In
reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices,

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vii compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding (e) above: (i) members of the Audit Committee
should liaise with the Board and senior management and
the Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with
the Company’s auditor; and (i) the Audit Committee should
consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the reports and accounts, it should
give due consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function and compliance function or the
auditor;

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
systems

®

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems;
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to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider any findings of major investigation findings on
risk management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and the management’s
response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and the management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to review arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters and the Audit Committee is to ensure
proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action,

to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Wu Xu'an (chairman)
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

During the Year, the Audit Committee met three times with the
external auditor and/or representatives of the management of
the Company. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 with the external auditors and reviewed
the Company’s unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021. The Audit Committee also reviewed and
discussed the internal control necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Audit Committee
submitted its views and recommendations on the Group'’s financial
statements to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “"Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 28 June 2005. The written terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee were formulated
and were adopted by the Company in compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and was revised on 18 December 2015.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others,
are:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
management’'s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’'s remuneration

proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive,

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;,

when the occasion arises, to advise shareholders on how to
vote with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules; and

to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director, namely:

Mr. Wang Cong (chairman)
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2021 to review
and assess the performance and remuneration of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 of the consolidated
financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the Year, the remuneration of senior management is listed as
below by band:

FHEZEEN T —FRITTMASH FH
MHAESERBENFH -
EEHMH

EEMEBELRENRERGIE - At S5
EEGLEEFHE  EARKRRURTEE
EEMETE - WIN EZFMBFNEESEF
EH - EEHFMOFBEHNES M BREM T
11 o

SREZEEHMH
REE  BRERERBEESHFMIIRAT

No. of person

Remuneration Ea | AE
HK$1,000,000 and below 1,000,0007 7T & LA~ 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 3

HK$3,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

The senior management includes the executive Directors of the
Company.

Nomination Committee and Policy

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012. The written
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee was formulated
and was adopted by the Company in compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and was revised on 18 December 2015
and 26 March 2019.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee, among others,
are:

(@ to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;,
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to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors,

to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the board diversity policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of its review
results in the Corporate Governance Report annually from
year 2013 onwards;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
and

where the Nomination Committee proposes a resolution to
elect an individual as an independent non-executive director
at the general meeting, to advise the Board setting out in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

(i) the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

(i) if the proposed independent non-executive director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the Board believes the individual
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board,

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

(iv)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

to consider other topics as defined by the Board.

MEARBREERIETESTZAL ¥
EERAHEFES 2 ATERIERER
AEFSRHEERZS

AN FITE R 2B

EHEBEATRNESTEXNEZ T LBUR
EBnEEeRBTERTENE ST
RMmalEMAETE B RMEZTEE UK

BT =FREBFELEBARABEAR

BRI AR

HREEZEHEEUREZT(LERTIER
RS{TRAR) I 8mESSREES -
P53

Shix e

FREZECHARERG LREREER
ﬁE%Aiﬁﬁi#ﬁﬁ%%‘Miﬁﬁ
EETEBBREREBEEHN 2 BURE
KRS R R - BIER

0 FBUADEZBALZRE BFER
REBEZRALTZER  URES
REZBALEBBIALZIREA

(i) IREBLIFATESHHEFLH
(FAL) ETRBIZES  EFER
REZEBANTINARARAREEITE
=EEZRRA:

(i) HBEALAREFEERZEHEA
B REERER R

v) BBALTAREEEEKREZ T

ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ?@ﬂﬂi% =5 RIEZRE -

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE

53



54

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREABE

When considering candidates for the nomination and appointment
as Directors, the Nomination Committee aims to:

— ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

— there will be continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

The nomination and appointment process is carried out strictly in
accordance with the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference,
the Articles of Association of the Company and all applicable rules
and regulations.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following factors would be considered:

— Diversity in all aspects with reference to the Diversity Policy
of the Board.

— Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

— Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and diversity.

— Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, as may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

Notwithstanding that the Board has delegated its responsibilities
and authority for selection and appointment of directors of the
Company to the Nomination Committee of the Company, the
ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of directors of
the Company rests with the entire Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive
Director, namely:

Mr. Wang Cong (chairman)
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

The Nomination Committee held one meetings in 2021 to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
to make recommendations to the Board on the re-elections of
Directors and to review the composition of the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY

Directors’ and Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements and believe that these
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's
affairs and of its results. The Board has adopted appropriate
accounting policies and made proper estimates for the preparation
of financial statements. The Directors confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge, information and belief and having made
all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the financial statements for the financial
year of 2021.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the Company with effect
from 4 January 2018 and BDO Limited (“BDO") was appointed as
auditor of the Company on 4 January 2018 to fill the casual vacancy
So arising. Saved as above disclosed, there has been no other
change in auditor of the Company in the past three years. BDO
iS subject to reappointment as independent auditor of the Group
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. It is
the auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the Company and for no other purpose. They do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of the independent auditor’s report.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, and
reviewing any non-audit services performed by BDO. During the
Year, the subsidiaries of the Group engaged external auditors to
perform audit and provide non-audit services, other than BDO. The
remunerations paid to the external auditors for the provision of
services are set out as follows:

ERZERRAEFARRRIMNEREMLERS
ZAEan RARE ARSI 2 EAFR RS -
RAFE  RNEBMNBRRDREMLEERIAN
M SN AZ BUEMAE 1T B AT MR R FATIRTS - 2
SMNISAZ BN ST IR IS BN 2 H P T

HK$'000
TET

Audit services ZE R T% 3,644
Non-audit services IEZ RS 157
3,801

The non-audit services during the Year provided by external
auditors represent tax advisory services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight and corporate governance roles in the Group'’s financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

The Board has defined and endorsed the enterprise risk
management policy, to align risk management objectives and
strategies of the organisation, to ensure necessary resources
are allocated to risk management and to assign accountabilities
and responsibilities at appropriate level within the organisation.
The Management Committee was set up for management of the
enterprise top risks and operational risks in difference segments in
the Group. Management committee assist the Board and the Audit
committee in the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. The
Directors through the Audit Committee are kept regularly apprised
of significant risks that may impact on the Group’s performance.
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The Management Committee oversees the Group’s enterprise risk
management framework and to keep track on Group’s top risks
mitigation status. With supports from head of risk management,
function heads and business heads, the Management Committee
fulfil the responsibility on daily supervision of risk mitigation. In
2021, the Group defined its enterprise top risks and respective
governance committees were set as below:

Business Transformation and Sustainable Growth Risk
IT Disaster Recovery and Cyber Attacks

Business Continuity (COVID-19)

Regulatory Compliance

P w D -

The Group's risk governance structure adopts a “Three Lines of
Defence” model with oversight and directions from the Board,
which entails the accountabilities and responsibilities across the
organisation. The Group operates a risk governance model to
effectively identify and manage risk.

Risk management systems has been embedded into the core
operating practices of the business under the 1st Line of Defence
who owns the risk identification and management responsibility. On
an ongoing basis, the respective operating units in direct business
is responsible for the day-to-day operations and risk management.
Each of this respective operating units will review and assess
the status of potential risks which may impact on their ability to
achieve their business objectives. This review process includes
assessment as to whether the existing system of internal controls
continues to remain relevant, adequately addresses potential risks,
and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews are
recorded in the risk control self-assessment for monitoring and
units need to provide a confirmation to the 2nd Line of Defence on
the effectiveness of these systems. Internal Audit function being
the 3rd Line of Defence reports to the Audit Committee. It provides
independent assurance to the Group that the risks associated with
the Group's business and operations have been identified and
an effective system of controls over these risks is in place and is
working as intended.
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Three Lines of Defence
=EEE

Top-Down Strategic View
ML R B RS B R

Oversight: Board of Directors

Oownership: under Management Committee

FhiEk: EEEEEET

15t Line of Defence
F—EMF

e Ongoing identification,
assessment, monitoring
and reporting of risks in
respective areas

e Plan and implement
actions to manage risks

e Escalate risks according
to the escalation
reguirements

o FREMR - A - EDRIAN
W R EREA AR

o FFEILEBEIRRERAIEE

o RIBFTRENRTT AR

Business Owner
BREREEA

— Business management function
— Internal control function

— EEEREE

— MEPEIETRE

EE . E=g

24 Line of Defence
F_BIHEF

e Periodic review on the whole
risk management process

¢ Intermediary role for risk
reporting to Management
Committee

e Facilitate the risk
management process

s THIELSEERRERE
YiLE=

s HRERZBEMERAR
FEEERNER

o RERREERE

Risk Management Department
SEREBREE

— Financial control function

— Risk management function
— Compliance function

— Asset security control function
— BRI B

— RBERI B

— &EPThEE

— BEREZEIT &
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under Audit Committee
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Provide an independent
perspective on process
controls and design

Review the effectiveness of
controls in place to mitigate
risks
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Audit Firm
EEMKEER
INERIE L A BB AE

— Internal audit function
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consultant Avista)

— RERERTTIEE

(FSMNIE AR X EE ()



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

The Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the ERZE@aTHEEAEEMNAREIENE K
Group’s risk management approach, policy and framework. The HREIER - ERZESBERACERREET
Management Committee, which co-ordinates enterprise risk {ENGAEERNE KRR EEEHEBEETHR » 5t
management activities and reviews significant aspects of risk  WHREBETHZHENESH LOFZZESER -
management for the Group, reports to the Audit Committee at  H & IEAE B & E KR LA K a010) 38 & RE &
each regularly scheduled meeting including amongst other things, /sEBE#RIER - B FAIEER NEPES
significant risks of the Group and the appropriate mitigation and/or B4R - DM - RO EEAF RERERH
transfer of identified risks. The risk owners/internal control owners &R - Uk EHAESEZESERZZABRE
identify, analyze, prioritise and monitor their own risks, and report ¥ I {F - EAE B AIES SR B BE BRNFIE
such risk management activities to Management Committee on  M&SKFR) L fifH - EERENEEHFHA—
a regular basis. Proper escalation mechanism with well-defined BB EE IR HE ¥ 5 MBS HEE N E
threshold and tolerance level is communicated to risk owner. This [ > TXRZARECEREREEBCREBHETE
mandates a consistent and effective approach applied across R »

the Group to manage the risks associated with its business and

operations. Below table illustrates the key process adopted under

the Enterprise Risk Management policy.

Description Outcome

B BmR

Establish Context ~ Establish context is defined by the external and internal e Half yearly update by
parameters to be considered when managing risk, setting scope business head on new
and risk criteria in order to achieve the Group's objectives. services and activities

The Management Committee and the Risk Management
Department shall determine the scope and extent of the
risk assessment process (i.e. risk identification, analysis and
assessment) in the context of the Group’s key operational areas,
including new services and activities that may affect the Group'’s
strategy and objectives. The scope will then identify the relevant
action stakeholders required for the subsequent risk assessment

process.

TRV BUYRBEETEERRRBEZERNIINSINALDH - RBE o« EBETETFFER
BEfRRIZE  LERAEENEIZ - RS AEE
EEZEeNEAREEPEREEBENIZELEEE (2 %—I
éi%@%lﬁﬁiﬂHTEE’J%EHWWD/E@J)E’J”E 1 E AR

2 (BNER BRI - ST AMETE) WEBEMIZE - A% %ﬁl
BT RERRFABREABNABTSHNEAES -
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1E % %q /A ﬁ %
Stage Description Outcome
P FR #at #HR

Risk Identification  Risk identification is the process of discovering, identifying the e Group Risk Universe
source of risk, describing the risk with areas of impact and
events (including environmental changes), as well as root causes
and potential consequences.

Risk identification may involve historical data, theoretical
analysis, informed and expert opinion, and stakeholder needs.

The purpose of risk identification is to produce a comprehensive
table of risks based on events that possibly create, enhance,
hinder, expedite or delay the Group’s achievement of objectives.
Risk identification must include the Group’s ability to control
such risk regardless whether the source of the risk is obvious.
Risk identification shall include the examination on direct
impacts, including related effects and cumulative effects, as
well as considering the range of consequences and identifying
possible incidents and related consequences.

It is the risk owner’s responsibility to identify the risks and its
related risks. It should be noted that only events or incidents
with possibility to affect the achievement of Mason'’s strategies
and objectives could constitute as a group risk. All identified
risks are mapped into the Group Risk Universe.
[ Bz 58 7 [E R R R EIR  BAERRR  HAERARE  FEEE - e ESEEREb
EH(BRREEH)URBEMEEERR -

R\ @R Al RS RESL B - EmoN  MBEMERERLUR
MR FE R -

e B RELE —EERAIEEL - o8 - K - IR
SHERRERNFEFNARNGARE -EBRBHAREAR
SEZRERRRNE SN  BREARRETEARE - RRERIE
EREEEERTE BRABFENREZE LEERER
M EE K BRBEEARBBER -
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Description Outcome

it "R

Risk Analysis Risk analysis is the process of understanding the nature of e Group risk register to
risk and determining the level of risk. It provides the basis for assess the risk level of
risk assessment, decisions about risk treatment, and the most inherent risks
appropriate risk treatment strategies and methods.

Risk analysis includes root cause considerations together with its
positive and negative consequences and the likelihood of these
consequences. An event can have multiple outcomes and affect
multiple goals. Existing control measures and their effectiveness
and efficiency should also be considered.

The Management Committee is responsible for reviewing and
presenting the Group’s top risks from the Group Risk Register.
Risk owners are then responsible for analyzing the root causes
and consequences of each individual risk identified. These risks
will be consolidated into their relevant categories to provide a
holistic view of the entire operation.
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Stage Description Outcome

P FR 3t #HR

Risk Evaluation The purpose of a risk assessment is the process of determining e Enterprise Risk
whether a risk and/or the magnitude of the risk is acceptable or Heat Map after
tolerable based on the results of risk analysis. A risk evaluation assessment of control
can help make decisions about the risks that need to be effectiveness to
addressed and the priorities for mitigations. conclude the residual

risk level

Based on the root causes and consequences of each risk listed
in the detailed Group Risk Register, the risk owner should
identify the existing controls in place to mitigate the risk. Risk
owners should then evaluate these risks against risk parameters
in order to map the risks into relevant cells within the enterprise
risk heat map.

2 B & A R EHENRE  EREROTOER  URERRM, % o ©tERBRAE - FH
R AR NREA IR RRNBIE - AR HEERMLEAE EHAERERSHT
FA® BRI A E R MR RIS R B TR FFRIRE R B K

REFANEERRELM I HOEBREARRAREMEZ
R-BERAESEURETRBENERANERR - BEER - &
BAEEURRERRSEFEELRAR  AEHERERE
TrERBRAREANMEBETS -

Risk Treatment Risk treatment involves in one or more selections to modify the e Group risk register on
risks and carry out these selections. Risk treatment involves progress updates
in the periodical process of assessing risk treatment, deciding
whether the residual risk level is tolerable, if not, new risk
treatment takes place; and assessing the effectiveness of that
treatment.

Risk owner shall determine whether they shall plan and take
other control measures. Risk owner shall also consider to
establish key risk indicators (if needed) for these risks, so as to
conduct monitoring.
[ B R 72 AJEEE?*/F&%‘Z?% A=k Z (EE IR RIS LA R BEELLIRIT o o LHEEEREEER
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Outcome
it "R

Description

Risk Monitoring and
Review

Rl R EEE

Communication and
Consultation

Monitoring through means of constant inspection, supervision,
strict observation or determination of conditions helps to
identify changes. Monitoring can be applied to risk management
frameworks, risk management processes, risks or controls.

The review includes activities to determine whether the subject
is suitable for achieving the stated objectives. Reviews can be
applied to risk management frameworks, risk management
processes, risks or controls.

BBATEHRSES  BEE BRERIBEMRENTRETE
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12~ BB iEs) o
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Effective communication (internal and external) and consultation
is ensure that those responsible for implementing the risk
management process and stakeholders understand the basis for
decisions and the rationale for specific actions. Both internal and
external communications cover crises or emergencies.
EEETHRNBER (AEFING) M - ABRESERE
b B IR AZ B9 A B AN F 25 48 B8 75 1R AR 1 H R SR A (IR DA R B ER
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Appropriate policies and procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that key risks are identified, assessed and
managed within the defined risk tolerance level. Through such a
systematic approach, assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

During the Year, the Board engaged an external consultant to
review the effectiveness of the internal control systems in certain
business and back office functions of the Group with primary focus
on compliance with laws and regulated business. The assessment
results and proposed improvement opportunities were discussed
and agreed with management and were reported to the Audit
Committee. The Board considers the above-mentioned risk
management and internal control systems of the Group during the
Year are effective and adequate.

Company Secretary

According to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company secretary
of the Company has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the financial year ended 31 December
2021.

Shareholders’ Rights

Enquiries

Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board or put forward
proposals relating to the operations, strategy and/or management
of the Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings.
Shareholders’ enquiries or proposals can be directed in writing
to the Board or the Company secretary of the Company at the
registered office or by email to info@masonhk.com.

Meetings

Pursuant to Article 69 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
shareholder(s) of the Company holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company may request the Board of Directors of
the Company to convene a general meeting by way of depositing a
written request at the registered office of the Company or by email
to info@masonhk.com. The objects of the meeting must be stated
in the related requisition which must be authenticated by the
requisitionist(s).
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Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s) of
the Company holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights
or not less than 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting may request the Company
to give notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting by way of depositing a
written notice authenticated by the requisitionist(s) at the registered
office of the Company or by email to info@masonhk.com not less
than six weeks before the meeting. The notice shall contain a
description of the proposed resolution desired to be put forward
at the meeting, the reasons for such proposal and any material
interest of the proposing shareholder(s) in such proposal.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to
ensure that Shareholders can timely and equally access to
reasonable and understandable information of the Company and
such policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board has adopted a policy on payment of dividends (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Board takes into account the following
factors when considering the declaration of interim dividends and
proposing the payment of final dividends for the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders:

(i) financial results of the Group;

(i) general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

(i) capital requirements of the Group;

(iv)  possible effects on the Company’s creditworthiness;

(v)  the Company’s shareholders’ interests;

(vi)  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board will from time to time review the Dividend Policy and

approve any revisions from time to time that may be required to
ensure the effectiveness of the Dividend Policy.
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INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company’'s website (www.masonhk.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the
Company to the shareholders of the Company, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website
information from time to time to inform the shareholders and
investors of the latest development of the Company.

During the Year, no change was made to the constitutional
documents of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company committed to protect the environment is well
reflected by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. Our Group
encourages environmental protection and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing. It implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying,
setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and
electrical appliance. The Group is also using office equipment
carrying energy label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department which save energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of our Group's businesses to move
towards adhering the 4Rs — Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace
and to enhance environmental sustainability.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERBRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Company is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG”) Report for the Year. The ESG Report highlights
the efforts of the Group in fully implementing the concept of
sustainable development and performing the corporate social
responsibilities.

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report sets out the overall environmental and social
policies of the Group when conducting financial service, wealth
and asset management, and private banking businesses in Hong
Kong during the Year. As compared to last year, Mason Privatbank
Liechtenstein AG (“MPL") located in Liechtenstein is excluded in
this ESG Report since it had undergone liquidation commenced in
March 2021 and was ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group. The
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of the Group are disclosed
based on the operating activities of (i) the office located in Central,
and (i) the branch office located in Tsuen Wan, during the Year.

Overall, the above mentioned reporting boundary was carefully
determined by the Group based on the material entities and
operations that have or will exert a great influence on the Group's
performance, assets and businesses in the long run.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX") and in compliance with the “comply or
explain” provision thereof.

Reporting Principles

The content of the ESG Report is determined through stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment process, which includes
identifying ESG-related issues, collecting and reviewing the
management and stakeholders’ opinions, assessing the relevance
and materiality of the issues and preparing and validating the
information reported. The ESG Report covers all key issues that are
concerned by different stakeholders.
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Quantitative environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the
ESG Report so that stakeholders are able to have a comprehensive
understanding of the Group’s ESG performance. Information of the
standards, methodologies, references and sources of key emissions
and conversion factors used on these KPIs and calculations
are stated wherever appropriate. To enhance and maintain the
comparability of the ESG Report over the years, the Group adopts
consistent reporting and calculation methodologies as practicable
as possible. In case of changes in methodologies and specific
standards, explanation will be provided in corresponding sections
to facilitate information interpretation.

Information and Feedback

For detailed information regarding the environmental, social and
corporate governance of the Group, please refer to the official
website (www.masonhk.com) and the Annual Report. Your opinions
are highly valued by the Group. Should you have any advice, please
contact the Group at info@masonhk.com.

ESG GOVERNANCE

Effective ESG governance plays a definite role in driving the Group's
pathway towards sustainable development. To ensure proper
implementation of ESG governance, the Board of Directors (the
“Board"”) oversees the Company’s ESG governance development
and execution, as well as to help determining the ESG strategies
and direction ahead, and to keep track of the potential ESG-related
risks provoked. With the Board’s supervision, authority is properly
delegated to the management of the Group to formulate and
execute ESG-related polices and strategies.

Board Statement

The Group believes that sound ESG principles and practices
will increase investment value and provide long-term returns to
stakeholders. To ensure the establishment of appropriate and
effective ESG risk management measures and internal control
system, the Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s ESG
strategies and performance, as well as assessing and identifying
ESG-related risks.
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In order to mitigate sustainability and ESG-related risks, as well
as to keep track of the Company’s ESG development, the Board
monitors the execution and cooperation between different business
divisions to ensure the operations and practices are adhering with
relevant ESG visions, approaches, strategies or initiatives defined
by the Board. In addition, the Board keeps track of international
trends and regulatory updates to ensure latest requirement and
compliance status are met. Timely adjustment will be made to
cater for the emerging market trends regarding ESG-related issues
that may potentially impact the business operations.

The Group has established communication channels between
business divisions and its stakeholders for better communication
of ESG-related issues. The communication channels are reviewed
regularly to ensure that effective communications are made
between the Group and its stakeholders. During the Year, the
Board has assigned an independent consulting firm to conduct a
materiality assessment for better identification of potential and
material ESG issues relevant to the business and its stakeholders.
Stakeholder engagement has been conducted to engage with
relevant stakeholders for a more precise identification of
the material issues that could internalise the opinions of the
stakeholders. The issues would be prioritised and those with
higher significance will be considered as material. The Board would
also review the material issues regularly to ensure appropriate
ESG management policies are in place, so as to promote prompt
responses to meet stakeholders’ expectations.

In an effort to enhance ESG performance, the Group endeavours
to review plans and performances regarding its operation and
sustainable development. The Board would keep track of ESG-
related work execution with respect to the proposed plans, budget,
expenditure and targets, for the purpose of formulating future
plans on the Group’s ESG development. The quality and quantity
of ESG-related staff trainings are also monitored to ensure the
Group's message on ESG-related issues and market trends are well
conveyed.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement and support
are crucial to the Group’s business success. By continuously
understanding stakeholders’ expectations and concerns towards
sustainable development, the Group could have grasped a
more comprehensive perspective in developing the sustainable
development goal and improving the sustainable development
strategy.

Communication with Stakeholders

The Group has established a variety of communication methods
to allow stakeholders from different areas and levels to express
their opinions and suggestions, and the Group also responded to
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns in different channels to
improve our ESG performance and development strategy.

Stakeholders
ERE

Expectations and Needs

Government and Regulators o Compliance with national

policies, laws and regulations .

. Support for local economic
growth

R &SR

AEBMBERHHELRRIFYREENEBK
NEWEE - ARBRBIHR T RIFHEYATH
BREOHERMY CRBERARERRERE
ERRETHEERAE I AEEEZENRA -

BEHERR
AEEERYZLENERS R  ETREE R
BEHNFNESAREERLRELEZE IR T
FIZRE @ e &R HI L EERY) - {em BB B A
PRFTESGHY A IR I 3 R R A ©

Means of Communication
and Response
BEREELX

. Regular information reporting
Regular meetings with regulators
. Examination and inspection

. Contribution in local employment
° Tax Payment in full and on time

BFREE#E o  ETBERHEE ERERBRH s  TEHERES
o XFHAMKEER s TEHEEEHEEE
o  THEMAME s BBREE

s EREEHEMM

Shareholders . Returns . General meetings
. Compliant operation . Announcements
. Rise in company value . Email, telephone communication
. Transparency and effective and company website
communication . Dedicated reports
[ U W 2 [ 7 o REXE
s AREE LN
o RANREE o BE - BEBARA ML
o FHRERBIER o H@E®w
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Means of Communication
and Response
BEREERR

Stakeholders

Expectations and Needs
BoE ERREH

Partners Operation with integrity . Review and appraisal meetings
Equal Rivalry . Business communications
Performance of contracts . Discussion and exchange of
Mutual benefits opinions
° Engagement and cooperation
SR WIS o FRE R R
NS o Eyiy il
BOERH o R R E R
5B EH A o Bk R A 1E
Customers Outstanding services . Customer service centre and
Performance of contracts hotlines
Operation with integrity . Meetings with customer
° Social Media
®FE BE RS o BEPIRF RO R B AR
BOERBH o HEFER
WA o HRERBTE

Environment

Compliance with emission
regulations

Energy saving and emission
reduction

Environmental protection

ESG Reporting
Investigations and inspections

RiB BFHEE AR o R MHEREAME
£ e KR > BERR U AERRE
IRIBIRE

Employees Protection of rights o Meetings with employees
Occupational health and safety ° House journal and intranet
Remunerations and benefits ° Employee mailbox
Career development ° Training and workshops
Humanity cares o Employee activities

B8 T e o HESS
BEREREZD o RN a AT R A4S
e 2 A8 A U 1B B # 45
BERE U Bl R TES
ANz o EBES
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Stakeholders Expectations and Needs
BoE ERREH

Community and the Public Enhancement of community

environment
o Transparency
HERAR o WEARIRIE
J HRE

Materiality Assessment

In the Year's ESG Report, the Group has engaged an independent
third party consultant to assist with the collection of internal
stakeholders' opinions regarding relevant ESG issues and thereby
conducting materiality assessment to identify ESG issues that
are material to the business of the Group and its stakeholders.
The assessment is based on stakeholder survey, materiality
maps provided by well-known external institutions’, as well as
professional opinions from the third-party ESG professional. The
material ESG issues as identified are shown as follows:

! The materiality maps referenced in the materiality assessment include
the ESG Industry Materiality Map and the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board (“SASB”) Materiality Map produced respectively by
MSCI and SASB.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021

Means of Communication
and Response
BEEREERR

. Company website
° Interview with media

o REIME
o EERIRE

ERMME

RAFEERE HEghEARE  AEECD2H
BUFE=TTHAABBEEEERE L kE
SR EENRREOERR  CMETERM
FHE BRI H A RE X REFNEERNERE -
HEREREE FHENDERFNHERE A%
SVEBEBIRENBEEMBR ARE=FRE 4
SENERERATNEEEE - BAINEERE
HEREBEEIIRET

! EZUHFEPIRIANEEHEERER
MSCIR A 5B 3 B g5 Al Z 8 & ([SASB])
DRREREE M REATEEEME.
MSASBEZ HBFL o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERRSE

Material Issues
BEEEH

Aspects
@

Environmental
Green Office
MERETE

SRR /N

RBE

Employment and Labour Practices

Financing Environmental Impact

Human Capital Development

Employment Compliance

ANEBERFE
BEEH

ERNMEBHER

Operating Practices

Privacy and Data Security

Transparent information and Fair Advice for Customers
Customer Service Management
Intellectual Property Protection

Business Ethics

w1 pl BREBELE
BEERENRAT RS
BREE
HBERIRE
ER et
ENVIRONMENTAL OBJECTIVES BREE

The Group is committed to embrace green development, as well as
to minimise the environmental impacts induced from daily business
operations. Understanding the importance of incorporating green
measures and practices into the business to achieve sustainable
development, the Group has developed a series of sustainable
development strategies together with a number of environmental
targets to push forward the Group’s commitment towards
protecting environment.

During the Year, the Group has set preliminary directional targets
to focus on i) Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Management; ii)
Waste Management; iii) Use of Resources; and iv) Green Operations
of the Company’s business operations and development, in terms
of sustainability. The Group is devoted to actively implement and
maintain or gradually reduce power and water consumptions,
and waste generation according to the Group’s measures
practiced on power saving, water conservation, and resources
consumption reduction, reuse and recycling. The Group will review
the implementation progress of various environmental protection
objectives and measures, monitor various emission sources and
identify more opportunities for energy conservation and emission
reduction.

AEBBRNIRNGEERIFBEBEEBEEES
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Environmental Areas Objectives
RIRERE BE

Air and Greenhouse Gas
Emissions Management
BREBEEREBHNER

Waste Management

R ER

Use of Resources

BEIRE A

Green Operations

BEEE

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce carbon footprint of
the offices according to the power saving measures of the Group
BIE AR B W L 1R B R R AT RAE R SE R D i A iR 2 B

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce waste generation
according to the Group’s measures of reduce, reuse and recycling
BRIBEAEEARD BERARBEREEERNTREFSIE SR D
BEMES

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce energy and water
consumption according to the resource conservation and consumption
reduction measures of the Group

Develop an energy saving strategy through studying the energy
consumption of the Group

RIE AR B 0 B RB B iR IT RAEFF SR R 8RR SOK B AR
B IT A K E A s8R 8 FE B E B B R IR

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce paper consumption
according to the Group’s paper saving measures
RIBASEBEAE DK REEREGAIT REFRE LR D HREFHE

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

To seise opportunities and respond to possible challenges that
may arise, the Group endeavours to be an environment-friendly
organisation and to fulfil its responsibilities to the environment.
Despite the fact that its business operations do not pose significant
impacts to the environment, the Group still shoulders the
responsibility to improve its performances in emission reduction
and energy conservation. The Board strictly complies with all
environment-related laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution Control
Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Environmental Protection Act. The Board will also continue
to push forward green initiatives and promote environmental
protection awareness among the Group as to build a green
and environment-friendly workplace. Overall, environmental
non-compliance with applicable provisions was not observed in the
Year.
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Emission Management

Due to the nature of the business, as a financial service-based
enterprise, the Group does not consume fuel for operations nor
does it emit any industrial exhaust gas, directly. The Group does
not possess any vehicle fleet in the Year. Hence, the Group does
not emit any vehicle exhaust emission in the Year.

The vehicle exhaust emissions of the Group are as follows:

Vehicle Exhaust Emissions

FEBERBEK

HmER

HREBHE  FASRRBULE  AEEY
ETEHRMH TS ERELTRER - A%
BRE NI ST ER - it - AEERERL
A TERERIN -

AEBRIEERIBLT

Nitrogen oxides (“NOy")
A&Ety (TNOy)
Sulphur oxides (“SOx")
Tt (1S0,1)
Particulate matter (“PM™)
Fary ([PMY)

In the Year, the greenhouse gas emissions of the Group are
composed of indirect emissions from purchased electricity, and
other indirect emissions from disposal of paper waste, which
generates methane at landfills and outbound business trips.
The Group is aware of the impacts of greenhouse gas emission
generated, and is devoted to reduce carbon footprint of the
Company. Hence, the Group opts for video conferencing to avoid
unnecessary overseas business travel, and chooses direct flight to
avoid transfer which prolonged the traveling distance, if necessary.
In addition, the Group promotes and educates employees about
the emission reduction measures, through e-mail, posters, internal
networks and other media to enhance employees’ environmental
responsibility.

2 As MPL in Liechtenstein is no longer a subsidiary of the Group, and

offices in Hong Kong has sold their vehicles, the Group does not emit
any vehicle exhaust emission in the Year.

kg 0.000 2.400
N

kg 0.000 0.001
AF

kg 0.000 0.010
AR

FA - AEENRERBYNEBREBEENES
MRS - AREERARHEIEREENF b
LEEHINABRELNEMEEER - AEEE
BEELFRERBHRNZEL B ANE DK
REER R - Bt AEBERERGEZAER
THREBNEIN B EEZEMMIT (HER) B0
RS MERRITIERE o - AREBEBER -
B ABEREGRESERHERBARR
PEETE - AR B ERIRIRA(E
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The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group are as follows: REERREREYRAT :

Greenhouse Gas Emissions®

BERE N

Total greenhouse gas emissions tonnes CO,e 179.31 237.97
AERBHRESE “&LirEE

\

Scope 1 - direct emissions” tonnes CO,e 0.00 0.78
BEI-EEHER N airixg e

Scope 2 — energy indirect emissions® tonnes CO.e 171.93 205.66
#E2—seIRAE P AM—ELIREE

Scope 3 — other indirect emissions® tonnes CO,e 7.38 31.53
0 [B13 — L fth A 2 R AR AM S RE S

Greenhouse gas emissions per square metre tonnes COe/m? 0.01 0.01
BEAARAELANRERBHENE N = F ALk
28/ ¥R

Greenhouse gas emissions per revenue tonnes CO,e/ 1.41 1.87
BENBAFMEENREREBEME ten million

HKD revenue
N g

58/ T
BHETHRA

The Group’s greenhouse gas inventory includes carbon dioxide, 3 a&‘%la’jjmﬁﬁﬁg%ﬁ@%*ﬁ{tﬁﬁ NP
methane and nitrous oxide, which are presented in carbon dioxide —&t—R  NZERESHR -
equivalent.

Scope 1 direct emissions refers to greenhouse gas emissions from
the fuel consumption of vehicles. Since there is no vehicle owned
by the Group during the Year, there is no Scope 1 direct emissions.
In 2020, the emission factors used for calculating emission is based
on the “"EMEP&EEA air pollutant emission inventory guidebook 2019”
issued by the European Monitoring and Evaluation Programme &
European Environment Agency.

Scope 2 energy indirect emissions refers to greenhouse gas
emissions from purchased electricity. The emission factor used for
calculating emission is provided by the Hongkong Electric Company.
Scope 3 other indirect emissions refers to greenhouse gas emissions
from waste paper disposal and outbound business trips. The data
is calculated based on the Carbon Emissions Calculator of the
International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) and the “Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the HKEX.
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Waste Management

The Group acknowledges the importance of waste reduction,
and has been actively engaged in waste reduction. Waste
management measures, such as recycling waste paper, metals and
plastics through sorting into different waste recycling bins, have
been introduced to minimise the waste generation. In general,
general waste, including non-recyclables, tissues etc.,
major non-hazardous waste disposed by the Group. While toner
cartridges and electronic wastes are the major hazardous wastes,
which will be collected and handled by qualified service providers.

The non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste disposed by the
Group's business operations are as follows:

Y EE

REB AR BEYHEE MY CEHRS D
BEY) - REE T B BN BETFREY B ERLIRR
SIABEYE R - HINEELR - i%&éﬂﬁﬁ
RARDBEMEL -BRME - —REY
‘AR E YY) - %KW%TJ$§§I§%E’\JIEﬁ%
BEY) c MM EREFEVMDHEIERZEY &
A BRRG IR AW E REEHE

B
i
i)

EBLEHERNEZEYNATENOT

Non-hazardous waste’

mEEW

Total non-hazardous waste generated
PELAREENEE

Non-hazardous waste generated per square metre
BEARAEENESED

Non-hazardous waste generated per revenue
BEMBAGEENEESEY

Hazardous waste®

BEEY

Total hazardous waste generated
EELEEENEE

Hazardous waste generated per square metre
BIERRAEENBESED

Hazardous waste generated per revenue
BEUBATEENEEED

/ Non-hazardous waste of the Group included general office waste
and paper waste. The amount of general office waste was estimated
based on the operation situation of the Group while paper waste is

calculated based on actual consumption.

generated.

The weight of hazardous waste refers to the actual quantity of waste

tonnes 16.19 14.84
N
kg/m’ 1.06 0.88

Af /IR
kg/ten million 127.06 116.46
HKD revenue

nF/

TEETHRA

kg 1.58 51.30
NI
kg/m? 0.000 0.003

DR/ FITK
kg/ten million 0.01 0.40
HKD revenue

af/

TEETHA

! REBHBEZENBE R AR SRR
—RMAEDNEEDERREENEEN
S MEBERDERERBRTH -

¢ BEBRYNEBRELTHNEMNERHE -
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In order to promote waste reduction in offices, waste sorting bins
are available for waste paper, metals and plastics collection. All
paper boxes, paper, newspaper and magazines are collected for
recycling purpose. The recyclables are then collected by qualified
service providers to recycle. The Group also provides refills for
reusable stationery and reminds employees to reuse stationery
such as envelopes, folders and file cards. In addition, inventory of
materials are evaluated regularly to avoid overstock and wastage.
Posters are also put up at pantries to remind staff from avoiding
disposable and non-recyclable products, such as paper cups.
If there is electronic waste, the Group will contact electronics
company to properly handle and recycle old computers and other
electronic waste. Overall, the Group is devoted to and actively
engaged in reducing waste in our business operations, and support
handling of waste in an environmental-friendly way.

Use of Resources

The Group understands the importance of effective resource
utilisation and has committed to streamline operations to optimise
resource utilisation, save energy and reduce resource consumption.
The Group actively promotes the importance of environmental
protection among employees, to raise their awareness on
environmental protection and to learn the philosophies of resource
conservation and consumption reduction. Meanwhile, the Group
also encourages the practice of waste reduction at source, as well
as effective adoption of green office.

The Group mainly consumes energy through the use of electricity,
water and paper, including the indirect energy consumption for
water and paper processing, for daily office operations. On the
other hand, the Group'’s business does not require or involve any
packaging materials.
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Energy Conservation

The Group has adopted multiple energy saving initiatives to
improve energy efficiency of equipment or devices and reduce
energy consumption. Multiple areas, equipment and systems,
including lighting system, printing equipment, Information and
Communications Technology equipment etc., have been addressed
to practice energy conservation. The Group has segregated
the office areas into different lighting zones with multiple light
switches, and practiced de-lamping for areas which are with
higher-than-required lighting level to reduce unnecessary lighting.
The Group has also adopted energy efficient lighting fixtures, such
as the T5 fluorescent lamps and LED lights, as well as keeping
them clean to maximise the energy efficiency for lighting. Lighting
panels with mirror reflectors are installed to reflect and maximise
lighting efficiency as well. Employees are reminded to switch off
unnecessary lighting, especially when rooms are not in use or
when leaving the office after office hours.

Reducing energy use for air conditioning is also another focus
area. Employees are required to switch off the air-conditioners
during non-working hours and allowed to dress casually on Fridays.
Central Control and Monitoring System (CCMS) is adopted to
maintain the office temperature at a minimum of 25.5 degrees
Celsius. Moreover, regular leakage checks are conducted to reduce
possible leakage of refrigerants.

The Group also encourages employees to set the computers and
Information and Communications Technology (ICT) equipment
to automatic standby or sleep mode and to turn off unused
electrical devices before leaving the office. Printers with the
“pull printing” options, which require staff authentication before
printing, are adopted to save unnecessary printing or accidental
print outs. Besides, the Group conducts monthly electricity audits
to monitor power consumption and make appropriate measures
for improvement. In order to enhance operational efficiency, the
Group regularly upgrades its existing facilities such as replacing
outdated computers, phones and other electrical appliances. As
such, it gives priority to eco-friendly equipment during procurement
process to protect the environment.
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The energy consumption of the Group is as follows:

Energy Consumption

REIF R 7%

Total energy consumption’
BEREEME’
Diesel consumption
SmEREE
Consumption of purchased electricity™
SNBEHEEE"
Energy consumption per square metre
BYHRERERER
Energy consumption per revenue
BEAWAGEREREE

REBMBRBEFENT

MWh 257.71 294.28
KRB
MWh 0.00 3.24
JKEL RS
MWh 257.71 291.04
JK FLES
Mwh/m’ 0.02 0.02
KB, 75K
MWh/ten million 2.02 2.31

HKD revenue
JKFLE
FEATHA

Water Conservation

The Group does not operate a water-intensive business. The water
consumption and wastewater drainage services are fully managed
by the property management of the offices, which the Group has
no access to the water consumption and wastewater drainage
amount used. Hence, water and wastewater amount data are
not available nor can it be collected or interpreted by the Group.
Nevertheless, the Group remains concerned regarding the water
saving measures implemented at the offices. Water saving posters
are put up at offices, including pantries and washrooms, to raise
awareness and remind employees of saving water. In the Year, the
Group did not have any issue regarding sourcing water.

As MPL in Liechtenstein is no longer a subsidiary of the Group, and
offices in Hong Kong has sold all vehicles, the Group does not have
any diesel consumption in the Year.

The electricity consumption is calculated based on the actual
consumption of the offices.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021

RSN

REBEWELQEFEKERNER - FAKEFEKAR
BERAEYMEEEIEEE FAEEEZES
RAKERPKE - Bt - REEBEEZESHKE
REKEHE  MEERENBEZZTHE - A
- AEEDELOCHAEE RAEKER - A
ERAEER - RRERERATFH ReE
TEH/KEBWIRES TE/K FR - AEBEWHE
ERAKERHERER -

’ ARG S T B BIMPLA B 7R 5 B 1 T 8

R MBAEMAECHEMAER  ~&E
TR L S FE ©
Y REDNERBRAZTEREREIE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERBRE

The water consumption of MPL was as follows:

Water Consumption

MPLEFEKENT ¢

FKE
Total water consumption m? 0.00 421
kB E 7K
Water consumption per square metre m*/m? 0.00 0.03
FFHROFEKE AR TK
Water consumption per revenue m®/ten million 0.00 15.18
BEARANEKE HKD revenue
SRS
FEBTHA
Green Operation REEE

While actively developing its business, the Group recognised
the importance of green operations and spared no effort in
promoting paper consumption reduction and minimising waste at
source. Therefore, the Group has adopted different measures to
integrate environmental protection concepts into daily operations
and to build a comprehensive enterprise that takes economic,
environmental and social aspects into account.

The Group has introduced a wide range of paperless solutions into
its daily operations to reduce the amount of printing materials.
The Group has put up posters and notices next to the printers
to remind employees to reuse single sided non-confidential
print out and practice double-sided printing. Additionally, the
Group disseminates information through electronic means to
reduce paper use. Printing volume is also monitored regularly,
and printing quota for each employee is set to avoid excessive
printing. The Group has also replaced most fax machines with
e-fax to save paper printing. Discarded paper, except those printed
with confidential information, would be delivered to waste paper
recycling companies for further handling. In the Year, the Group
has recycled 0.17 tonnes of paper (2020: 1.01 tonnes).

n As MPL in Liechtenstein is no longer a subsidiary of the Group, and
water and wastewater services of offices in Hong Kong are managed
by the property management, the Group does not have access to the
water consumption data in the Year.
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Responding to Climate Change

In recent years, climate change has been a hot topic discussed
and attributes relevant to greenhouse gas emissions are knowingly
getting worse. The Group has raised its awareness towards the
risks and potential impacts of climate change towards the Group.
Although the Group did not discover any major climate-related
risks during the Year, the Group will assign appropriate staff to
review global and local government policies, regulatory updates
and market trends to identify potential climate-related risks and
opportunities that may have financial impacts on the Group's
business. In case of emergency due to extreme weathers such
as typhoons and heavy rainfall, the Group also adopts special
work arrangement to notify employees to safeguard the health
and safety of workforce. In addition, the Group maintains
comprehensive insurance coverage for assets which are prone to
damage by extreme weather or other physical impacts caused by
climate change.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group believes that the formulation of employment policies is
essential to the competitiveness of the company. The Group strictly
complies with the laws and regulations related to the rights and
interests of employees, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong. The Group treasures employees’ talent
and strives to provide its employees a suitable platform and
working environment to nurture their professional development.

Employment Policies

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and is committed
to complying with the code of practice issued by the Equal
Opportunities Commission of Hong Kong. The Group does not
tolerate any form of discrimination on grounds of race, ethnic or
national origins, colour, nationality, religion or belief, sex, sexual
orientation, gender reassignment, marital status, age, disability
or any other protected characteristic and has formulated its
internal employment policies in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations. The Company strives to observe and afford equal
opportunities for, and to prevent discrimination in respect of, all
its employees in various employment stages such as recruitment,
promotion, position transfer and training. Employees are legally
obliged to ensure that no discrimination is rest on the aforesaid
legal grounds, and no aid or permission should be provided
regarding the discrimination. If there is any employee who failed to
comply with the aforesaid policy, the Group will take disciplinary
action against the employee, which the policy in taking disciplinary
action is stipulated in the internal guidelines.
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During the recruitment process, the Group has a comprehensive
assessment system in place, in which only the applicants’
performance and qualifications are considered. Each individual
should be assessed according to their personal capability to carry
out the role. No employee is to be discriminated or victimized for
complaining in good faith of unlawful discrimination or harassment
or giving evidence about such a compliant. Also, the Group verifies
the age of the applicants by checking their identification documents
to avoid any employment of child labour. Failure to comply with the
policy in verifying the age of the applicant may result to disciplinary
action, which includes immediate dismissal. The Group would
immediately terminate his/her contract if any employment of child
labour is discovered. Investigations will also be taken to look into
the causes of the child labouring issue. Meanwhile, the Group
would review the current practices and policies to avoid child and
forced labour. Before the commencement of employment, a job
description outlining the principal accountabilities of the employee
is attached in the letter of employment of every employee, which
also covers matters such as wages, working hours, probation
period, and requirement for notice of termination. Employees are
required to work in accordance with the agreed labour contract
to prevent any forced labour. For resignation and termination
of employee, the Group strictly complies with the Employment
Ordinance of Hone Kong and follows its internal guidelines, which
clearly stated the circumstances and procedures of termination
and dismissal. An exit interview will be conducted by the human
resource personnel to understand the resigned employee’s reason
of leaving for further internal review.

During the Year, the Group did not notice any non-compliance with
the applicable labour laws and regulations in the areas where it
operates and did not face any disciplinary action with respect to
the labour protection issues.
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As at 31 December 2021, there was a total of 85 employees in R-_ZE-—F+-A=+—H FBEHLEHLE
Hong Kong. Detailed numbers of employees by different categories 8 - 2 TRBERIZISHEBRE ABEBHT
was as follows:

Number of Employees

By gender 2 1 Al
Male Eehi 44 61
Female 4 41 59
By age group RE#RA R
30 years old or below 30BR sk AT 21 22
31 to 40 years old 315R 2405% 27 47
41 to 50 years old 4158 25057 21 29
51 years old or above 5153 A £ 16 22
By employment type REBER
Full-time i 84 110
Part-time FRE 1 10
By geographical region 2B B i
Hong Kong B 85 93

During the Year, a total of 67 employees left the Group, and the RAEE  KEBHLB/ZIESBHE  BBEn
overall turnover rate is 44% (2020: 52%). The employee turnover  th = &44% (ZZ =T 4F : 52%) - ANEEIZ I [FLE
rate of the Group by different categories was as follows: AEIDMEBRKLENAT

Turnover Rate TR =E

By gender R
Male B 39% 55%
Female M 49% 49%
By age group BREw AR
30 years old or below 30B% A T 46% 49%
31 t0 40 years old 315% 2 405%, 51% 54%
41 to 50 years old A15R E508%, 32% 51%
51 years old or above 51553 A £ 41% 53%
By geographical region B E B
Hong Kong N 44% 52%
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Remuneration and Promotion

Every year, the Group conducts performance review to evaluate
the progress of employees in achieving their performance
objectives as set at the beginning of each year. The evaluation
of work performance will be agreed among managers and their
subordinates. Employees are encouraged to discuss their progress
towards their career goals and voice out any needs of further
training and education. The performance review allows the Group
to evaluate employees’ capability and potential to take up more
responsibilities in a higher position or transfer to other positions.
The Group will give internal transfer opportunities to employees
who have joined the Group for more than 6 months, in case of any
vacancies, so as to support employees’ career development. The
Group strives to ensure all employees are able to receive equal
opportunity for promotion and clear career path.

Based on the annual performance review, the Group will also adjust
employees’ remuneration, striving to offer employees competitive
remuneration. Salary increment will be awarded in recognition of
employee’s performance, attitude, potential and qualifications, as
well as the Group's profit and market pay rates. Apart from basic
salary, the Group also provides annual discretionary bonus to
employees.

Interests and Benefits for Employees

In order to guarantee adequate rest for employees and promote
the balance between work and life, the Group adopts five-day
workweek and strives to prevent forced labour or overtime
work in the business operations as far as possible. In addition to
public holidays and other holidays prescribed in applicable laws,
employees are also entitled to maternity leave, paternity leave,
examination leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, jury
service leave. The Group normally organises various employee
activities, such as Christmas party, annual dinner and staff birthday
celebrations to enhance team spirit and strengthen the bonding
between employees and the Group. However, in the midst of
the current coronavirus pandemic, the Group limits its employee
activities and gatherings in the Year to prevent the outbreak of the
disease among employees. The Group will continue to build a warm
and harmonious working environment through other means in the
future.
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In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant laws and
regulations, the Group makes contributions to MPF Schemes,
medical insurance, business travel insurance and labour insurance
for employees in Hong Kong. Meanwhile, additional benefits and
reimbursement in terms of rent, commuting for business purposes,
meals are available to employees.

Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to establishing a team with
diverse expertise and assisting its employees in exploring their
potentials. New employees will receive a formal induction before
the commencement of his or her job duties. Also, the Group
has arranged trainings to place an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. Besides,
employees are encouraged to participate in relevant in-house and
external training to further acquire new skills according to the
needs of their position.

The internal trainings received by the employee in the Year mainly
focused on the latest market knowledge and updates. For example,
in-house training on technical analysis and trading mechanism are
conducted to maintain employees’ professionalism and enhance
their customer service skills. Additional trainings and materials
are provided to directors of the Group to ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and
regulatory requirements in relation to the Group’s business. For
external training, eligible employees can be benefited from financial
assistance in aspects such as professional membership and
examinations, so as to support their personal growth and career
advancement.
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Training 3N

Percentage of employees trained" FIEEFEAL

By gender gyl
Male B
Female 4

By category =5
Senior management SRERE
Middle management FREEE
General staff TRBE

Average training hours completed
per employee

By gender gyl
Male B
Female 4

By category =5
Senior management SRERE
Middle management FREEE
General staff TRBE

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group takes into consideration every precaution to establish
a healthy and safe working environment for its employees. The
Group strictly complies with the rules and guidelines stipulated
in the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong,
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Management
is responsible for providing and maintaining a safe working
environment and safe system of work. The Group ensures its
employees have received adequate information, instruction,
training and supervision so as to avoid injury at work. Besides,
the Group has formulated a sound occupational health and safety
policy. Reviews will be conducted with immediate follow-up actions
and improvements whenever necessary.

The Group has its fire safety and emergency evacuation procedures
in place to ensure the safety of all employees and to minimise the
damage and loss of the Group in the event of fire. The evacuation
procedure has clearly stated the duties and responsibilities of fire
marshals, the procedures when discovering a fire and evacuation
routes and assembly locations for different offices. Employees are
required to participate in the annual fire evacuation drill organised
by the property management of the office premises. Through
providing the aforementioned trainings to employees, they become
adequately knowledgeable of the office’s evacuation procedures.
On top of the above, smoking is strictly prohibited in the Group's

premises to minimise the occurrence of fire events.

2 The Group starts to disclose the percentage of employees trained in
the Year.

BEEEFIIEIRE
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100 62
100 64
100 89
100 A4
100 77
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To ensure employees’ safety at work, the Group provides them with
necessary equipment for protection against work-related injuries.
For example, first aid kit is available at the office pantry. In cases of
which employee suffers from an injury at work, one should notify
his or her Department Head and the Human Resources Department
immediately. In addition, guidelines for reporting duty under
typhoon and rainstorms were formulated to provide employees
with guidance on the work arrangement during extreme weather
events, in a bid to ensure employees’ safety when commuting to
and from office.

A clear and effective system for reporting hazards, injuries and
illnesses has been established. During the Year, there were no
work-related fatalities, and no work day was lost as there were no
cases of work-related injury among employees. And the Group did
not notice any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
relating to occupational health and safety in the areas where it
operates and did not face any disciplinary action with respect to
occupational health and safety issues.

In the past three years, the number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred were as follows:

Health and Safety

LT BE
LT (%)

Number of fatalities
Rate of fatalities (%)

Response to Coronavirus Disease 2019

Personal and office hygiene is also another important line of
defence to safeguard employees’ health. The Group has stipulated
internal guidelines such as keeping hands clean by washing
hands frequently, disposing used tissue paper into rubbish bins
with lids and consulting a doctor promptly in case of illness. The
Group has also formulated measures such as regular disinfection,
requiring employees and visitors to wear masks and keeping social
distances from others. Employees, whenever have contacted or are
suspected to have contact with confirmed cases, should not visit
office premises and are required to report to Human Resources
department while consulting a doctor immediately. It is of
paramount importance to provide a virus-free working environment
and to safeguard employee’s health.
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OPERATION MANAGEMENT

Integrity, responsibility and compassion are the foundation stones
the Group uses to build excellence in our operation. The Group has
continued to safeguard the quality of our services with reliable and
accountable management systems and adhered to the principle of
sustainable development at the same time.

Supply Chain Management

As part of its commitment to environmental and corporate
responsibility, the Group attaches great importance to supplier
management and monitors the performances of its suppliers
by formulating internal procedures and measures for managing
environmental and social risks of the supply chain. The Group
undertakes regular performance reviews on the suppliers to ensure
that they do not pose detrimental impacts to the environment and
society. When selecting suppliers, the Group takes into account a
range of criteria including product pricing, product quality, supply
capability, business track record and the services provided by the
suppliers. Suppliers must comply with all relevant local and national
laws and regulations in relation to health and safety, unethical
behaviour, bribery, corruption and other prohibited business
practices. The Group also requires its suppliers to have a written
policy which regulates personal conduct and behaviour of their
employees to minimise its social risks, and to provide an open and
transparent report on their material ESG risks which includes the
measures taken to address those risks.

At the end of the supplier selection process, the Group will compile
a list of approved suppliers to facilitate periodic review. The Group
works closely and regularly with our suppliers in order to review
their backgrounds, business licenses and requisite certifications
and monitor their performance during engagement. Overall,
the environmental and social performances of the suppliers are
essential decision factors in selecting suitable suppliers. Only
suppliers that meet the criteria could be added to the list of
qualified suppliers. During the Year, the Group has engaged 34
suppliers from Hong Kong, mainland China and overseas.

Besides, as green purchasing is adopted in the office, the Group
also prefers purchasing products and selecting services with
minimal impact to the environment whenever possible. For
example, local suppliers or suppliers that are geographically closer
and more accessible are more preferable in order to reduce carbon
footprint. In addition, the Group selects suppliers who supply paper
with recycled content or with paper origin from sustainable forest
as far as possible.
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Quality Control

The Group is committed to providing quality and customer-centred
financial services while expanding its varieties of investment
products. The Group has set up internal control procedures to
protect the Group, its customers and employees from financial l0ss
arising from theft or fraud, and other dishonest acts, professional
misconduct or omissions. All of its services are in strict accordance
with its internal compliance policy and all applicable laws and
regulations. Pre-approval on trades are required before execution
in which the rationales, relationships between counterparties,
execution price, and validity of transactions will be assessed. There
will also be specialised personnel who is responsible for post
trade monitoring on error trades so as to keep track of the trade
performances. The Group has employed adequate resources, both
financial and operational, and has in place procedures necessary
for the proper conduct of its business in assuring its service quality.

Emphasis on Customers

The Group believes that customers’ opinions are the driving force
of its success. Our complaint handling policy and procedures are
strictly in accordance with the Code of Conduct of the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”) to ensure that customers’
opinions are handled in a timely and appropriate manner. The
Group also complies with the Financial Dispute Resolution Scheme
for managing and resolving disputes administered by the Financial
Dispute Resolution Centre in full and is bounded by the dispute
resolution process therein.
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Channels of complaints are open to all shareholders and potential
shareholders; customers and consumers; suppliers and contractors
and all directors and employees of the Group. Complaint officers
are the frontline personnel appointed to handle customers’
complaints. All customers’ complaints will be considered impartially
and efficiently verbally and in written form in accordance with
internal procedures and guidelines. Complaints will be recorded
and maintained by both Customer Services Department and
Compliance Department for record keeping purpose. Relevant
investigation and improvement procedures will be conducted
and unlawful or unethical conduct will be investigated promptly.
Where if the complaint indicates that the Group may be in breach
of laws, rules and regulations and codes of the SFC or there
are any fraudulent activities, the SFC must be notified in writing
after seeking internal or external legal advice where appropriate.
During the Year, 1 complaint regarding its services was received
by the Group (2020: 2). The Group followed the complaint handling
procedures and conducted detailed investigations for both cases.
The Group believes that customer’s opinions help us to identify the
needs of customers and the community, and the Group could make
further improvements by strengthening policies in those aspects.

Privacy and Intellectual Property Protection

As a financial service provider, protecting customers’ privacy
and safeguarding market fairness have core roles to play in the
establishment of a long-term and mutually trusted relationship
with customers. The Group continues to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations including but not limited to the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong. The Group has incorporated
appropriate use of proprietary information into code of conduct for
staff to follow and protect all personal data of customers rigorously.
Customers’ personal data will be collected accurately in a lawful
and fair way only for directly related purposes and will be kept for a
period no longer than necessary, and customers are guaranteed to
have access to their personal data and be able to make corrections
if it is inaccurate. Moreover, the Group implemented two-factor
authentication to protect user data from being accessed by
unauthorised person.
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The Group respects and protects intellectual property, and strictly
complies with the relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Copyright Ordinance and Trade Marks Ordinance of Hong Kong,
to eliminate any alleged infringement. The Group stipulated the
terms and conditions relating to confidentiality of information in the
employment contracts, requiring employees to undertake not to
disclose any information, technical data, trade secrets, know-how
or other information to any third parties without written consent
of the Group. Also, the Group only uses licensed software, and all
software must comply with the license agreement to avoid and
prevent from infringement of others’ intellectual property rights.

During the Year, the Group did not notice any non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations relating to privacy and
intellectual property protection in the areas where it operates and
did not face any disciplinary action with respect to these issues.

Anti-corruption

The Group upholds the highest level of integrity and ethical
standards through strict compliance with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance in Hong Kong, and any other applicable laws and
regulations. Our code of conduct includes the general framework
of relevant anti-bribery laws, rules and regulations and acts as the
guidance for employees to perform proper practices in the dealing
in securities, futures and in the provision of investment advice
or other activities. Employees are also prohibited to solicit and
accept advantages without prior approval by the Group. To avoid
situations which may constitute bribery, employees should make
a declaration to the Group for any actual or potential conflict of
interests.
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Besides, there is a whistle-blowing policy in place to provide a
channel for all shareholders, customers, consumers, suppliers,
contractors, directors and employees to report misconduct and
possible breaches of code of conduct. If employee suspects a
policy, practice or activity is in violation of the law, he or she should
file a written disclosure to the Audit Committee. All reports received
will be recorded, investigated and handled with appropriate
sensitivity and confidentiality, while every effort will be made to
protect the whistle-blowers. In the Year, anti-corruption training,
which covered anti-money laundering and counter-financing of
terrorism, were offered to employees. The Group also circulated
the materials about anti-money laundering and counter-financing of
terrorism for the purpose of making employees aware of the legal
requirement, the reporting of suspicious transactions relating to
money laundering and their personal statutory obligation.

During the Year, the Group did not notice any non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations relating to anticorruption
and did not face any disciplinary action with respect to corruption
issues. No concluded cases regarding corrupt practices were
brought against the Group or its employees (2020: Nil).

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group highly values making contribution back to the society
through available resources and efforts. Whenever possible,
the Group supports local institutions and non-governmental
organisations through donations to aid their community services.
For instance, the Group has made donation to Hong Kong
Rehabilitation Power, a local institution which aids individuals with
disabilities, in supporting local healthcare services in the Year.
Employees are also encouraged to volunteer at different charity
organisations to show support for the community. Furthermore,
the Group offers channels and platforms of communication to its
stakeholders and communities to understand their motivations,
goals, and needs through continuous conversation, so as to utilise
resources in the most effective means.
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APPENDIX: CONTENT INDEX OF “ENVIRONMENTAL, ffi& :[RHE - S REABREES K
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE" B&L|

ESG Indicators Overview Sections Page no./Explanation/

RE HER BE =42 Reasons for Omissions
BRIEE BER/ e/ ERREHE

Environmental

RE

Aspect A1; General disclosure Environmental Management 74

Emissions

BEA1T : —RRBE REER 74

23587

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emission Management 75
emissions data.

BRENEEALY  FREREREANEREE R E R 75

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope  Emission Management 75
2) greenhouse gas emissions and, where
appropriate, intensity.

BREENEEAL2 BEE(HE) RegREZ (BE2) RERE FHDER 75
HREBE (MaE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where Waste Management 77
appropriate, intensity.

BRENEEA3 CEELEEENEERTE (WEHE) o EYE R 77

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, ~ Waste Management 77
where appropriate, intensity.

MRENEEA4 EPELAEZEEDEERTE (WEHE) o EYE R 77

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and ~ Environmental Objectives 73
steps taken to achieve them.

BREMEEAS WS UNHEREERERMMERNS RERERZ 73
B o

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and Environmental Objectives 73

non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) and steps
taken to achieve them.

HRANESAL HIAENREZTEVMRENTDERRLE RRER 73
BURERBIIRRA SR -
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ESG Indicators

BE-HER
ERER

Aspect A2:
Use of Resources

[EHEA2 :
EREH
KPI A2.1

BEREMIEEA2.1

KPI A2.2
BREMIEEA2.2
KPI A2.3

BREMIEEA2.3

KPI A2.4

BREMIEEA2.4

KPI A2.5

BRENREFRA2S

HERE

VLN
BT
Ooverview

BE

General disclosure
—REE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type in total and intensity.

RERESMBERR/IRERERERS

*8
A==
'/jzu‘}ﬂ

X
I

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BRKENEE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) Environmental Objectives,

set and steps taken to achieve them.

Hl R R s R AR E R
BRERMARROTER

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

et SREGE R KR LR B EAREE - &2
HRAKREEERERMMROALE -
Total packaging material used for finished

products and, if applicable, with reference
to per unit produced.

BN RETARENBNEEN (WER) &
EEBMGE -

Sections
=11

Environmental Management

S f

RIEEE

Energy Conservation

Water Conservation

GEONEENI

Energy Conservation

RIRER - HEHER

Environmental Objectives,

Water Conservation

RRBE  HHMAK

Use of Resources

BEREM
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Page no./Explanation/
Reasons for Omissions
BER/ e/ BRRE

74

74

79

79

80
80
73,79

73,79

73, 80

73,80

Not applicable to the
Group.
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ESG Indicators
BRE HER

ERER

Aspect A3:

The Environment
and Natural
Resources

BHEA3 :
BRERXARER

KPI A3.1

BEEMER A3.1

Aspect A4:
Climate Change

BHEA4 :
RIRE

KPI A4.1

BREMIEEAL

Social

He
Aspect B1:
Employment

fETH B1:

EE

KPI B1.1
BREMIEZB11

KPI B1.2

BRAMEEB2

Ooverview
BE

General disclosure

—RIWE

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

HAXBEDHRERRAERNEAY
ELERRERARYENTY -

General disclosure

—RIWE

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

BB ERAETERTENEARE
HBESEREEMMERENITE

General disclosure

—RBE

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.
BRI EEEAR - FRAMN KRB D
B)E B A o

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

BRI FERARN KRB DB EBRE
Hh& o
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REEE

Green Operation

RELE

Environmental Management

REER

Responding to Climate Change

i

2R AIRE

Employment and Labour

Practices

ERNSBHER

Employment Policies

EfRER R

Employment Policies

BRI R

Page no./Explanation/
Reasons for Omissions
BER/ R/ BERRE

74
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ESG Indicators

BE-HER

ERER

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety

[EHE B2:
BRERZZ

KPI B2.1

BRENEEB2.1

KPI B2.2

R ENIEEBR2.2
KPI B2.3

BRENMIEEB2.3

Aspect B3:
Development and
Training

fEH B3 :
BRERIEZI

KPI B3.1
MR EMIEEB3.1

KPI B3.2

BREMIEEBS3.2

Ooverview
BE

General disclosure

—RBE

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

RBE=FEF (BRBEFRE) A TIEH
EMILTHAB R XK -

Lost days due to work injury.

RIGEKIEEE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HARRMNBERFERAR2EE UK
MBRITRERTE

General disclosure

—REE

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.

RURREEENBENNZIEEA DL -

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.

RURREEERNE D  BHES
Al & B 2 o

FERX

mo
XA

A

Sections
=11

Employment and Labour
Practices

ERNSHER

Occupational Health and
Safety

Bximiize

Occupational Health and
Safety

BxBREZS

Occupational Health and
Safety

BxiEmiize

Employment and Labour
Practices

ERENSBHER

Development and Training

BRRIF

Development and Training

BRI
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ESG Indicators Overview Sections Page no./Explanation/
R HER WE =4} Reasons for Omissions
BRIEE BER/ e/ BRRE
Aspect B4: General disclosure Employment and Labour 82

Labour Standards Practices

[EEB4 : — MR EREMEHERE 82

%I EH|

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Employment Policies 82

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

BREENEEBL1 HlRABBREJNERETRARHET (EBRECK 82
B FE B ©

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Employment Policies 82
practices when discovered.

HRENEEBL2 HAEZRERBEAREREBABELMEK ERBE 82
HE) P8R o

Aspect B5: General disclosure Operation Management 39

Supply Chain

Management

[EEBS : —RRBE HEERE 89

HEEEE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management 89

BREMIEEBS.T HHEESOHEEDHE - HERER 89

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management 89

suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

BMREMIEEBS.2 WU ERERAEERNES mERTE HERERE 89
BIEPIMEIEREEE UREBEANH
IRERAE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management 89
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

MREANESBS3 HIANSNHEENREIMERRY HEREE 89
BHIARBREEHIMMITRERE -
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ESG Indicators

BE-HER

ERER

KPI B5.4

R ENIEEBS.4

Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility

[ETH B6 :

EmEE

KPI B6.1

R EMIE1EB6.1

KPI B6.2

BRENIEEB6.2

KPI B6.3

BB EMIEEB6.3
KPI B6.4
R ENIEEB6.4

KPI B6.5

MR EMIESB6.S

Ooverview
BE

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

AR BEE RS EBRERER MR
BEBOIARBBEHINRTRERTE -

General disclosure

—RBE

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

EENEEXEMBHTRL 2 HEERE
HmAGER B -

Number of products and service-related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

PR BE o S AR 765 O 452 o 0 B A % g
FE o

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

i g R RIS MR EERBRIED -
Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
EHlEESREFBEREMABLOER
Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BB E BBRERALBEOR -
BAMITRERG X -

DA K 48

Sections
=11

Supply Chain Management

HERE R

Operation Management

mR

HiEER

Quality Control

B e

Emphasis on Customers

BREP

Privacy and Intellectual
Property Protection

FLEE R AMBRERRE
Quality Control

B E7H

Privacy and Intellectual
Property Protection

MR AESERRE

Page no./Explanation/
Reasons for Omissions

R/ e/ ERRE
89
89
89
89

Not applicable to the Group
as there were no products
sold.

ARYEEREL - TE
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90

90

91
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90

90

91
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ESG Indicators Overview Sections Page no./Explanation/
R HER WE =41 Reasons for Omissions
BRIEE BER/ e/ BRRE
Aspect B7: General disclosure Operation Management 89

Anti-corruption

fEm B7: — MR LEERE 89

RES

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding  Anti-corruption 92

corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.

BMRENIEEB7.1 NRESHBUFTAKEEERETIEE RES 92
ERESFDAREMEE RFARER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption 92

whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BREMEER7.2 fHWlMHEERERES  URBERT RES 92
RERRE -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption 92
provided to directors and staff.

BEENIEER7.3 HilREEREIRMBNREREI - R&E= 92

Aspect B8: General disclosure Community Investment 93

Community

Investment

fEHBS : —RE HERE 93

HERE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community Investment 93

BRENEERS1 FiepEE - HERE 93

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community Investment 93

BMRENIEEBS2 AT ITHBMBARER - HERE 93
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
E5E © +852 2218 8288 BE

{&H : +852 2815 2239 :j:E‘ﬁiEEP1 1158
www.bdo.com.hk kL2518

TO THE MEMBERS OF MASON GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mason
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 110 to 279, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of interests in associates
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of interests in
associates amounted to HK$315.40 million, which represented
approximately 6.56% of the Group’s total assets.

The Group is required to assess at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indication that the carrying amounts
of interests in associates may be impaired. Should indication of
impairment exists, an impairment assessment will be performed
accordingly. The recoverable amounts of interests in associates are
assessed by value-in-use (“VIU calculation”) model which are based
on future discounted cash flows on a cash generating unit basis.

Management has performed impairment assessment with
reference to the reports issued by the valuation specialist and
concluded an impairment loss of HK$194.51 million on the interests
in associates during the year.

Refer to notes 4(e), 4(0) and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
interests in associates included:

— Evaluating the valuation specialist’'s competence, capabilities
and objectivity,

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies, including the VIU calculation, used by
the valuation specialist and management to estimate the
recoverable amount of the CGUS;

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge and understanding of the businesses and
markets;

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgets; and

— Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used in the valuation.

Recoverability assessment of loan receivables,
trade and other receivables

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan receivables and trade and
other receivables amounted to HK$173.17 million and HK$318.54
million as at 31 December 2021 respectively, which represented
10.23% of the Group's total assets.

Loss allowances for these receivables are based on management'’s
estimate of the expected credit losses (“ECLs") to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit loss
experience, aging of overdue receivables, customers’ repayment
history and customers’ financial position and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management judgement.

Assessment of the recoverability of these receivables and
recognition of loss allowance for ECLS are inherently subjective and
requires significant management judgement, hence, we identified
the recoverability of these receivables as a key audit matter.

Refer to notes 4(h), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of

loan receivables, and trade and other receivables included:

— Obtaining an understanding on how the loss allowances
for these receivables is estimated by the management and
assessing the management’'s process in determining the

estimated future cash flows of these receivables;

— ldentifying any of these receivables with delay in payments
during the year and evaluating the management’s assessment
of the recoverability of each of these receivables with
reference to the status of each of these individual borrowers

and the Group’s debt collection actions;

— Assessing the reasonableness of loss allowances for these
receivables with reference to the credit history including
individual’s personal credit rating reports, delay in payments,
interest settlement records, subsequent settlements and

aging analysis of these receivables;

— Evaluating the historical accuracy of the management'’s
assessment of impairment for these receivables, on a sample
basis, by examining the actual write-offs, the reversals of
previously recorded allowance and new allowances recorded
in the current year in respect of these receivables at the end

of the previous financial year; and

—  Reviewing the appropriateness of ECL three stage model and
loss allowance of ECLs on these receivables and challenging
management regarding their reasons for not considering a

lifetime ECL against any credit impaired balances.
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Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and through other comprehensive
income classified as level 2 and level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2021, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted to
approximately HK$1,892.22 million, which represented 42.87% of
the Group’s net assets. Furthermore, as at 31 December 2021,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and other
comprehensive income classified as Level 2 and 3 fair value
amounting to approximately HK$942.98 million and HK$16.25 million
respectively.

For valuation, management engaged valuation specialist to
apply valuation techniques to determine the fair values of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and other
comprehensive income that are not quoted in active markets.
These valuation techniques, in particular those that included
significant unobservable inputs, involved subjective judgements
and assumptions. The sensitivity of the assumptions used may
have material impact on the valuation of these financial assets.

Refer to notes 4(h), 22, 23, 30, and 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of financial assets
included:

— Obtaining and examining the terms of the financial assets and
relevant agreements in relation to the financial assets,

— Evaluating the valuation specialist’s competence, capabilities
and objectivity;,

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the valuation specialist and
management to estimate the fair value of financial assets;

— Challenging the reasonableness of key parameters used
based on our knowledge and understanding of the financial
assets; and

— Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used in the valuation.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021

IH
48
=
o]
o

EEERMBEEMERREFBER

— BDBEEEMBEERGBMBEEZM

) PAC S

—  AHMERBEBEROTE  EOREFBIE

— HEREZRLREEEGGAUBEEAR
EFRA 2 AETTNERBRZEAN

— REEZHVBEENTHER
AR &

28

— ZBANGHEERBHSESFERFER
ETFARRBRESEE -

FHERFHHMEN
BEAWHMERAREM HtENRE &
RAFRPARZ AR BT REFEHHHRE
RESHULTE D 2B RS -

EEHRAMBRRERZERLARNREEME
B EETHHEMERBEREATANZESS

/1

RBEZGEMBHREMNS  TEETRHER
R HMEEREMER RS BEGRAMBRE
RESEEBZBARPER 2 ERIFEERTR
KUTFEEAERBRIML - WMESZTEERE %fﬂ?
B TIER AL E M E R R E KRR B -
EREZEE - TERU U EEMNBIEERS -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBENRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number P01220

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+_A=t+—HItFE

Turnover

Operating income

Other income

Exchange gain/(loss), net

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Commission and brokerage expenses
Employee benefits expenses

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss on financial assets
for expected credit loss

Loss on disposal of interest in a
subsidiary

Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial
instruments
Impairment loss on goodwil
Impairment loss on interests in
associates

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before taxation
Income tax expenses

Loss for the year
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10& 11
17

16
36

16

16

37

18

20
17

10
20

10
13

4,012,509 1,274,364
604,426 528,955
10,984 124,390
3,720 (3,385)
(172,056) (138,509)
(194,818) (154,038)
(72,740) (145,793)
(10,460) (19,602)
(11,212) (17,792)
(14,562) (18,467)
(10,022) (11,305)
(77,520) =
(205,524) (67,165)
(4,644) =
(210,435) 107,345
= (22,807)
(194,508) (191,346)
(7,820) (76,796)
(118,771) (116,423)
(5,811) (17,881)
(44,621) 53,497
(736,394) (187,122)
(2) (2,735)
(736,396) (189,857)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation

of foreign subsidiaries
Share of other comprehensive
income of an associate

Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or 10ss

Changes in fair value of defined
benefit scheme at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Changes in fair value of equity
instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss per share
Basic and diluted
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Notes
g3

20

23

19

19

15

2021
—_E-—F

HK$'000
FTERx

(9,347) 36,921
1,672 12,088
2,286 2,514

(83,908) 277,582
(89,297) 329,105
(825,693) 139,248
(733,623) (140,711)
(2,773) (49,146)
(736,396) (189,857)
(822,373) 187,875
(3,320) (48,627)
(825,693) 139,248

HK(1.65) cent
(1.65)7& 1L

HK(0.32) cent
(0.32)7%& 1L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

As At 31 December 2021
RZE—_—F+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interests in associates

Loan receivables

Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortised cost

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or 10ss

Derivative financial instruments

Loan receivables

Reverse repurchase agreements

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverables

Fixed bank deposits

Bank balances and cash
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16
36
17
18
20
25
26
31

22

23
24

21

22
30
25
32
26

27
27

2021
—EB-—£F

HK$'000
TERT

2020
—E-FTF
HK$'000
TH T

204,170 315,321
14,201 29,012
82,015 101,621
56,930 56,930

315,399 885,724
- 216,852

10,028 178,504
3,684 7,924
138,208 197,028
942,975 1,026,883
- 153,996
1,767,610 3,169,795
8,962 11,064
788,745 819,708
22,295 19,529
173,174 240,964
- 217,641
308,511 404,868
- 59
551,457 1,194,299
1,185,994 848,130
3,039,138 3,756,262




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AP HMRR R

As At 31 December 2021
RZE-_—F+-A=+—H

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Repurchase agreements
Derivative financial instruments
Lease liabilities

Net defined benefit obligations
Tax payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Net defined benefit obligations
Long-term liabilities

NET ASSETS
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28
29
32
30
36
35

31
36
35

2021
—E-—F

HK$'000
TER

2020
—E-FTF
HK$'000
THET

270,729 1,167,117
18,357 16,056

= 239,479

= 19,521

12,288 16,202
2,345 -
10,302 8,995
314,021 1,467,370
2,725,117 2,288,892
4,492,727 5,458,687
26,935 33,823
3,649 15,901

= 7,613

47,967 468
78,551 57,805
4,414,176 5,400,882

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE

113



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E MR R

As At 31 December 2021
RZE—_—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T

Capital and reserves BERK#E
Share capital A& A< 33 6,142,962 6,142,962
Reserves % 34 (1,778,175) (953,398)

Equity attributable to equity holders AR al#EZFEHAE A

of the Company JE (5 #E 2 4,364,787 5,189,564
Non-controlling interests FEE R 19 49,389 211,318
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 4,414,176 5,400,882

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 HMEHFER - - —F=F=+BH&ENRZET

March 2022 and signed on its behalf by % WAHTIREKREE
Han Ruixia Zhang Zhenyi
BLE RiIR&E
Director Director
EEa EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE—T——

FTA=—HLERE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAAREREEARL
Reserves
it
Foreign
currency Non-
Share translation ] Other  Accumulated Total controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve losses reserves Sub-total interests
BARENA
S Ab2E
e EXGE LON: 11 EfbGfE i ER RELE Nt FERES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn Tz Tz TEn ThT Tz T
At 1 January 2021 W-8--%-F-8 6,142,962 (60,796) 449,749 6,194 (1,348,545) (953,398) 5,189,564 211,318 5,400,882
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (7133623)  (733,623)  (733,623) @2773)  (736,3%)
Other comprehensive income EREMZEUA
for the year
Items that wil be reclassified RRBEFIEERRIEE
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of  SESNHBA FHAEH
foreign subsidiaries BiZE - (8,800) - - - (8,800) (8,800) (547) (9,347)
Share of other comprehensive income. 15— B4 AT
of an associate E2ERA = 1,672 = = = 1,672 1672 = 1,672
[tems that will not be reclassified ARBTEENIEZ
subsequently to proft or loss EnlEd
Changes in fair value of defined benefit ~ REFIsTEIRA 4 B3t A
scheme at far value through other -~ ER2EMA( H&?B;
comprefensive income (‘FVOCI) “H\M%MM)
2ANER - - 2,286 - - 2,286 2,286 - 2,286
Changes in fair value of equity %’éfmlﬁfm FON-ti)
instruments at FVOC 2AMAZAAERS - - (83,908) = = (83,908) (83,908) = (83,908)
Total other comprehensive income  EREH2EKALE
for the year = (7,128) (81,622) = - (88,750) (88,750) (547) (89,297)
Total comprehensive income for the £R2ERAEE
year - (7128) (81,622) - (733,623) (822,373) (822,373) (3,320) (825,693)
Transactions with HERKEARS
equity holders
Deemed disposal of nterests in REHERBARER
subsidiaries with loss of control (kEfRHE) 19() = = - (4,099 4,099 - - (149.497)  (149,497)
Acquisttion of additional interestina I -HKBARZBIMER
subsidiary without change of control (BT B 5 E) 190) - - = = (2.404) (2.404) (2,408) (9.112) (11,516)
Total transactions with HERKAARSER
equity holders - - - (4,099) 1,695 (2,404) (2,404) (158,609) (161,013)
At 31 December 2021 W-8--%+-f=1-A 6,142,962 (67,924) 368,127 2,095 (2,080,473)  (1,778,175) 4,364,787 49,389 4,414,176
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mMEEREE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+_A=t+—HItFE

Attributable to holders of the Company
A
Reserves
1
Retail

C profits/ Non-
Share anlatio FVoCl Other Treasury  (@ccumulated Total controlling
capital esen reserve reserve shares [osses) resenves Sub-total nterests

B ; Y .
Notes HKS'000 0 0 HK$'000 $ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 TR AR THE TR TR TR B TR

At 1 January 2020 RZBZ%F-f-B 6,142,962 (109,286) 169,653 6,194 (1102 (120732 (1141273) 5,001,689 261993 5,269,682

Loss for the year ERERE - S S S S (140711) (140711) (140711) (49,146) (189.857)

Other comprehensive income for £REf2ERA
the year

Items that wil be reclassified ARBEHEEEEI B
Subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation 54N BA R E

of foreign subsiciaries EXER - 36,402 - - - - 3402 3402 519 3921
Share of other comprehensive HMe-HEERANL
income of an associate t2ERA - 12,088 - - - - 12,088 12,088 - 12,088

Items that will not be reclassified  E##TFEEHFET

subsequently to profit or loss FalER
Changesin fair value of defined R BAHEIRAA B A

benefit scheme at far value EHE2ERA(BARE

through other comprehensive AR ERAL

income (‘FVOCI") ZhnfEE - - 2514 - - - 2514 2514 - 2514
Changes in fair value of equity BRIARAAENALL

instruments at FVOCI eSOV L E) - L 5 5 - W TR - WA

Total other comprehensive FREBRZENAEE
income for the year = 4849 280,0% = = = 328,586 328,586 519 329105

Total comprehensive income for £a2EUALE
the year - 4849 280,0% - - (140,711) 187875 187875 48,627) 139,248

Transactions with HERKEARS
equity holders

Dividend paid tonon-controling 2 EREFHERER

interest 19 - - - - - - - - (8,048) (8,048)
Cancellation of repurchased shares  #EEIER R 3 - - - - 1102 (1102 - - - -
Total transactions with AESHEARSLE

equity holders - - = - 1102 (1,102) S = (8,048) (8,048)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-25+-8=1-R 6,142,962 (60,796) 449,749 6,194 = (1,348 549) (953,398) 5,189,564 211318 5,400,882
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ T —F+-_A=+—HItFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Exchange (gain)/loss, net
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Impairment loss on financial assets
for expected credit loss

Loss on disposal of interest in a
subsidiary
Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary without change of
control

Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial
instruments

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment
Impairment loss on goodwil
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on interests

in associates

Interest income

(other than from loan receivables)
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Provision of pension costs

Loss on termination of leases

RERK

BRI A& 18

B (W) BRI
B EE#H

WE - BERRETE

EREEERE

HEME  BERREZ
B 18

B EERTAREEREN

B 1R
HE—EH B A RS
B8

Wi B — RO B 2 7 2 SO
HE2% (JR L 8 58 )

ERMIAZAREEE/
(Yrzs) 88
W B MR AR EE 1R

BEREEE
BEERERE

N NIk 5l
B 1R

B KA
(TEERERKER)
BE KA

FEILEE 2 N R XA
BAREABS M
BEZREBA

BRRS AR
RIFHE 2 B8

17

16
36

16

37

19(b)

16
18
17

20

10
20

35
36

(736,394)
(3,720)
10,460

11,212
14,562

10,022

205,524

4,644

(11,516)

210,435

77,520

7,820

194,508

(5,923)
5,811
44,621

(42,312)
(1,356)

(187,122)
3,385
19,602

17,792
18,467

11,305

67,165

(107,345)

22,807
76,796

191,346

(29,604)
17,881
(53,497)

(10,169)
3,008
9,829

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+_A=t+—HItFE

2021
B
Notes HK$'000
i3 FET
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
Inventories FE 1,575 4,133
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABRZ
through profit or loss MGEE (124,041) (557,291)
Financial assets at amortised cost LB HK AT B 2 BT
BE 148,941 76,571
Derivative financial instruments TESmIEA (22,288) 2
Loan receivables FEWE 255,179 366,367
Trade and other receivables B 5 kEEWIKIE (13,504) 104,073
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E RN FKIE (815,937) (588,329)
Reverse repurchase and [ =) [E] 88 J% (2] B 15 7
repurchase agreements (21,119) 444,771
Fixed bank deposits RITE TR 627,111 (199,274)
Contract liabilities AaNEaE 2,301 (510)
Contribution paid to defined ENRERBMEARE
benefit pension plans ETEIHK 35 (1,950) (3,9006)
Cash generated from/(used in) BB (FTA)RE
operations 32,186 (281,747)
Tax paid BHIE (334) (238)
Interest received (other than from BEUF B
loan receivables) (TBRERKER) 6,574 29,980

Net cash generated from/(used & EKE (FiA)
in) operating activities e EEE 38,426 (252,005)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ T —F+-_A=+—HItFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property,

REXK
BEDE BENMERHE

Notes

Kt

2021
—_E-—F

HK$'000
FTERx

plant and equipment 16 (433) (4,148)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BELEZEMS

plant and equipment I8 3,627 749
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE 17 (211) (4,636)
Dividend received from BlemTARE

financial instrument 45,413 7,068
Dividends received from associates & Y & A 7 A & 20 6,431 23,355
Net cash inflow from disposal of a HE—HNBARNRS

subsidiary MAFEE 37 268,000 _
Net cash generated from RETHME

investing activities REFE 322,827 22,388
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE 39(b)
Repayment of bank loans and other  EEBITER R EME K

loans - (294,750)
Dividend paid to non-controlling DRI T IEE R E ==

interests - (8,048)
Interest paid EARFLE 10 (4,030) (17,881)
Repayment of principal portion of EBEHEaELSID

the lease liabilities (17,662) (27,115)
Net cash used in financing METEFARSEH

activities (21,692) (347,794)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HRERAELZEFEY=

and cash equivalents 2 OR ) FEE 339,561 (577,411)
cash and cash equivalents at wEHIZEER

the beginning of the reporting RE%EY

period 39(@) 848,130 1,405,457
Effect of exchange rate changes EZXSE ¥ & (1,697) 20,084
cash and cash equivalents WEHRZEER

at the end of the reporting BEEEY  BR1T

period, represented by bank HEHEES

balances and cash 39@) 1,185,994 848,130
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0|

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

1. GENERAL —RER
Mason Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited EREBERERAR ([AKRAF]) ARE
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares BAMAKI 2 BRAR - HRMDER S
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ERGARDRE ([BRFT]) £ AR
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and Al Z M =R & B ¥ 2 A i
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed TECFFERECATEFREE -
in the corporate information of the annual report for year AEEKEWB AR 2 EEEBHMNER
2021. The principal activities of the Group and its subsidiaries B BRI FIRK9 o
are described in notes 9 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL EREBMBEHREER (FREK

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group:

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R R Y &
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued) WEER ] 2
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) EEBEMEERERNITET N
issued but are not yet effective RIGFTEBMBERELER
The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially AN AT RE B AR [ B S ARk A R 2 BT
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been A ISR BB SIS ERIE ER
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early MR REB B MARERERIREHF
adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention W AEBBRBENZFENER
is to apply these changes on the date they become AHifERZSEE) -

RMBEUMBREEN (EREME

effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BRSHENST  BABHIEARDR
Current or Non-current and ZIBRTR ERBREEE
HK Interpretation 5 (2020), REESR(ZE
Presentation of Financial —Z5) - 25
Statements — Classification by BERE —BX
the Borrower of a Term Loan AHBESREX
that Contains a Repayment on BREFZEH
Demand Clause’ ERz N
Amendments to HKAS Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ ERGHENSIRE SHRERE
1 and HKFRS Practice BRMBEEEA
Statement 2 EBRAEEIRL
EHES
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting ERGERES Y SitEiEE
Estimates? EHES
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BRGHENER, RE-QHMELE
and Arising from a Single BRI ERBERENE
Transaction’ THE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; BRGHENEGE  9E BEREE:
Proceeds before Intended Use' ZIERTAR BT RRAZ AR
HE'
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BRCHENEIR  BREAN—ET
fulfilling a Contract’ ZIEFTAR BHZHA
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BB TR R BAER =
Framework' EIRZEFTAR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRMBREE RAEEHABEAT
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its (0 G FEELELH
Associate or Joint Venture? #8085 BEHERTE
(ZF—8%)2
EHES
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ERYERSE  RRAY
B17%
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®* BRI EREER Rimawt
ENVE AR
Annual Improvements to - Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9 BB RE RS BB REER
HKFRSs 2018-2020 and HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41 RZZ-N\FZE E15% - BEHE
—E-TEY AR F95 -
FEE R ]|
ENAS N )

i EINA )
Z’SW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0|

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B Z-_—Ft+-A=t—HI=FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWWERUKREERN(HBHK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) WmEEL]) &)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) BEEMERERERVHT RN

122

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

BIETERBYBREEN®)
! it il Sy Bl = I R £

January 2022. M2 FEEE AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ? RZEZ=F—A—HBxHEH
January 2023. M2 FEEE AR

3 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the
sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined.

¢ As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and

HK Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B Z-_—F+t-A=t—RHI=FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWERUKREERN(HBHH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) WmEEL]) &)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) EBEEMERERERVHET N

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

RETERBUBREEN &)
EREM RN REEBYHK
BEENEBQEF2HR ZER]
N ERTBERHKE
HEEABREBRBERENSR
BERER > MIERE TR EFTBR - i
BERERVERRAEMEN —FHZ
B @ BRERAIAAEAME
ERAMBRRNEIBEEREREZ
EMBMKRPTELHORE - BIZES
HEREMBEK - BEIFRM % RS 2R
BB RNER2RZETARMAKE
2R G BRI ERMIE
BEIEHES] -

BERETERFER 2 BT A
BEHEE ES
ZEEFAER AT EP R
BEREE 2 HNER G - EFHEFHRE
RUBHRDFEFETEEUENE
BEH - ZFER AT MBE RN
ERFERMEBABRSHE G
ate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0|

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B Z-_—Ft+-A=t—HI=FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWWERUKREERN(HBHK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) WmEEL]) &)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) BEEMERERERVHT RN

124

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B Z-_—F+t-A=t—RHI=FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWERUKREERN(HBHH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) WmEEL]) &)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) EBEEMERERERVHET N

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope
of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

RETEBUBREER (@)
BRETEREI7RZETH —
BEMEN —BITENZRE

IERTAETH - [BITAKHMRA] 21
[RAMERAROKA] - BANE
BEARRB RO A A A R B (T A KM B
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SHEFREN KRN S (10
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HEAERE G EREIREER K
BRHNETRAEEMFERAE
T-EBNEE (AR BRERE
Z89) — REF2IRHBHEAN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B Z-_—Ft+-A=t—HI=FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWWERUKREERN(HBHK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) WmEEL]) &)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) BEEMERERERVHT RN

126

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011), Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'
interests in the new associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020,
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS
16 and HKAS 41

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

o HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS
1 to measure cumulative translation differences
using the amounts reported by its parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

o HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the 10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether
to derecognise a financial liability, explaining that
only fees paid or received between the entity
and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on other’s behalf
are included.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020,
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS

16 and HKAS 41 (Continued)

o HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lIllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are

illustrated in that example.

o HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using

a present value technique.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of

them is unlikely.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ot B HR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T-
3.

4.

—F+ A=t AR

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and the
provisions of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of financial statements. In
addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The Company has delivered the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 to the
Registrar of Companies as required by section 662(3) of,
and Part 3 of Schedule 6 to, the Companies Ordinance
and will deliver the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 in due course.

The Company's auditor has reported on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for both
years. The auditor’s reports were unqualified; did not
include a reference to any matters to which the auditor
drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying its
reports; and did not contain a statement under sections
406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Companies Ordinance.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of its subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0|

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@) Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests (the “NCI”) are presented,
separately from equity holders of the Company, in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The NCIs in the acquiree, that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
This choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the NCls. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and the non-controlling interest
even if this results in the non-controlling interest having
a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity holders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interest (Continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest determined at the date when control is lost and
(ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amount previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed
subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained
in the former subsidiary and any amount owed by or to
the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial
asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.

Business combination

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs.

The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0|

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—
4.

—F+ A=t AR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

] Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

4.

(c)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
which is presented within these notes, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in associates are accounted
for under the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses
when the Group's share of losses of the investee equals
or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the
investee, which includes any long term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or
joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such
goodwill is included in interests in associates. On the
other hand, any excess of the Group's share of its net
fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of investment is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives as set out
below from the date on which they are available for use
and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method. Where parts of
an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Over the lease
terms or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Computer and office equipment 2-10 years
Motor vehicles and yacht 4-10 years
Freehold land Indefinite
Building 50 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised. Freehold land
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
No depreciation is provided for freehold land.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at costs less
any accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated

useful lives as follows:

Brand names

Licenses and trading lights

Trademarks

Customer and franchisee
relationships

Computer software and systems

Both the period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.

Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they
do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above. Intangible assets with indefinite useful

life are tested for impairment at least annually.
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10 years — indefinite
7 years — indefinite

5-10 years
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments

4.

)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sale
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the as set and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at fair value through OCI. Debt
investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"):
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria
for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

4.

)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

4.

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowance for ECLS on
trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured
at FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date: and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

Loss allowance for ECLs on trade receivables
arising from the segment of manufacture of infant
formula and nutritional products are based on
management’s estimated of the lifetime ECLsS to
be incurred.

General approach is adopted for loss allowance
for ECLs on (i) loan receivables, (ii) accounts
receivable from clients arising from provision of
wealth and asset management services and (iii)
accounts receivable from third parties arising from
provision of securities and commodities brokerage
services. The ECLs are based on the 12-months
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLS.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The ECL models applied by the Group is based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial assets at amortised cost that are subject
to impairment under the general approach
are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLS:

Stage 1. at the reporting date, the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition. The Group measure
the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses;

Stage 2. at the reporting date, the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.
The Group measure the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to its lifetime expected
credit losses.

Stage 3. at the reporting date, the financial
instrument’s default risk has increased
to a point that it is considered credit
impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLS, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to action such as realising security (if
any is held); or the financial asset is more than 1
year past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

° the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

° it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

. the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.
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BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liguidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
2 years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may
be designated as a financial liability at FVTPL,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. ETEGTHE®)
(h) Financial instruments (continued) (hy €MITR®E
(iii) Financial liabilities (iiiy MBEME

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, AEBRBEBEEECZBER
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains
an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with
no subsequent reclassification to the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings, certain
preferred shares and the debt element of
convertible loan note issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or 0ss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

4.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period respectively. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability respectively, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer of the contract to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder of
the contract for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if
not measured at FVTPL, are carried at the higher
of (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the
ECLs provision, measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out 4(h)ii)
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

When debt securities are sold subject to
a commitment to repurchase them at a
predetermined price (“repos”), they remain on the
statement of financial position and a liability is
recorded in respect of the consideration received.
Securities purchased under commitments to
resell (“reverse repos”) are not recognised on
the statement of financial position and an asset
is recorded in respect of the initial consideration
paid. Non-trading repos and reverse repos are
measured at amortised cost. The difference
between sale and repurchase price or between
the purchase and resale price is treated as
interest and recognised in net interest income
over the life of the agreements.

Contracts that are economically equivalent to
reverse repo or repo agreements (such as sales
or purchases of debt securities entered into
together with total return swaps with the same
counterparty) are accounted for similarly to, and
presented together with, reverse repo or repo
agreements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. ETEGTHE®)
(h) Financial instruments (continued) (hy s@THR®%®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0|

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—

—F+ A=t AR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

()

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured
at fair value at the date derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently measured at their fair value
at the end of reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship. Fair values are obtained from quoted
market prices in active market or are determined using
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
model and options pricing model as appropriate.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivative when their
characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception./
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue of the Group is measured on the following
basis:

o Net income from trading of securities and options
and commodities contracts are recognised on
the transaction date when the relevant sale and
purchase contract is entered into.

o Underwriting commission is recognised upon
allotment and when the obligation under the
underwriting or sub-underwriting agreement has
expired. Placing commission is recognised on the
contractual completion of trades.

o Commission income from the provision of
services of insurance advisory and investment
advisory is recognised on the completion of
the underlying transactions and the control of
services is transferred to customers. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the services are
delivered to the customers as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due.

o Commission income from the provision of
services of account and custody management
is recognised when services are provided in
accordance with the contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Revenue recognition (continued)

Financial advisory fee income is recognised when
the relevant services are provided to the customers

Margin facility fee income is recognised when
services are rendered

Medical consultation and laboratory services
income is recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Net income from the sale of investments at FVTPL
is recognised on the transaction date when the
relevant sale and purchase contract is entered
into.

Commission income is recognised when the
goods on which the commission is calculated are
delivered.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued
on a time basis on the principal outstanding at the
applicable effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group's right to receive the dividend
payment have been established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(M

(m)

Contract Liabilities
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Foreign currencies translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the Company's
functional currency, and rounded to the nearest
thousands unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are recognised in profit or
loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,
the gains or losses are also recognised directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Foreign currencies translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented and, where applicable,
goodwill and fair value adjustments on the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation which
are to be treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation, are translated at the closing
rate at the end of the reporting period.

o Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate.

o All resulting exchange differences arising from
the above translation and exchange differences
arising from a monetary item that forms part of
the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation
are recognised as a separate component of
equity.

o On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest
is no longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
separate component of equity is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZZT—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Foreign currencies translation (continued)

4.

(n)

—F+ A=t AR

o On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest
in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
which does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity
is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in
that foreign operation and is not reclassified to
profit or loss.

o On all other partial disposals, which includes
partial disposal of associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period of the write-down or 10ss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(o)

(p)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, and investments
in subsidiaries and associates may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based
on the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In addition, the Group tests its intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets that are not yet available for use for impairment
by estimating their recoverable amount on an annual
basis and whenever there is an indication that those
assets may be impaired. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income on the temporary investment of the specific
borrowings, that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Leasing

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are
carried at cost. Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021

4.

EFRETHE@)
(@ #HE&E

REBEREBEA
MAEMEHAERP IR RAEAR
REREEERHEERE HELAER
REEFTBEERE - UEETERLO
RHEECHER/MNEHEER
BEEZHE AEBEDEETHRE
BEEELBEEHNFAK B2
BAZHEERASEAEEERTEE
BE -BZFHERMIHEENKRE
REEHANRERETH -

EREEE

EREEERIZR AR WBHE ()
HEABEZNPTESR (R TXH
HERBARZGHEE) (IR FH
$h B His 2 AR 2 (AR E R 3R
WA B WE 2 BEEE  (iFEBEA
EEZERNZERIA - RvEil
AR EBHRBEEENREESE
SRR RGP RE 2 KBTS T E
HEZ BETARAR - BRIFRR SR AT AL
EFEMmEL -

AEBERBEEB G EF1R AR HF
BERAZEE LTI RETARKIZK
AHIME - B LA RAEEES - A&
BTERBEEERREES TYE
EPAKEREAEYEBEERSES
REET W REFUIN B EEE
Al Bt MEWHBRRTZMEESE
2R EETIANERATIE -
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5 75 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Leasing (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments; (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Leasing (continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised)
lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the
lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased), the lease
liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees.

Defined contribution scheme

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the
employees of the Group's entities established in the
PRC are required to participate in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by local governments.
Contributions to those plans are expensed as incurred
and other than these monthly contributions, the Group
has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits to its employees.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method and discounted to its
present value and after deducting the fair value of
any related assets, including those retirement scheme
benefit.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. ETEGTHE®)
(r) Employee benefits n EEEF
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a
defined contribution plan. Typically defined benefit
plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at financial reporting date less the
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected expected benefit payments. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
to the terms of the related pension obligation. In
countries where there is no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects
the increase in the defined benefit obligation results
from employee service in the current year, benefit
changes, curtailments and settlements. Past-service
costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

()

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the period as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from
initial recognition of goodwill, or other asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not
recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

@)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the holding
company of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iif)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
holding company, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third-party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Related parties (continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a holding company of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
holding company of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(@)

that person’s child and spouse or domestic
partner,

child of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Segment reporting

4.

(v)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
to the Group’s chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Offsetting of financial instruments

(x)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment) are recognised as deferred income in
the statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other income, rather
than reducing the related expense.
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170

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group's accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group's property, plant and equipment based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the relevant assets of similar nature and functions.
The estimated useful lives could be different as a result
of technical innovations which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or loss.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

(0

Intangible assets and amortisation

The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on the
expected usage and technical obsolescence from the
changes in the market demands or services output
from the assets. Intangible assets are not amortised
when their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite.
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support
the indefinite useful life assessment. The Group may
need to amortise intangible assets in future periods
or recognise impairment losses on intangible assets if
events and circumstances indicate that the useful life
is not indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised over the expected useful economic lives
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.

Impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

Determining whether intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives of the Group are impaired
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives have been allocated, which is the
higher of the related fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The calculations require the management
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the recoverable amounts.

5.

EFEREFHER R A @)

AT HBEENEERR @)

(b)

(©

BYEERME

EREREBTEEEE MG AL
RERRIAHEE - BEEEZAE
RERETSHEREDREEH LR
B ERRERRMRERE SEE
Mt RERIER - HRNEFEE
Z A RE R AERY - AN
1R - BT EERTERARER
AEAFES AesFEMUEES
HRIENE BEE A BERAE
REHFHE - HEREMHRBERR
RAERFEHYIEER - AIAEERK
BRI S B B E SRR R
WEEZRERR - BRAEHFH
ZEAERBEMERLEFHE
e YRENRBERNELEENED
BB FHERE -

BRUCEAFHZBTLEERE

EEARBERAERFHIELE
ERESDRERMGTEEDEERA
ERFHZETVEENREELEN
ZAKEEE  BREARERLE
RARERBEZESE - iHER -
ERERAGIEHRVERSELE
- B/EZRKASRERBEEIR
et BT E S o

EREEZRARAT / 2021FERE

171



172

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected cash flows
from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Details of the estimates used to calculate
the recoverable amount are given in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-current assets, excluding

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

and goodwill

Non-current assets excluding intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation/amortisation, where
appropriate, and impairment losses. These carrying
amounts are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the non-current
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In estimating the recoverable amounts of the
non-current assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with the non-current
assets and discount rates, are made. If future events do
not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable
amounts will need to be revised, and this may have an
impact on the Group's results of operations or financial
position.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(f)

(8

Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for inventories that are identified
as obsolete, slow-moving or no longer recoverable or
suitable for use in production. The Group carries out
the inventory review on a product-by-product basis
and makes allowance by reference to the latest market
prices and current market conditions.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis.

5.

EFEREFHER R A @)

HEt TABE RN EERF (&)

®

®

FERE
AEBEZEEENSRERRRSTF
BI5R - SR ABE  BHRAA
B NES AREENFEE
B ARELERERE —RAF
B WRETIHERRRITHREH
B o

MBEERE
RIBBEABMBREENESRLE A
BRI B EEETRERIETEAE
HHET - R B E R RE R IR
ARKASRERERREEZSHE
REERBARFHEERRZE R
EEM - ZEHAREZBEREKS
EPEABEHTREEBAELTRRE
B2 Bt -

REBREEH AEEMBBHRE
B A= R A B 2 M AR 5
WEAE 7 B O RBETHE - UFHE
BT HERBAREERRE G REEL
e AKEF LS E BAHR R ES M
HERIMNK A AE T A5 2 & 1Al 58
B BRERETERTEENNUR
RTREEDAT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(h) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair values
are determined using valuation technigues including
the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions
and other valuation techniques commonly used by
other market participants. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. The judgements
include considerations of inputs such as implied
equity value, volatility and risk-free rate. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

TURNOVER

Turnover from operations represents the aggregation of
gross sales proceeds from trading of securities investments,
provision of financing services, provision of wealth and asset
management, financial brokerage and related services and
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products.
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7. OPERATING INCOME 7.

Operating income recognised from the principal activities
of the Group during the year including trading of securities
investments, provision of financing services, provision of
wealth and asset management, financial brokerage and
related services, manufacture of infant formula and nutritional
products and investment holding is as follows:

BERA

FAXKEEFZZH (BREEEFRE -
RUBERY RUHMEREEERE @
B AR RS - BERY RE T DS
NEBEmARIREER) PIHER 2 821K
AT ¢

Brokerage commission income from: grBAaslhAKSE :
— securities dealing —B5EE 36,421 30,617
— insurance — {REg 218,490 170,245
— underwriting and placing — B REER2KA
commission income 25 891
Commission income from providing RIEER KPR EEEN
advisory, account and BelA
custody management 31,436 39,132
Financial advisory fee income R BERA - 7,808
Margin facility and loan facility handling HERMEEEDRRMETFES
fee income WA 3,041 13,878
Gain from the sale of financial assets at HE&ER QAR BETABREZ
FVTPL, net* B & B W R R 41,840 24,803
Dividend income from financial assets at & A4 Bzt ABEZ
FVTPL M EEZREWA 42,312 10,169
Interest income from: FIBRAKRE :
— margin financing —FERME 12,245 7,368
— loan receivables from third parties  — EBUWE=HEX 35,743 61,887
— loan receivables from a — BRI A RIRE 2
shareholder of an associate B (K iE250)
(Note 25(c)) - 368
Manufacture of infant formula and SLEB MBI TN R
nutritional products EEEMR 182,873 161,789
604,426 528,955

* Represented the proceeds from the sale of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") of HK$3,449,923,000
(2020: HK$770,212,000) less relevant costs and carrying
value of the financial assets sold of HK$3,408,083,000 (2020:
HK$745,409,000).

e BHERARBFABRZZHBKE
E([HBARBAEZE] TS HKE
3,449,923,0008 T (ZE = F F :
770,212,000/ 7o) WAHBEK A R B HE
B 75 & 7 9 BR 11 18.3,408,083,00078 7T (=
T T4 745,409,000 7T) °
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8.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income from financial

institutions

Gain on redemption of unlisted EEIFE EMIRERN RS
investment

Government subsidies T8 #83 B

Rental income G ON

Forfeiture of deposits from termination I ERB AR

of disposal of a subsidiary BUWIE S
Others Hh

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors of the Company have been identified as the
chief operating decision makers to evaluate the performance
of operating segments and to allocate resources to those
segments based on the Group’s internal reporting in respect
of these segments. The directors of the Company consider
trading of securities investments, provision of financing
services, provision of wealth and asset management,
financial brokerage and related services, provision of medical
consultation and laboratory services, franchisor and retail of
mother-infant-child products, manufacture of infant formula
and nutritional products and investment holding are the
Group's major operating segments. Segment results represent
the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment.
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2021 2020
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—E-FF
HK$'000
THET

HK$’000
THET

5,924 29,604
= 29,175

199 5,185
2,968 SRS
- 55,306
1,893 1,607
10,984 124,390
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9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Trading of securities investments

Provision of financing services

R E R

Provision of wealth and asset
management, financial
brokerage and related services

REMEREEERE
RIS R AERA PR TS

Provision of medical consultation
and laboratory services

REBEDARERERE

Franchisor and retail of
mother-infant-child products

KRB ENTERREEM

Manufacture of infant formula and :

nutritional products
BERNREA NN REEER
Investment holding

BB

2 EER )
AEE 2 ¥ 55D E R THEE -

Investments of shares, stocks, options and funds

ffn - IRE - IR ESIKE

Provision of loan financing services

REEREE R

Provision of wealth and asset management, dealing in securities,
provision of securities, commodities brokerage services and
financial advisory services

RHVEREEETR FHFRH  EHES
7] on A% 4 AR 75 1% Bt 7 B ) R 75

Provision of medical consultation and laboratory services relating to
assisted reproductive technology

R B EERM BN ERLARERERS

Managing franchise and operating retail stores of mother-infant-child
products

ERFTEERKENREERNTERNH

Development, manufacture and sale of infant milk formula products,
and supplement and organic nutritional products

FE BERHERNZTRANNER  REZBNREREEER

Holding investments for dividend and investment income and capital
appreciation, and provision of management services

RERRE  WEWRARERNEEMRERE - URREHEERSE

EREEZRARAT / 2021FERE
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(@) Segment turnover (@) DEEXERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover by REBRKEDHEI D 2 EEBOM
operating segments: W

Provision of
wealth and
asset  Provision of  Franchisor
management, medical and  Manufacture
financial ~ consultation retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of brokerage and mother-  formula and
securities financing ~ andrelated laboratory infant-child nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding  Unallocated
RUHER
BEER. REER  GHEER  RERHR
BE Bt SRELR #AR  BEREE  EAPHR
#ERE BERK RERE  ERERE ER ERER REZR FAR &t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn Tz Tz TEn T Tz Tn TEn

For the year ended 31 Hz-Z2--%
December 2021 tZA=1-HLEE
Segment tumover APELE
From contracts with customers K& BB KR4 28|
within the scope of HKFRS 15 S155 BEAEFAL - - 316,446 - - 182,873 51 S 499,370
From other source AR 3,465,150 24,957 23,032 = = = = - 3513139
3,465,150 24,957 339,478 - - 182,873 51 - 4,012,509
For the year ended 31 HZ-Z2-%%
December 2020 tZRZ1-HLEE
Segment tumover APERE
From contracts with customers BB 81 B34 8
within the scope of HKFRS 15 155 BEAZFAY - - 253,543 - - 161,789 9,028 - 124,340
From other source A RR 376339 45,144 23,965 164574 - - 239,98 - 850,004
376,339 45,144 277,508 164574 - 161,789 29010 - 1,274,364
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE
(b) Segment operating income and results (b) DMREWMAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s income by REEIRKEEDTE D 2 WA D TTE
operating segments: AT

Provision of
wealth and
asset  Provision of
management, medical  Franchisor  Manufacture
financial  consultation ~ and retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of  brokerage and mother-  formula and
securities financing ~ andrelated laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding  Unallocated
RUHER
BEER. REER  GHEER  REEHR
EE Bt SRELR #AR  BEREE  EAPHR
E5RE HERE RERE  BRERE ER ERER REZR FAR
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn Tz Tz T TEn Tz Tz

For the year ended HzoEo-f
31 December 2021 TZBZt-ALEE
Segment operating income AHEERA 57,067 24,957 339,478 - - 182,873 51 - 604,426

(Loss)/profit for the year AU TRENER

before following tems; (B8 /%7 (1,623) 5,269 (10,015) (595 (189,008) (15723) (91,858) (17,895)  (391,448)
(Gain/(loss) on disposal LENE BERRE

of property, plant and s/ (E8)

equipment - - 1 - - (41) (9.994) 12 (10,022)
Impaiment loss on property, 1%~ BERRE

plant and equipment LAEEE = = (77,520) = = = = = (77,520)
Impairment loss on interests in -~ REE R AR

associates LAERE = - - (17.201)  (177,307) - - - (194,508)
Impairment loss on intanglble ~ EFAEREFE

assets = - - - - (7,820) - - (7,820)
Finance costs AR (22,405) (10,206) (3,870 - - (331) 499 30,502 (5811)
Share of resllts of associates  AEBENAEE = = = (743) (43,878) - - - (44,621)

(94,028) (4,937) (91,404) (18,539) (410,193) (23,915) (101,353) 12,619 (731,750)
Loss on disposal of interestina &~ B A AfEE

subsidiary BB - - - (4,644) - - = = (4,644)
(Loss)/profit before taxaion B EiA1 (B51R) /& (94,028) (4937) (91,404) (23183)  (410,193) (23915 (101,353) 12,619 (736,394)
Income tax credit/expense)  MEHES/ (Hik) 558 - (695) - (1,407) 1,542 - - @
Segment results AR (93,470) (4,937) (92,099) (23,183) (411,600) (22,373) (101,353) 12,619 (736,396)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(b) Segment operating income and results (b) DHBEWMAREE )
(Continued)

Provision of
Wealth and
asset  Provision of
management, medical Franchisor ~ Manufacture
financial ~ consultation  and retail of of infant
Trading of vision of brokerage and mother-  formulaand
Securities d related laboratory  infant-child nutritional Investment
investments S Services products products holding  Unallocated Total

B : ‘ 5 ¢ AR
HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEL AL TR TR TAL ThL B TR

For the year ended HE-®-2%
31 December 2020 TZAZT-ALEE
Segment operatingincome.~~ ABELUA 14332 45,144 277,508 14505 = 161789 15677 = 528,955

Profit/oss) for the year before K&t FREBHERE

following items: wH/ (BE) - 91928 (11,762 (37489 143 3183 (13,770) 77819 (189) 79516
Lossondisposal of property,  HENE - BERRE

plant and equipment b - - (120 - - - - (10,063) (11.309)
Impairment loss on goocwill ~~ AEFEESE - - (22807) - - - - - (2807)
Impairment loss on interestsin -~ REEE A AR

associates LREEE - - - (191,346) - - - - (191,346)
Impairment loss on intanglble  EFAERERE

assets = = (76,796) = = = = = (76,796)
Finance costs BERK (4,424) (13316) (5,503) - - (631) (8631) 14,62 (17,881)
Share of results of associates  AEBIENAIEE - - - 22,100 31397 - - - 53,497
Profitoss) efore tavetion AR/ (E18) 87,504 Q078 (43 (157816 34,580 (14,401 69,188 @ay 0812
Income tax (expense/credit  FrEH () /£8 (14,076) = 7873 = = 437 %03) = (273)
Segment results pikiEd ] 73428 (25,078) (135,958) (157816) 34,580 (10,030) 68,285 (37,268) (189,857)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T-
9.

—F+-A=t+—ALLFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment operating income and results

(Continued)

Segment operating income reported above represents
income generated from external customers. There was
no inter-segment operating income in both years.

Income and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to income generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation/
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described
in the consolidated financial statements. Segment
results represent the results achieved by each segment.
This is the measurement method reported to the chief
operating decision makers for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

9.

2 EER )

(b)

DEREWAREE @)

T2 515 ST SR 5 S0
BFHMA - L ARG R 5
RN -

WARSHTIESEZEDREEZ
WA RS heki %D B R 2 BEN
E/BHMEENIHESREME
WK DHL

EB DA ST BN AR S IR
RATMAREEN ST HE - - HE
EERSEGOMIEOESR - LT
75’5 A e R a4 S ) R IR Al

BRERREZWNATETE -
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HTFER
(c) Segment assets and liabilities () »HEERAE
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by TEEMEERBEREED DM
operating segments is set out below. R e

Provision of
wealth and
asset  Provision of
management, medical  Franchisor ~ Manufacture
financial  consultation  and retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of  brokerage and mother-  formula and
securities financing  andrelated laboratory infant-child nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding
REHER
BEER. REUER  GHEER  REENR
EE Rt SRELR #HR  BEREE  EAMRR
FERE BERE HBRE  ERERE ER EEER REZR @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET ThR Thr TR TET ThR ThR

As at 31 December 2021 R=F=-F+-A=t-H

Assets hefore following items: FAUTREZEE: 1,052,731 207,053 1,326,482 - 401 57,522 1495063 4,139,252
Interests n associates REERAER - - - 88,174 227,205 - - 315,399
Gooowill (k3 = = 56,930 - - - - 56,930
Segment assets PHEE 1,052,731 207,053 1,383,412 88,174 221,626 57,522 1,495,063 4,511,581
Unallocated assefs AOREE 295,167
Total assefs B2E 4,806,748
Liabilities 8

Segment liabites AER (18,538) (5000 (298,720) = (9,746) (27,109) (5740)  (360,353)
Unallocated liabities AAREE (32.219)
Totel ligbities fak (392,572)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oHERE
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) () PHEEREE R

Trading of
Securities
investments

Provision of
financing
Services

HK§'000
TAn

Provision of
ealth and
asset
management,
financial
brokerage

Provision of
medical
consultation

Franchisor
and retail of
mother-
infant-child
products

HK§000

Manufacture
of infant
formula and
nutritional

Investment
holding

RAZR
HKS 000

T

As at 31 December 2020 RZB-85+-A=1-A

Assets before following items: FAUTEEZEE: 925510 21010 2,525,035 k)] 262,906 80,861 1,554,923 5670335
Interests in associates REEAF ER - - - 534,690 351,034 - - 885,724
Goodwl g - - 5,930 - - - - 5930
Segment assets PHEE 925,510 3,070 2,581,965 534720 613940 80,361 1,554,923 6,612,989
Unallocated assets FAREE 313,068
Total assets BEE 6926057
Liabilities 8f

Segment liabilties PHEE (35,239) (500 (1408516) = (8339 (26122) mm (149049
Unallocated liabities AOREE (34,680)
Totalliabiltes aafE

(1,525,175)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) ) "HEEREEBE®)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance REZHIRBRLZHEDHEER

and allocating resources between segments: bl

184

Segment assets mainly include mainly all
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates, right-of-use
assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets at
FVTPL, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets
at amortised cost, inventories, loan receivables,
tax recoverables, trade and other receivables,
fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
and reverse repurchase agreements. All assets
are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities mainly include trade and other
payables, contract liabilities, lease liabilities,
tax payables, deferred tax liabilities, derivative
financial instruments and repurchase agreements.
All liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021

DHEETIZEEEZHWE
Bfs Kkt BIVEE B8 -
REFE AR 2w ERAEE
E-RERBEEE -HAAE
AABRZUBEE BAA
Bt ARMEEEAZHBEE
B RBIEKAGTEZHMEE
E R BRER @K
BIE B 5 N CE A e R OR
RITEHFR  RITAERKR
BARRA @ o RigE
BEEEEM D EMAT R
CREEN MBEEEDDE

EEBEDEL -

DHBEETEBFESNEM
ENRE - AHEE HESR
& BNTHIE I EENRIBRE
TTESmM T AU RBERZ -
BREBEEEEM DN
BERREEREIN AERE
BDBEEXEBDE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE
(d) Geographical information d) twEER
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TREIIAEBIREBUEE HRE
operating income from external customers by locations INEE P 2 O EURADHT

of operations:

Provision of
wealth and
asset  Provision of
management, medical  Franchisor ~ Manufacture
financial ~ consultation  and retail of of infant
Trading of ~ Provision of brokerage and mother-  formula and
securities financing  andrelated laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding
RUHER
BEER. RUEBR  KNBER  REEHR
EE Bt SRR #WR  BEREE EriH
#ERE BERKE REBRE RRERK ER REEER REZR
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tk T T T B T Thr

For the year ended BE-E--£+-A=1-A

31 December 2021 i34
Primary geographic markets IEHETS
Hong Kong B3 59,074 24,957 309,479 - - - 51 393,561
PRC ? (2,007) = = = = = = (2,007)
Australia 2 = - - - - 182,873 - 182,873
Europe B - - 29,999 - - - - 29,999
Total @i 57,067 24,957 339,478 = = 182,873 51 604,426
For the year ended BE-E-EE+CRZt-R

31 December 2020 5B
Primary geographic markets TEHETS
Hong Kong % 14,332 45144 229,300 14,505 = = 15677 318,958
PRC % - - - - - - - -
Australia 2 - - - - - 161,789 - 161789
Europe gl - - 48208 - - - - 48208
Total @it 14,332 4514 277,508 14,505 = 161,789 15,677 528,955
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(d) Geographical information (continued) (d) HEER#)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) by locations of assets (“Specified
non-current assets”):

TR AKEREEMES D 2IF
MBEE (TEEERTARELER
HEE) ([EEFRBEE]) 20 -

Specified non-current assets

186

EEFRBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHIT
Hong Kong A 219,019 697,760
PRC H 227,225 351,034
Australia BN 35,144 57,241
Europe B 191,327 282,573
Total FeH 672,715 1,388,608
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE
(e) Disaggregation of revenue e) WAZDE
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by RTE  WAREZERRRBZEA
major products and service lines and timing of revenue RIRAERREDE - ZRTBES
recognition. The table also includes a reconciliation of U A B R [ AT 2 o B 2 B8R o
the disaggregated revenue with the Group's reportable
segment.

Provision of
wealth and
asset
management,  Franchisor
financial and retail  Manufacture
brokerage  of mother- of infant
Provision of and infant-  formula and
financing related child  nutritional  Investment
services services products products holding
RUHER
EEEE. BEER  RERHR
Rt SHEL  SEREE [oyp i
RERE  REHES ER  REEER RELZR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEx TEn TEn

For the year ended BE-B--F
31 December 2021 TZAZ+-ALEE

Major products/service lines IZER/BER

Wealth and asset management HERAEEE = 291,622 = = = 291,622
Financial brokerage and related services & BHE 42 RAARAIRE = 24,824 = = = 24,824
Financing services BERB = = - - - -
Mother-infant-child products HEEER = = = - - -
Infant formula and nutritional products  EAZEAPRREEER = = = 182,873 = 182,873
Management services ERRB = - - - 51 51
Total it - 316,446 - 182,873 51 499,370
Time of revenue recognition AR

Ata point in time KRS - 304,223 - 182,873 51 487,147
Transferred over time BEEEGES = 12,223 = = = 12,223
Total it - 316,446 - 182,873 51 499,370
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(e) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) e) WMAZzZE#=E)

Provision
of wealth
and asset
management, Franchisor ~ Manufacture
financial and retail of infant
Provision brokerage of mother- ~ formula and
of financing and related infant-child nutritional Investment
Services Services products products holding

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL 7 AL TEL TEL

For the year ended S
31 December 2020 T

Major products/service lines IZER/BER

Wealth and asset management BERAEER - 218818 - = = 218818
Financial brokerage and related services & BHZ 42 R IB AR = 34725 = = - 34725
Financing services BAMRK = = - - - -
Mother-infant-child products BEEER S = = = = =
Infant formula and nutritional products  EHREFPRRERER = = = 161,789 - 161,789
Management services EERB = - - - 9,028 9,028
Total @it = 253,543 = 161,789 9,028 424,360
Time of revenue recognition WARZEE

Ata point in time R = 244,185 = 161,789 9,028 415,002
Transferred over time REEERES - 9,358 - - - 9,358
Total @it - 253,543 - 161,789 9,028 424,360
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
(f) Other segment information

2 EER )
( EHfttoHEHR

Provision of
wealth and
asset  Provision of
management, medical Franchisor  Manufacture
financial  consultation  and retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of brokerage and mother-  formula and
securities financing ~ and related aboratory infant- nutritional  Investment
investments TV services services  child products products holding  Unallocated
RUGIER
BEER. RUBR  KTEER  HEEHR
EE Rk SREL Ak 3EREE Erih
2558 HERE  REBEE  ERIRE En  REEER REER AR
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TiEn TER TER TEn TEn TER TEn TiEn
For the year ended BE-3--%
31 December 2021 tZR=t-ALEE
Additions of specified REREHRDER
non-curtent assets* - - 620 - - n - - 691
Amortisation of intanglole assets  EF/AEE = = (2,866) = = (7.594) = = (10,460)
Depreciaton of property, n% BRERAENE
plant and equipment - - (7,800) - - (1,641) (787) (984) (11212)
Depreciation of right-ofuse assets  EBELENE = = (432) = = (2,608) = (11,524) (14,562)
Interest income included i FABERAR
operating income and ABABFERA
other income 651 24,956 25,644 - - 2 1,326 1,332 53911
Impairment loss on financial HEAEHEREE
assets for ECLs BlBRBER (13) (16,526) (#17) - (188,570) (51) 2 51 (205,524)
Net fairvalue loss on financial ~—~ £BTEZA%
nstruments Elasg (120,998) - - - - - (89.437) = (210435)
For the year ended BEZ-g-8%
31 December 2020 TZR=t-ALEE
Addiions of specified REETHRIEE"
non-Curtent assets* - - 79% - - 31 - - 8,287
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EREEE - - (12581) - - 70 - s (19600
Depreciation of property, n% BERRENE
plant and equipment - - (11,508) - - (2039) (1,579) (267 (17,79
Depreciation of rigntofuse assets  FREEENE - S (381) - S (3419 - (14,167 (18.467)
Interest income included in HABERAR
operating income and ABABHERA
Otherincome 3 45370 35,759 - - - 13571 4524 9.221
Impairment loss on financial HBEEREREE
assets for ECLs FlzAEER - (50,782) (16285) - 2 16 1 (60) (67,165
Netfairvalue gainon financial ~~ $BIEZA%
instruments leayd 92,309 - - - 581 - 14,455 - 107345
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.

(f) Other segment information (continued)
Including additions of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interests in
associates and goodwill directly or through acquisition of
subsidiaries.

(g) Operating income from customers for the year over
10% of the Group's total operating income is as follows:

DEER (#)
() HtvoHER =)

* BEEENEBRKENEARR
B - W RRE  mAE -
(EFEARE - N E A RMES
REE-

(8) 1EAREEEZEUALTEIONA FHA
FEREBEP ZBERANT

Customer A — attributable to HEEA— RBhEEEDIR S

manufacture of infant formula and I RELBE SR

nutritional products 161,860 126,419
Customer B — attributable to EFPB— ELREVEREE

provision of wealth and B R RRBRE

asset management, financial

brokerage and related services 137,087 102,273
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10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRFBIAIESE
This is stated after charging: BRI AIIER ¢

Finance costs & R A
Interest on bank and other borrowings 877 & E b &5k 2 F & 4,030 14,581
Interest on lease liabilities HERBERNE 1,781 3,300
5,811 17,881
Other items HihEH
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEREFEZRHEE 170,927 126,422
Write-down of inventories IEB¢ iV 1,129 12,087
Cost of inventories recognised as R AT HNFEERR
expenses 172,056 138,509
Auditor's remuneration (including other =SB S (BIEEMETER -
audit fee, primarily in respect of audits 3= Z B BB A 7 B 15 R &
of financial statements of subsidiaries)  ZEztB#) 3,644 4,379
Rent, rates and building management e EZMREFEERRX
expenses 2,932 11,010
Management fees EEE 21,685 26,673
Information services expenses EERBER 18,643 20,936
Utilities and office expenses UNZEEEJNE N = §5 4,517 9,050
Legal and professional fees FEEREXER 58,754 21,415
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRA(TBRIEESHM)
emoluments)
Salaries, discretionary bonus, e MBI EMR
allowances and benefits in kind EYHe= 59,242 125,657
Contributions to defined contribution TE R SR IR ET B 3K
retirement schemes 2,842 9,648
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME

The emoluments received or receivable by the Company’s ARRESFCWSER 2 BEHT
directors are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—+=-HA=+—H1L
FE

Salaries,
discretionary Contributions
bonus, to defined
allowances  contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement

fee in kind schemes
RS9 EHEMR
EZHd ENFE  BAGTEMR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET
Executive directors TES
Han Ruixia B e - 5,400 18 5,418
Zhang Zhenyi RIRE - 3,600 18 3,618
Non-executive director FHTES
Hui Mei Mei, Carol TR 360 - - 360

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Tian Ren Can B 360 - - 360
Wang Cong Tia 360 - - 360
Wu Xu'an RNEL 180 - - 180
Ng Yu Yuet RTH 360 - - 360

1,620 9,000 36 10,656
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—F+-_A=1t—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020

1.

BEEMe @)
BE-_ZE-_ZEF+=-A=+—HL
FE

Salaries,
discretionary  Contributions
bonus, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors' and benefits retirement
fee in kind schemes Total
e B
TEAL - EBE R K
E5% EYHIE El @ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 00 HK$'000
FTH FAET BT TET
Executive directors BTEE
Han Ruixia g (R-Z-%F
(appointed on 16 April 2020) mA+R H E) - 3,850 18 3,868
Zhang Zhenyi wRE (R-Z-5F
(appointed on 21 April 2020) MAZ+—HEZMA) - 2,685 18 2,703
Cao Lu ER(R-_Z-FF
(resigned on 16 April 2020) M A+NHEHT) - 1,141 9 1,150
Fu Yau Ching Shirley BXERZZZZE
(resigned on 16 April 2020) mA -I-/\ H %ﬂi) - 646 6 652
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela ERK(R=ZE=%%
(resigned on 21 April 2020) MAZ+—HEE) = 547 6 553
Non-executive director FHTES
Hui Mei Mei, Carol TR 360 - - 360
Independent non-executive BIkBTES
directors
Tian Ren Can B 360 - - 360
Wang Cong T2 360 - - 360
Wu Xu'an RNE(MZZTZTF
(appointed on 12 March 2020) ZA+ZREZA) 145 - - 145
Ng Yu Yuet RTH(R=Z=FF
(appointed on 16 April 2020) mA+ BEZT) 255 = = 255
Chen Wai Chung Edmund BREE(R-ZZZF
(resigned on 12 March 2020) ZA+ZHEA) 82 - - 82
1,562 8,869 57 10,488

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was

no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration. In addition, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any directors as an inducement to join,
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

BE_Z_—FR-_Z_ZFF+_-A
St HLEFE BESEFEHREKFAIN
REAMESNRH - I BE-_FT——
FR-_E_TF+_A=+—BLFE"
AREBEREREAESE N AR K
EMAREBSHAERIMAARE B H) R K
BERRHIE -
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. EEESHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the FRAEEREERFTALRERSA (Z
year included two (2020: two) directors, details of whose ToTF MBEF BREZHFNFER
remunerations are in note 11 to the consolidated financial REREMIBMENTEN - FA - BT =F
statements. Details of the remunerations of the remaining (Z2ZZF =) Eag AL (FERAA
three (2020: three) highest paid individuals, who are not a BE) 2HMWT -

director of the Company, for the years are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - S2EE R EWHIZE 4,368 4,500
Contributions to defined contribution JE R SR IRET 2= 51

retirement schemes 54 42
4,422 4,542

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMNNFLATEHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
No. of No. of
Individuals individuals
A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T £2,500,0007% 7T = 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T £3,500,0007% 7T - -
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13. TAXATION 13. BE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong, except for the first HK$2,000,000 of qualified
entity’s assessable profit is calculated at 8.25%, which is in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime with
effect from the year of assessment 2018/19.

Australian Income Tax rate of the Company’s subsidiary
operating in Australia during the year was 30% (2020: 30%) on
its taxable profits.

Liechtenstein Corporate Income Tax rate of the Company’s
subsidiary operating in Liechtenstein during the year was
12.5% (2020: 12.5%) on its taxable profits.

Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Company’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC during the year ended 31
December 2021 was 25% (2020: 25%) on its taxable profits.

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits earned
after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding companies of the
PRC subsidiaries are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong
and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements
between the PRC and Hong Kong.

BEMNGHREREBB Z B ERTR
FA165% (Z T ZF4F 1 165%) 2 B K&t
BOBBRER-ZZ—/\—NEBFEE
MZMBHFEHE AEREEBZESE
2,000,000/ 7T F& iR it i ) 128.25% 5T & ©

RER - AR BFORMEEH M B QB
BN PRS- 152 751 2 R L R ER B4 ) #930% (=
T_FF :30%) °

RER NAFRINEZ BT EEE KB
REININE AT B ERSHM R AHE
ERSETE125% (ZE=FE  125%) ©

HE—_T-—+-_A=+—HItFE"
ARRRAPEEENMHRBEATANRREAM
102 P15 B A5 3 7 L B AR 5 4 ) 8925% (=
TTF  25%) o

RABRIHRABREGIMEEETIKE
“EZ N\F-A-HARRRZAENRE
FEIZ10%H) T R B = B TR AT S A - phep
BB ARNEEAMALKELLTA
FREEFRF RS IROTRENE
BEBRARME - A RASNEEFAMB
B o
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IR ()

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13.

The major components of the income tax expense/(credit) for
the year are as follows:

REFERERI L, (ER) WEEHS

o

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TEx T T
Current tax B HA B 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH
Current year provision KEREE 279 209
Under provision in prior year BEFEREBTR = 105
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax — ®F Bt (> S FT1EH
Current year provision NEZEE = -
Australian Income Tax SRR H 0 PTG
Current year provision NEFEE = -
Over provision in prior year BEFEBRBEREG = (2,468)
Liechtenstein Corporate Income Tax BB
Current year provision KEFEEE 15 15
Withholding tax A 1,407 903
1,701 (1,236)
Deferred tax BB IR
Origination and reversal of temporary TRMEENESE RED
differences (Note 31) (H15£31) (1,699) 3,971
Tax expense for the year FAFIAZ M 2 2,735
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13. TAXATION (Continued)
Reconciliation of income tax expense:

13. BE#)
PRSHR ST 18k

Loss before taxation BR T A BT 1R (736,394) (187,122)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of 165% (ZE T F : 16.5%)

16.5% (2020: 16.5%) ZERABEAREZER (121,505) (30,875)
Difference of domestic tax rate i EZER 2,612 2,528
Non-deductible expenses AR 146,779 68,994
Tax exempt revenue Tl I8 #8 S 2 (56,159) (47,823)
Temporary differences not recognised — KER 2 R E5 = 3,366
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ) F %t Al & #E 72 1Y £ 78 &5 18

losses (2,683) (127)
Unrecognised tax losses REERIEEE 22,188 17,041
Effect of share of results of associates ~ [E{GEtE R RIZEE 2 ZE 7,363 (8,827)
Withholding tax TEFNAR 1,407 903
Income tax at concessionary rate REEMEGFEZFRER = (82)
Over provision of previous year BT FEBEEE = (2,363)
Tax expense for the year FARIARZ 2 2,735
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BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

14. DIVIDEND 14. BE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended HE-_T-_—4FRK=_Z2-_FTF+=A
31 December 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been =T FETERMNSBIRRE - B3
proposed since the end of reporting period. HERBIMERIREMARE

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15.
The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based
on loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary

BREE
BREABBDRFRNADAESESE A
FEfh 518 R F N E BT L B2 AET 1
BEHEMT

198

shares in issue during the year as follows:

Loss for the year attributable to equity ~ AR AIEZIHFE ABMER

2021
—_E-_—5F

HK$’000
THET

2020
—E-FF
HK$'000
THET

holders of the Company B8 (733,623) (140,711)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
No. of shares No. of shares
%12 8 B f& 7 2 B
‘000 ‘000
F % T A&
Number of shares BAEE
Weighted average number of ordinary LB 2 ke
shares for the purpose of basic loss (RERERNEEMS)

per share

44,364,886

44,364,886
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BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BMERRE

Leasehold
improvements

BENEEE
HK$'000
TR

Furniture
and
fixtures

GHRZEE
HK§'000
TATL

Computer
and office
equipment
ElR
BRERE
HK$'000
TR

Motor
Vehicles
and yacht

RERR
HK§'000
87

Land and
building

1HRET
HKS'000
TR

Total

AL

=h]
HK$'000
ThT

Cost A
At1 January 2020 RZZ-FF-f-H 25,374 5320 71,341 18,596 310,249 430,880
Additions RE 350 61 2919 163 655 4,148
Disposals e (17,168) (3.569) (2,609 S - (23,346)
Exchange realignment EiRAE - - 3,904 (695) 29073 32,28
At 31 December 2020 and RZBZZTEFZA=1-H

1 January 2021 kZE--%-f-B 8,556 1,812 75,555 18,064 339,977 443,964
Additions HE - 2 384 - 47 433
Disposals e - (121) (267) (16,152) - (16,540)
Exchange realignment 5% = (31) (1,714) (113) (10,071) (11,929)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--%+-A=t+-H 8,556 1,662 73,958 1,799 329,953 415,928
Accumulated depreciation ~ BHFERRE

and impairment
At 1 January 2020 RZE-%%-f-H 14,288 2,448 44,649 1,566 51,680 114,631
Charge for the year FERT 2930 351 6,815 1823 5873 17792
Eliminated on disposals HERTH (8,707) (1477) (1,108) - = (11,292)
Exchange realignment EHHE - 3 2571 (226) 5,144 7512
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-FF+-f=1-H

1 January 2021 —E-_-F-f-H 851 1,345 52,927 3,163 62,697 128,643
Charge for the year ERTH 38 84 10,146 944 - 11,212
Impairment loss HEER - - - - 77,520 77,520
Eliminated on disposals HERTE = (79 (165) (2,646) = (2,890)
Bxchange realignment AR = (13) (1,040) (83) (1,591) (2,727)
At 31 December 2021 W_E--f+-A=1-H 8,549 1,337 61,868 1,378 138,626 211,758
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2021 R-E--%+-A=t+-AH 7 325 12,090 YAl 191,327 204,170
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTEF-R=1-H 45 467 22628 14,901 277,280 315,31
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE

200

Brand
names

mEEHE
HKS'000

TATL

Licenses and
trading
rights

RRREEE
HK$'000
TR

Trademarks

L]
HK$'000
TEL

Customer and
franchisee
relationships
BFERT
HK$'000

Tin

Computer
software and
systems
EMEH
EY
HK$'000

;e
BT

Total

it
HKS'000

BT

Cost A
At 1 January 2020 R_E_Z55-f—H 105,493 154,669 13 158,016 20,622 433,813
Additions AE - = = = 4,636 4,636
Exchange realignment EHAE 7,675 11,795 - 5443 1789 26,702
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-FF+-f=1-H

1 January 2021 k=%--£-8-H 113,168 166,464 13 163,459 27,047 470,151
Additions RE = - 32 - 179 M
Exchange realignment EiAE (4,656) (6,624) = (2,044) (1,335) (14,659)
At 31 December 2021 W_E--F+-A=1-H 108,512 159,840 45 161,415 25,891 455,703
Accumulated amortisation B3t E#RHE

and impairment
At 1 January 2020 WoE-EE-f-R 63,650 83,824 2 101,829 562 254927
Charge for the year ERTH 2326 422 1 9,055 3994 19,602
Impairment loss HEER - 28,394 - 32,963 15,439 76,19
Exchange realignment EiRE 6,213 8,309 - 2,188 49 17,205
At 31 December 2020 and RZBZZEFZA=1-H

1 January 2021 k-ZE--F-f-H 72,189 124,753 3 146,035 25,550 368,530
Charge for the year ERTH 2,516 4,571 4 2,758 611 10,460
Impairment loss RESHE 37 3,281 = 762 = 7,820
Exchange realignment E5HE (3,951) (5,.947) - (1,889) (1,335) (13,122)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--5+-R=t+-H 74,7131 126,658 7 147,666 24,826 373,688
Net book value BEFE
At 31 December 2021 W_E--F+-A=+-H 33,981 33,182 38 13,749 1,065 82,015
At 31 December 2020 R-E-F%+-A=t+-H 40979 nm 10 17424 1497 101,621
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18. GOODWILL 18.

The amounts of goodwill capitalised by the Group and
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

]
BAREEE MW R AR A M ISR
o

TR

e (BREHBRARELS) 28RN

i

-

2020
—E-FF

HK$°000
TAT

Cost RS
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BETZA=+—H 581,303 581,303
Accumulated impairment losses RitREERE

At 1 January R—A—H (524,373) (501,566)
Impairment loss BEE R - (22,807)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H (524,373) (524,373)
Net carrying amount BREFE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 56,930 56,930

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the
acquisitions effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of revenue growth, future market development and
the assembled workforce. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

BEREL DARARE XM ZRERE
BREABEEERNG  RRMISZERN
HAEBHNINFIE - ZENRTRAEHE
BERERR ARARFMEL RN AT #5
BNEECHRRE - CHIDEEHT
BEE PRISBLANAL -
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18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BE®)
The carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets was PMEMEMEEZ RMERE T KT
allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to the ENREAEECHINNBECELESMIU
nature of business as follows for impairment tests: EITRER

2021
—_E-—5F
Intangible Intangible
assets with assets
indefinite with finite

Goodwill useful life useful life

ASRER AHRER
THH  TE
BRRE WMPAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET  FER

Wealth and asset management, financial FEkEEERE - @/

brokerage and related services £ 40 S AR A AR 75
— Securities brokerage — BHLEL = 6,193 1,066
— Commodities brokerage —Hm&a = 10,931 =
— Wealth and asset management —EREEEE 56,930 30,647 11,705
Manufacture of infant formula and SEB N BT I &
nutritional products EEER = = 21,473
56,930 47,771 34,244
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. &%)

2020
—E-FTF

Intangible Intangible
assets with assets
indefinite with finite
useful life useful life
BmEBEER AERER
FHIH FEIRY
BmIZEE BIZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Wealth and asset management, financial HEREEEE - £ &t

brokerage and related services &40 K AR AR 7

— Securities brokerage — BHLL - 6,193 1,903

— Commodities brokerage — I m&R - 10,931 -

— Wealth and asset management —EREEEE 56,930 30,647 13,523
Manufacture of infant formula and SEEBH BT I &

nutritional products EEER = 5 38,424

56,930 47,771 53,850

Goodwill associated with the above businesses arose when BB AR BEREREHTK
the business combinations were completed. BFEEAE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—

—F+ A=t AR

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined by the
value-in-use calculation.

In value-in-use calculations, cash flow projections used are
based on financial budgets approved by the management
covering a 5-year period, the average growth rate and
long-term growth rate are based on past performance and
its expectation of market development. These growth rates
are also based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
do not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGUS.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no goodwill
impairment has been recognised. For the year ended 31
December 2020, goodwill impairment of HK$22,087,000
associated with the CGUs of wealth and asset management
has been recognised in light of the continuous reduction in
the customer portfolio maintained by the CGUSs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

18. GOODWILL (continued)

18. BE#)

Key assumptions adopted in the calculation of recoverable

amount are as follows:

ARREREFEMAZEZR/RRET

Wealth

and asset
management,
financial
brokerage

and related
services
HEREE
EE - SRKL
LT R

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Key unobservable inputs adopted

BE-_%2——-F
tT=RA=+-BLFE

EHEEAEFACEE

in value-in-use calculation T o] B A 25
Gross profit margin EFE 21.70%
Average growth rate TR = 2.00%
Long-term growth rate RHERX 3.00%
Discount rate BE IR 17.00%
For the year ended BE-—ZE-ZHF

31 December 2020 +TZA=+—-HLEE
Key unobservable inputs adopted in fair value 2374 (B 6 1 E L ARG E BT HZ

less costs of disposal calculation FTET A B AE K

Price-to-book multiple mER=E 1.4

Discount for lack of marketability TR TS AT R 30.00%
Key unobservable inputs adopted RHEEFERFAZEFE

in value-in-use calculation T A BN A Bl
Gross profit margin EsEs 24.00%
Average growth rate TR = -0.20%
Long-term growth rate REE R % 3.00%
Discount rate AL IR & 17.20%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—F+-A=t+—HILLFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BE®)
A sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end RBERRNERNBRIFXRE DI
of the reporting period is shown below: T
Valuation
technique  Assumption Range Sensitivity of fair value to input
hER B& BE BAMBZAAEHEY
Wealth and asset management, Income Average growth 2.00% 1% (2020: 1%) increase/decrease in average growth
financial brokerage and approach rate (2020:-0.20%)  rate would result in increase/decrease in recoverable
related services amount by HK$6,431,000 and HK$6,226,000
— Wealth and asset management (2020: HK$7,040,000 and HK$6,749,000)
HEREEEE SBELR KAE T RE 200% FIEREEM/RD1%(ZETF %) BEH
el (ZZZ%F:  aARESBEM,/H 6,431,000 7T 6,226,000 7T
—WEREEER 020%)  (ZZZFF 17,040,003 7T 6,749,000 7T )
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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19. SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company

In the opinion of the management, a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and
therefore the table below lists the principal subsidiaries at the
end of the reporting period which materially affect the results
or assets or liabilities of the Group. Ownership interests are
unchanged from 1 January 2021 except where indicated in

notes (b) and (c).

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd.
('B&P")

Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd.
(IBsP))

Greco Roman Limited
REABAT

Harris Fraser Group Limited
("HFG")

EREERRAR
([BH&R))

Hong Kong Mortgage
Solutions Limited ("HKMS")

AAREeRRBARAT
([&8#%E)

Mason Administrative
Services Limited
RERBERAT

Place of
incorporation/
operation

B AVE S-St

Australia

Hong Kong
)

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REEREE/ER

Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong

Bk

Particulars of

issued and paid up
ordinary share capital
BRIRMRER
RAZ#E

Australian dollar
("AUS") 550,579

550,579 7 (P&l
HKS1

T

US82,000

2,000% 7T

HK$75,000,100

75,000,100% 7

HKS1

AT

19. REBLQA

KRR 2ETENBARFE

Ownership interests

fra R

Held by the
Company
BALT
b3 L]

% %

Held by a
subsidiary
H-EHE

- &7
(Note ()
()

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE

BEARE

Group's
effective
interest’

A5E
ERER
%

75

100

100

47

100

ERERL BARTEZIIMEHRER
AlzABREBN IR RTKREZS
RBERRYAREXEREERAE
ZEIBMBRE - RAERE
s#8-_F-_—F-A-RELEZH-
HER REO) R (COFT R B BROD -

Principal activities

IERH

Development, manufacture and Sale
of infant formula and nutritional
products

A% REREERDTRADH
REEER

Trading of securities

Provision of wealth
management services

RUSZERRE

Investment holding

RARR

Provision of administrative

services
RETHRE

207
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—F+-_A=t+—HILFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. WEBLQT @)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the EKRARZEEMBLRFE &)
Company (Continued)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and paid up
Name of subsidiaries operation ordinary share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
BRTRARER
WEAREE FAL/ BEnY Rz fEgERR TEEEK

Group's

Held by the Held by a effective
Company  subsidiary interest’
mAdR  A-HKE 558
L] It BRER

% % %

Mason Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 = 100 100 Provision of bullion trading
("Mason Bullion”) services
EReFERAA(KREE]) B4 1,000,000 T RUERSBEERE

Mason Capital Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 and - 100 100 Investment holding

Limited ("MCIL") HK$37,999,999 (Note (b))

REEFREERAT RERAEE 1XTR (W) RARR

([RfEEA]) 37.999,999% T

Mason Financial Services Cayman Islands US$130,000 100 - - Investment holding

Group Limited

EREREEERAT HEkS 1300005 7T REER

Mason Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 100 100 Provision of commodities
("Mason Futures") brokerage services
ERASARLA(XRER]) &E 20,000,000% 1T RUARELRE

Mason Investment Management Hong Kong HK$31,000,000 - 100 100 Provision of securities advisory and
Limited asset management services
KEREERERAT Bk 31,000,000% 1T RUFSEAREEERRY
Thomas Global Financial Hong Kong HK$17,500,000 - 100 100 Provision of brokerage services
Services Limited

RERRSRERAA & 17,500,000/ 7T REEERS
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BE-T-—F+=ZA=1—

AILEE

19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

HEARER

Mason Resources Finance
Limited
KRARMBERAR

Mason Securities Limited
("Mason Securities”)

Mason Strategic Investments
(Asia) Limited
RERBRE (TN BRAR

Pioneer Leap Investments
Limited ("Pioneer Leap")
BREREARAR([2E])

Mason PrivatBank Liechtenstein
("MPL")

Mason PrivatBank Liechtenstein
(TMPL)

#

interests

Place of
incorporation/
operation

EMAL/ B Y

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
E A
Samoa

EES
Liechtenstein

e s

19. ME2AR @)
KRR 2T EMBARFE @)

Particulars of

issued and paid up
ordinary share capital
BRTRARER

RA 2z

Held by the
Company
HALR

2]

%

HK$10,000 =
1000087

HK$512,000,000 =

512,000,000 7

US$1 =

3

Us$1 -

3

Swiss Franc ("CHF") =
20,000,000

20,000,000 %8
(ThLim))

Excluding the interests that are attributable to non-controlling

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period, or at any time during the

year.

Ownership interests

fia s

Held by a
subsidiary
H-ENE

NAkE

100

100

100

#

Group’s
effective
interest’

AEE
ERER
0/

n

100

100

100
100

100

Principal activities

Provision of financing services

RUBERE

Dealing in securities, provision of
securities margin financing and
provision of investment corporate
finance advisory services

EEES RUBSARRANR
RERBCEREBERRK

Trading of securities investments

Investment holding

REER

Provision of private banking and
external asset management services
REBARTRNPEEEERE

TEEREN RSN R

BB D RN R E PR RF R ER
FEFETARREEEHES -
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. MIBAT &)

210

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)
Notes:

(@  Although MCIL's equity interests in HKMS is 47%, in the opinion
of the management, the Group has 51% voting power of HKMS
at the meetings of shareholders and therefore has obtained
control over HKMS.

(b)  Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 31
December 2020, the Group acquired the remaining 30%
of non-controlling interest in MCIL at a consideration of
HK$11,516,000 by taking up the balances due from minority
shareholders to MCIL. The transfer of shares was completed
on 12 July 2021. Upon the completion of the transaction, MCIL
becomes a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

KRR ZEEMBATFE @)
fit

@ HARGEAREBRBZIBER
7% EEERR AEERBERAE
FHEBEBRBHS1%IRZRE - i
BREIBEA TR o

) REBHA-_ZTZ-_TF+_AF=1+—
ANBEEHGZE AEERBRERAR
EEABKOHBBR L  UARE
11,516,000/ 7T W B R 15 & AN 84 T~30%HY)
RN c ER B —E+ R+
ARRBRHER RXHTHE  RIEE
A AREEZENBE AR -

HK$'000
THBTT

Additional interest acquired: TR BEEEHMES ¢
Non-controlling interest TR 9,112
Difference arising on the acquisition of additional interest 5+ A B&Zx (9 (A Uk & — 5 BT BB A7)

in a subsidiary included in equity BIMNERFTELECET 2,404
Total consideration BRE 11,516

(c) Upon the completion of the disposal transaction on 26
February 2021, MRT ceased to be an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and the Group ceased to
have any interest in the MRT Group. Please refer to note 37 for
details.

Financial information of subsidiaries with
individually material NCI

The following table shows the information relating to the non-
wholly owned subsidiaries, MCIL and its subsidiaries (“MCIL
Group”), MRT and its subsidiaries (“MRT Group”), HKMS and
B&P, that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)
during the year. Set out below is the summarised financial
information of each of the subsidiaries with material NCI.
The results for the respective subsidiaries are for the period
from the later of the beginning of the reporting period and
the date of acquisition to the earlier of the date of disposal
and the end of the reporting period. The amounts are
before inter-company eliminations and excluding the related
goodwill.
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HE—T-

—F+ A=t AR

19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Financial information of subsidiaries with
individually material NCI (continued)

19.

By E] ()

BREREARFEREZ HBELQ
RAIMBER @)

B&P HKMS
ERBIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE T
At 31 December 2021 R-BE=—F
+t=A=+—~H
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests FEFE RS RS R A RE 2 L 25% 53%
Non-current assets EREEE 38,401 =
Current assets mENEE 22,379 76,233
Current liabilities mEBAEE (16,576) =
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (10,409) =
Total equity B 33,795 76,233
NCI of subsidiaries within the respective groups #HEEERNHE QAR 2
I AR A = = -
Carrying amount of NCI SRR R 2 BREE 8,449 40,403

MCIL Group MRT Group
REEAEER EREESEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE& T
At 31 December 2020 N-B_THE
+=-—B=+—H
Proportion of NCI's IR R TR
ownership interests pdra ]l 25% 30% 35.15%
Non-current assets IEMENEEE 64,067 56,411 420,196
Current assets MENE B 20,465 17,278 3,421
Current liabilities mENAE (9,203) (37,512) (251)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,919) 5 -
Total equity B 58,410 36,177 423,366
NCI of subsidiaries within the +HEISEE RN E A
respective groups ZIEERER 40,406
Carrying amount of NCI R REE 14,603 51,259 148,813

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19.

Financial information of subsidiaries with

individually material NCI (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

i) FNCITE))

BRERERFERER HELQ

RAIMBER (@)

B&P

HK$'000
FTEx

BE-F-—-%1t=A

HKMS
BEREER
HK$'000

TERT

=t+—HLEE
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests eI i s T A M 2 LBl 25% 53%
Operating income WA 182,873 =
Loss for the year FNEE (22,137) (4)
Loss and total comprehensive income EiEREEBRAELLE (24,326) (4)
Loss attributable to NCI IR R E(GER (6,081) (2)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from THEERERA

() &
Operating activities K EE) 318 =
Investing activities WEES 14 -
Financing activities B EEE) (2,949) =
Total cash outflows e ML 2% (2,617) =

Dividend paid to NCI

IR T IEAE B i an 2 BB =
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. WEBRAT (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with BEREEEARFEEREZ ZHEL
individually material NCI (continued) AMBER @)

B&P MCIL Group MRT Group
REEAEER KREESEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET THET

Year ended BE-_ZE_Z5F

31 December 2020 TZA=+—HLEE
Proportion of NCI's FEPE AR 2 P B 4

ownership interests Z Ll 25% 30% 35.15%
Operating income KLU A 161,789 1,868 -
Loss for the year FREE (5,915) (530) (133,806)
Loss and total EBEREERALE

comprehensive income (3,839) (530) (133,8006)
Loss attributable to NCI IR ERIE(GER (960) (159) (47,033)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Tt &IBIREHRA
Cm) F58

Operating activities LEE 7,569 (7,562) (457)
Investing activities "EEH (357) = 23,355
Financing activities BEEE (3,894) = (22,898)
Total cash inflows/(outflows)  R& R A GRd) 4258 3,324 (7,562) =
Dividend paid to NCI KA T I IR R 2 R B S = 8,048
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. REHENFIER

214

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Carrying amount at the beginning of REYZERAEE
the year 885,724 1,052,895
Share of post-acquisition (losses)/gains  JE(EE R UL % (B518)
and other comprehensive income Wz e HoAth 2 E YA
during the year (42,949) 65,585
Impairment losses during the year FAREEIE (194,508) (191,346)
Disposal during the year FALE (422,141) =
Cancellation of divided declared BEHE EIRAR B 123,834 -
Dividend received B 8 (34,561) (41,410)
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZEREEE 315,399 885,724

As at 31 December 2021, interests in associates comprise of:

(if)

(iif)

HK$88,174,000 (31 December 2020: HK$114,494,000)
representing 42.87% equity interest in Pangenia Inc
("Pangenia”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability.

As at 31 December 2020, HK$420,196,000 representing
46.71% equity interest in The Women'’s Clinic Group
Limited ("WCG"), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability. WCG and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of medical consultation services and reproductive
technology services. On 26 February 2021, the Group
fully disposed of its entire equity interest in WCG. Please
refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
for details.

HK$227,225,000 (31 December 2020: HK$351,034,000)
representing 46.20% equity interest in AYD Group
Limited (“AYD"), a company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands with limited liability. AYD is principally engaged
in franchisor and retail of mother-infant-child products
in Southern China and Eastern China.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
summarised financial information of
individually material associates
Pangenia Group

REHE N AR ()
BEREXRBE LT 2MBEMBE

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Current assets MEVEE 223,607 201,615
Non-current assets EMENEE 66,865 72,663
Current liabilities VEIN=E (88,180) (53,081)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (5.371) (5,217)
Intangible assets mEE 208,904 211,116
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (27,126) (27,126)
Net assets of the associate B NT M FEE 378,699 399,970
Group’s ownership interest REB AR 42.87% 42.87%
Group's share of net assets of the REEEGEE QA

associate HEE 162,349 171,467
Fair value adjustments including AREFAE(BERE)

impairment (74,175) (56,973)

88,174 114,494

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-_RA=1t—BHIHFE

2021
—_ g —=F

HK$'000
TER

2020
—E-FF

HK$'000
TET

Revenue W= 290,745 253,891
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (FE18)/ HH (6,270) 11,428
Other comprehensive income Efh2mkA = -
Total comprehensive income Z2HE U ALREE (6,270) 11,428
Dividend received from the associate BB & R E U ER 2 iR B 6,431 =

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REE N TR (%)
Summarised financial information of BRI EXBE AR ZHMBERBE
individually material associates (Continueq) (&)

WCG Group EEEKEE

2020
— BB

— = —=

HK$°000
TAET

At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H
Current assets MENEE 127,889
Non-current assets ERBEE 804,211
Current liabilities neBeE (45,002)
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE (106,063)
Intangible assets mEE 361,500
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (62,373)
Net assets of the associate BENBNFEE 1,080,162
Fair value adjustments including impairment ARERE(BERE) (180,578)
899,584
Group's ownership interest REBE 2 HBERE 46.71%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEEEEBRERRFEE 420,196
420,196
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of
individually material associates (Continued)

WCG Group (Continued)

Period/year ended 31 December

BHE+-_A=+—HL
i

. REtE Qa8

BEREABENTR U BENBE
(&)

HEBKEEE)

From

1 January
2021 to

26 February
2021 (date
of disposal)

B-ZE——%
—H—RZ
—_E_—&F
—A=+7H
(HEBH) —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T

Revenue W zs 37,659 245,211
Profit for the year FEEHT 4,164 36,824
Other comprehensive income Hai2mEmKkA = =
Total comprehensive income ZHEURALRRE 4,164 36,824
Dividend received from the associate B N AE 2 iR B - 23,355
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REE N TR (%)
Summarised financial information of BRI EXBE AR ZHMBERBE
individually material associates (Continueq) (&)

AYD Group BREKE

2020
—E-FF

HK$°000
TAET

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Current assets MEEE 573,237 892,631
Non-current assets FERHEE 148,805 134,975
Current liabilities V=R (417,814) (656,966)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (249,195) (287,198)
Net assets of the associate BENREEE 55,033 83,442
Group’s ownership interest RNEHE AR 46.20% 46.20%
Group'’s share of net assets AEEEEBERRFEE

of the associate 25,425 38,550
Fair value adjustments including AREFAE(BERE)

impairment 201,800 312,484

227,225 351,034
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REE N TR (%)
Summarised financial information of BRI EREE AT 2B KEERBE
individually material associates (continuec) ()

AYD Group (Continued) BREKE®)
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T T

Year ended 31 December HE+T-_A=+—BLFE

Revenue Wz 2,315,515 2,279,581
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BEB) & (94,974) 67,960
Other comprehensive income Hi 2w A 3,619 26,165
Total comprehensive income 2HE U ALREE (91,355) 94,125
Dividend received from the associate B RSN R U 2 B% B 28,130 18,055
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. NEFE N TRER (#)

The recoverable amount of interests in associates has
been determined by the value-in-use calculation. Cash flow
projections are based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period have been extrapolated using a 3% (2020:
3%) long-term growth rate. This growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of interests in associates, and
determined that the interests in associates impaired by
HK$194,508,000 (2020: HK$191,346,000), mainly due to
deterioration and uncertainty of expected future cash flows
from Pangenia Group and AYD Group which is affected by
the deterioration of the business prospects as a result of

REERRERZ AT OREREDEBER
BEAEFET -REREFRADENER
BHEZAFRUBRE - BHAF 2R
SREBEEMAR(CZE-TF : 3%) KR
R EIER - B R R AN IBREITEE
RIEA BXREBEBEBITENFEHRES

BRE -

BE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HBItFE"
AREETERBE AR RE S5
A0 7 TE FA B A B4 29 18194,508,00078 7T
(ZZ=FTF 191,346,000 7T) * hEEMH
Ry ESERELEEEBEHRKRESR
EEERIEEMN - HZCOVID-19ZIEE
EBA S EEMTE -

COVID-19 pandemic.

Pangenia

Group  WCG Group
FEuEE BEBEEE

AYD Group
EUEERH

For the year ended BE-Z-_—%+=A

31 December 2021 =+—HILEE
Gross profit margin By 44.60% N/AFEH 17.28%
Average growth rate T4t K & 15.05% N/ATiE A 7.32%
Long-term growth rate REIE R R 3.00% N/ATEH 3.00%
Discount rate BHIR =& 16.95% N/ATE R 15.00%
For the year ended BE-Z-_Z5+=A

31 December 2020 =+—HILEE
Gross profit margin ESp B 50.25% 52.98% 16.41%
Average growth rate E R R 12.70% 11.56% 10.11%
Long-term growth rate REEREXR 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Discount rate BHIR =& 16.70% 13.50% 14.00%

Management determined the growth rates based on past
performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant associates.

EEEREBEXRRMEBHNERRE
EREE - PHEMZHRESTHATRER X
I S BRAB AR A Bl 2 B A
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21. INVENTORIES 21. B8
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THBxT FBT
Merchandise for resale HERD 5,143 5,867
Raw materials B 3,819 5,197
8,962 11,064

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. # A AET A ABE2HBEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BRAREF ABR M BEEE 2SN
T

2020
—E-—F —EFTF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR Fis

Investments held for trading #BEBEBEZRE

Equity securities — listed in BAFES —REBLT

Hong Kong (@) 438,271 358,664
Equity securities — listed overseas PR % — FEHN =T (@ 1,491 38,704
Equity securities — listed in PRC ~ J&ZARNZES — AP E (a) 348,983 422,340
Investments not held for WHFEEEZ2RE

trading
Equity securities — listed in AFES —RNEE LT

Hong Kong (a)&(c) 67,544 52,920
Equity securities — listed overseas RYZARZE & — g £ (@&(c) 54,419 49,084
Unlisted equity securities JE ETRRAREE 5 (b)&(c) 16,245 95,024

926,953 1,016,736

Less: Balances in current portion & : RENE D 84 (788,745) (819,708)
Non-current portion FEMENE 138,208 197,028
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAAREBT ANEBHZ 2B EE &)
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: BT

(@)  The fair values of listed equity securities are based on quoted (@) LETRABEZARBRNERMS
market prices in active markets. FrskmEsrE -

(b)  The fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined by by FLETHRABHRZARBLKLEEE
reference to net asset value or by using market approach at FERNREHBRERMSEAET -

the reporting date.

(c)  The financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL © HMHBEESBEARAABEISABRZ
as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or BHREE RAAREBITREER
loss through other comprehensive income. H2EUR AR ERA D E RS E

B

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23 #A A S A 2 E KA > B

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BgE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAT
Unlisted equity securities EFHRAES Note f1i# 942,975 1,026,883
Note: i -
The financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVOCI as MR AEBEEL R HE R EEBE M
the Group made an irrevocable election to recognise the fair value EUWEER AL BN ERE  MRERB
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. This option is BENEBRA A ES AL B2 ER AR
only applying to instruments that are i) not held for trading; ii) not SR HBREEEBN) WIERESES
contractual cash flow solely for payments of principal and interest; N EEARENEERAEBHEHEER
and iii) not derivatives. B RiDWIETETH -
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST 24, BREBERRIREZHMBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
European bonds BN (& 5 - 153,996
25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. BWER
Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to BT ERAZERIZEREHRES -

repayment schedules.

2020
—B-—F —EEF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Kt FHET FHET
Loan receivables from EWRE=H
third parties ZEX
— Term loans — EHIER (@) 443,113 655,111
— Instalment loans — S HIER (o) = 21,490
443,113 676,601
Loan to a shareholder of BT —HEBERAT
an associate —BERRER (o] = 21,691
443,113 698,292
Expected credit loss EHEEEE (@) (269,939) (240,476)
173,174 457,816
Less: Balances due within one B ETARBEEZ —FR
year included in current I HA & 84
assets (173,174) (240,964)
Non-current portion IEMBNEB S = 216,852
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-T—

—F+ A=t AR

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes:

@)

As at 31 December 2021, term loan receivables of:

(i) HK$265,599,000 (2020: HK$304,223,000) are secured by
corporate/personal guarantee provided by equity holders
of the borrowers and collateralised by unlisted securities
or listed securities or properties,

(i) HK$114,092,000 (2020: HK$113,700,000) is collateralised
by unlisted or listed securities;

(i) HKS$NIl (2020: HK$47,708,000 (equivalent to CHF5,425,000))
are collateralised by properties located overseas or
pledged deposits; and

(iv)  HK$63,422,000 (equivalent to CHF7,432,000) (2020:
HK$189,480,000 (equivalent to CHF21,546,000)) are
collateralised by securities and bonds.

As at 31 December 2021, there are no unsecured term loan
receivables (2020: HK$NIl).

The term loan receivables carry fixed interest rates ranging
from around 10% to 16% per annum (2020: 1% to 16% per
annum) and all (2020: all) are within the respective maturity
dates.

As at 31 December 2020, instalment loan receivables are
collateralised by properties situated in Hong Kong, which carry
interest rate of 3.25% above Hong Kong Dollar prime rate per
annum with respective maturity dates.

As at 31 December 2020, loan to a shareholder of an associate
mainly represents an interest-bearing loan at 8% per annum
and related interest receivable from Cosmicfield Investments
Limited (“Cosmicfield”) arising from the acquisition of AYD
Group which is secured by total 3,161 shares of US$1 each,
representing 31.61% of the issued share capital of AYD.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the outstanding
loan balance was fully settled by Cosmicfield, with a transfer
of its entitlement to dividend receivable from AYD Group of
HK$21,691,000 (2020: HK$20,748,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T——

—Ft A= B

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d

The management assessed the collectability of loan
receivables at the end of the reporting period individually with
reference to borrowers’ past settlement history and current
creditworthiness. Loan receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired related to several borrowers for whom there was
no history of default. Loan receivables that were past due but
not impaired as management is of the opinion that there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of the borrower
or the party who provided guarantees and fair value of the
collaterals obtained in respect of these loans.

The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using general approach to measure ECLS.

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

. BWER @
HisE : (48)
O ERERGEBLSSERAZBEE

Rres &k BAEE  ERFHEERER
ZTW@#& %%@%THMEZE
WE RS REE R RS ETERA
ﬁ%% REBEMEREE  AREEE
RBERAIEREHEANEAMTIA
EBZEESESHERARHN AL EL
mEEEREML -

BMES T ESERS A ERBA
TEHEEEE -

iR

ZAr BRI R INEER  EREE

TELA&E#WtE%@—H% MWERBEE
B ATAR S0 R 3 AR AR A AR R TRUR

Gi@&TihE’]ﬁﬂ
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25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. EWWER#®)
Notes: (Continued) BiaE - (88)
(d)  (Continued) @ &
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TXEHIBRAEER T =—F+=
on the Group's loan receivables as at 31 December 2021: A=+—BMERERNEFEERBAR
AR

Stage1  Stage1  Stage2  Stage2  Staged  Stage3 Total Total
2-BR E-BER  E-KR  f-RR  EZRR EZKR &it &

Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance
amount ~ forECLs  amount  forECLS  amount  forECLs  amount  forECLS

BARE BARE BHEE BARE

438 FBRRE  4eE ERBR  42E GESE  4%E BRER
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
Tén fEx T TEr  fEn  FEn  TEr  TEn

Balance as at 1 January 2021 W=E--£-B-Az2&% 160,695 (113) 177,697 (11911) 359,900  (227,852) 698,292  (240,476)

New financial assets originated ~ ERE A HFETBEE

during the year - - 8909 - 191 - 30880 =
Derecognised, including ERRLED BEER

repayment, during the year (160,695) - (69,112) - (56,252) - (286,059) -
Charge during the year ERflR - 705 - 3,881 - (35,286 - (30,700)
Exchange realignment ERfgs - 8 - - - 1229 - 1237
Balance as at H-%=-f

31 December 2021 tZR=t-Rz&8 = - 137,49 (8,030) 305,619  (261,909) 443113  (269,939)
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25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)  (Continued)

Stage 1
ERB

61053
amount

HKS 000
TR

Stage 1
KR
Allowance

for ECLS
BHEE
;

HK$'000

25.

Stage 2
FZER
6ross

amount

HKS 000
ThL

FERE R (&)
Mtk ()

kR 2ZKER
Allowanc (ross
for ECLS amount

TEHn g

B
HKS'000

B

Stage3
F=RR
Allowance
for ECLS
BEE

Gross
amount

HKS000
47

Total
&if
Allowance

i

Balancessat 1lanuay 2000  M-BZRE-R-BzEB 9309 () - - B2 (170263 105939 (170786)
Transfers from Stage 110 Stage 3 EE-BKBEAEZKE (42 2 - - 1 ] - -
Transfers from Stage 3toStage 2 BE=KBEAE-ER - -3 (840 (19330 2840 - -
Transfers betvieen stages BgREA (212 2B (840 (9306) 28418 - -
New financial assets originated

during the year ERELNHEREAE 10316 - - - - - N6 -
Transfer between stages of new

financlal assets originated ~ EREERH B EEA

during the year e BEN (82,000) - B4 - 55,59 - - -
Derecognised, including

repayment, during the year R LB BEER (476,745) 75 () - (660) - A 175
Charge during the year ERE - (632 - 16,509 - 82 -
Eichange relignment B A% 18,309 (3) - - 7769 0789 2078 (2824)
Balance as at R-5-%F

31 December 2020 tBzt-B2£4 160,69 M3 e WA 000 Q78D 698292 (20479
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. BESRHEMEBYRRIEA

Trade receivables B EWERE (@)&(c) 10,016 2,976

Accounts receivable from clients gtiIEMHEI E R EEES R RS

arising from provision of EENEREFER
wealth and asset management
services (b) 17,474 11,092

Accounts receivable from third TR EHF N AL RS
parties arising from EENEWRE=FERR:
provision of securities and
commodities brokerage

services:
— custodian clients —FEERF (b) 19,843 82,750
— margin clients —HFEREP (b) 191,473 150,201
— clearing houses and brokers — — & & Ft 4842 (b) 24,837 13,470
263,643 260,489
Expected credit loss TEHEEEE () (24,135) (37,057)
239,508 223,432
Deposits and prepayments e RTEMFIE 24,945 27,943
Other debtors HaEmE (d) 12,171 16,038
Amounts due from related parties & U @85 75 Z038 (e) 233,471 318,727
270,587 362,708
Expected credit loss TEHEEEE (@&(e) (191,556) (2,768)
79,031 359,940
Total trade and other receivables, & 5 K £ th fE Y FoB 458 -
net of ECL provision MBRTEHEEEBRE 318,539 583,372
Less: Balances due within one W ERTARBEE LN —F
year included in current AN EIER B 45 82
assets (308,511) (404,868)
Non-current portion EMmENE 10,028 178,504
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

Settlement terms of trade receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit terms offered to these customers are
generally in credit limit and credit period from 30 to 60 days.

Settlement terms of accounts receivable

Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in securities and commodities in respect
of cash clients and margin clients are two or three trading days
after the transaction dates.

Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in index, commodity and currency
futures contracts represent the margin deposits maintained
with futures clearing house, options clearing house or brokers
to meet the margin requirements of open contracts. Margin
calls from clearing house and brokers are settled on a daily
basis. The excess amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated are repayable on demand.

The credit facility limits to margin clients are determined by the
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted
by the Group. The majority of the loans to margin clients
which are secured by the underlying pledged securities are
interest-bearing. The Group maintains a list of approved stocks
for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio. Any
excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call which the
customers have to make up the shortfall.

Loans to margin clients as at the end of the reporting period
were secured by the customers’ securities to the Group as
collateral with discounted market value of approximately
HK$425,833,000 (2020: HK$355,446,000).

The Group determines the allowance for impaired debts
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts receivable and on management’s judgement
including the assessment of change in credit quality, collateral
and the past collection history of each client. The concentration
of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable
in order to minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances are
regularly monitored by management.

26. E5REMEBEWRE @
Wizt -

(@)

(b)

B2 RRFUREERK

AEBEREFNESIGREEUEET
HET - ARFEREPRENEEGRRE
FRERRERNFOE0HANEEH -

FE L B R 4 BEAR K
HRRERPRAFREFPME  #BEHFK
BmELEBEREEBBETELZ
WRRFARZ ZAEMER=ERS
AR&EE -

RIEH BRREEHEAN T AR
T TE B MR 7 R -
TR B R SR E A
B2 RES DHATRANZRE
SEF o FHF R RESBHT
SER - BBFRERBSZ A
BB -

HFREFPEERERBIIZANEE MK
BB RESTEMERET - KD H
THREPOHER (HARMDERES
TR A8 - REBERE —MERR
B BE  NRBEEFERRL TR
FHERER BRERLEEERZS
BRBA - BP/ABEARER -

RBERRGTFHREFZERHE
FHTFAEEEEHFRONTENE
#) /425,833,000 L (ZE -2 F :
355,446,000/ 7T ) K78 H IR -

AR BRI FE U AR SR AT [ MR K BR R
i UREREZHE (BEEEE
BRE(ZFE  BERmEEEP 2K
RECE) MR EREBR 2 BE - A&
EnEEETRBRAR  BAFPER
R BB R o

AEEHEFHREXHRE - ~EH
SR B8 R AR SRR R R e 4
N EERERERE - BHFIERE
I8 8 E AT o
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

()

Ageing analysis and impairment
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, by invoice date is as follows:

26.

B REMERRE @
#iE ()

(© FREDHREE
RB|EMR - RBEFEHNZE HRUGK
BRREDOMIT

HK$'000
TET

Less than 1 month DR —1E A 3,595 283
1 month to 3 months —Z==18A 5,946 1,757
3 months to 6 months =ZE=XEAR 475 936

10,016 2,976
Movements in the expected credit loss are as follows: TEEEEEIEZEHMT

At the beginning of the reporting period 7 k& B8 47) 37,057 36,799
(Reversal)/allowance for expected TEEEEEE (BL)/ BE

credit loss (12,922) 258
At the end of the reporting period A iR HA R 24,135 37,057

No ageing analysis has been disclosed in respect of accounts
receivable arising from the ordinary course of brokerage
business and wealth and asset management service business,
as in the opinion of the management, it does not give
additional value in view of the business’s nature.

For trade receivables, impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date using the simplified approach to measure
ECLs. As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount and
loss allowance of trade receivables is HK$10,016,000 (2020:
HK$2,976,000) and HK$88,000 (2020: HK$38,000) respectively.

For accounts receivable, impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date using general approach to measure ECLS.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Ageing analysis and impairment (Continued)

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade and account receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s accounts receivable as at 31 December 2021

and 2020:

Stage 1
S-k&

6ross
amount

asq
HKS'000

AT

Stage 1
£-ER
Allowance
for ECLS
RHEE
ERRRE
HK$'000
T

26. E5REMEBEWRE @
HisE : (48)

(© FRERDHTREE (F)

FEATE RS AR IMNEER BEEE
ERREBBASNEMBESEER &
A BRI B R TR & 3 K A
B 5 MUK
TR fnis HRiER B — F R R X RO SR B

AR - — BT E

TTRE R T LAMSH

TREINEAAEER T —_—F R
ZoBF T A=+ BHEKERERS

EERBAMRNER :

Stage2  Stage?
$-ER  EER
Gross  Allowance
amount  for ECLS
RBEE

Belm  FRER
HKS'000 HKS'000
B AL

Stage 3
E-RR

Gross
amount

k3
HK$'000

AT

Stage 3
EZR8
Allowance
for ECLS
RHEE
FakE
HK$'000

TEL

Total
ait
Gross
amount

B3R
HK$'000

AL

Total

At
Allowance
for ECLS
REE
FRER
HKS'000
TATL

Balance as at 1January 2021 R-E--f-F-B&&% 189,258 (385) 31,694 (86) 36,561 (36,548) 257,513 (37,019)
New financial assets originated ~ ERESHEBBEE

during the year 229,834 - 2 - 335 - 23017 -
Derecognised, including FRELER RRER

repayment, during the year (189,258) 385 (31,694) 86 (13,105) 13091 (234,057 13,562
Charged during the year EfyR - (253) - 2 = (335) : (590)
Balance as at 31 December ~ R=B=-F

2021 TZA=T-REH 229,834 (253) 2 ¥ 23,791 (23,792) 253,627 (24,047)
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. ESREMBEWTRIEE)
Notes: (Continued) Hist - (#)
(c) Ageing analysis and impairment (Continued) (c) HRERDHRREE (&)

Stage 1
E-E8

Gross
amount

kA
HK§ 000
TEL

Stage 1
£-KR
Allowance
for ECLS
BHEE
FEBRE
HK$'000

Staige2  Stage?

KR KA

Allowance
for ECLS
RBEE

aeE  FRER

HKS'000 HK$'000

B BT

Gross
amount

Stage 3 Stage 3 Total Total
£ZER  EZKER &% CE
Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance
amount  forECLS  amount  forECLS
RS RERE

BeE  FRERE BeE FERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AL AT B TATL

Balance asat 1January 2020 W=-F-FE-F-R&H 155,934 (56) 6,788 (15) 36,537 (36,524) 199,259 (36,599)
New financial assets originated ~ FREEHEEKEE
(uring the year 20977 - - - - - 20977 -
Transfer from/to 12-month ECLs — FREEHHHKEZER 1A
tof from lifetime ECLS of new REBREFREAERA
financial assets originated EERESE/E5RA
during the year BfEESREALER
féﬁ}ﬂf‘égif (31,718 - 31,604 - 4 = = -
Derecognised, including ERRIED AERE
repayment, during the year (155,935) 57 (6,783) 15 - - (162723) 72
Charged during the year Enak = (38¢) S 86) S (24) S (496)
Balance as at 31 December ~ R=B=F&
2020 T-Rzt-R4s 189,258 (389) 31,694 (86) 36,961 (36,548) 2571513 (37,019)
(d) Other debtors (d HitfFE
For other debtors, impairment analysis is performed at HREMER  REITERSRER
each reporting date using general approach and based on HERBAZIERT —EAESREE
12-months ECLs. EBH#ETT -
(e) Amounts due from related parties (e) FEURRAEE S5 FIE
Included in amounts due from related parties were amounts &T ATE UK BA S 5 RIB Y © 58 A TE ULHT

due from beneficial owners of respective non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries of HK$41,915,000 (2020:
HK$52,238,000) and other receivables from an associate of

BRAABHAEEREZNEZESR
A FRIEL1,9150008 L (ZE T F -
52,238,000/ 7T) K & U 5%%2 AW H

HK$120,474,000 (2020: HK$97,927,000), which are unsecured, fth 5K IE 120,474,000 0 (ZE T F :

interest-free and repayable within one year, and dividend 97,927,000 7t) + A AEIKE - 2 B
receivable of HK$71,082,000 (2020: HK$166,785,000) which LBER—ERNESRZ UKEEKR %
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable in five years from BRERESRAFSFREREENE
the date of dividend declaration. The carrying value of the Ik A% 871,082,000 T (ZE =T F :

amounts due approximate their fair value. The ECLS are
based on the 12-month ECLs. The loss allowance increased
by HK$188,788,000 (2020: HK$63,000) for amounts due from
related parties during the year.
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166,785,000/ 7T) © FEUGRIE A BR (A 2
HERAREREE - %EHEFEJ%%ETJ&Jr—
Iﬁi‘fﬁﬁlmf%féﬁau BoFR- EIE

Bt 75 5% 38 A 15 18 18 4 1% /n188,788,0007%
TL(ZE T4 : 63000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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27. BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

27. |OTERBITEBRRAS

Fixed bank deposits IRITEHTFR (a) 551,457 1,194,299
Bank balances and cash WITHEHB IR 1,185,994 848,130
(b)&(c) 1,737,451 2,042,429

(@) As at 31 December 2021, fixed bank deposits are made @ RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H" BT
for varying periods of between three to six months FEHEROHARIRREKR S H
(2020: between one day and twelve months) depending XN F=Z=2XEA(ZE_ZF:
on the immediate cash requirements. —BZ+=-f@AR) -

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the balance consists of b RZZE-—F+-A=+—0 " &&
a significant amount denominated in Swiss Franc BFE AR TR ([ 0ARR ) REUT
(“CHF") and Euro approximate to HK$6,396,000 and FHE®ERERIE - 9 54 56,396,000
HK$73,318,000 respectively (2020: HK$248,403,000 and BT K&733180008 T (ZE T F :
HK$425,115,000). 248,403,000/ 7T }2425,115,0007 7T.) °

() The loss allowance decreased by HK$1,025,000 (2020: © FATHRITER  ROEHBEES
increased by HK$205,000) for fixed bank deposits, bank B &5 18 B R 401,025,000 T (= F
balances and cash during the year. ZZF : $£50205,000%7T) ©

(d) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting d BREESBRHZERTEAMRE

period include deposit with banks of RMB34,430,000
(equivalent to HK$42,141,000) (2020: RMB60,048,000
(equivalent to HK$71,368,000)) held by subsidiaries
which are not freely remittable to the holding company
because of currency exchange restrictions.

BIERARNHREHRNRAS KRS
LEYMEEMB AR ENRITER
AR #34,430,0007T (F8 % 742,141,000
BIL) (ZEZTF - ARKE60,048,000
T (FRE 771,368,000/ L)) °
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ESFRHMENSKIE
2021
—E-—F
Notes HK$°000
k23 FHExT
Trade payables to third parties BRE=FESER (@) 11,028 2,784
Accounts payable to clients RIRHEFEREEEERRS
arising from provision of EENENEFER
wealth and asset management
services (b) 169,132 996,810
Accounts payable to third parties FHIR & A M B & 40 iR
arising from provision of EEZENE=ZFERN:

securities and commodities
brokerage services:

— custodian clients —ERRF (b) 577,104 463,650
— margin clients —HREF (b) 73,403 95,421
— clearing house and brokers — BERREL (b) 4,176 58,364
834,843 1,617,029

Less: Cash held on behalf of B REREPEEERS
clients () (613,084) (543,603)
221,759 1,073,426
Other payables E A 5RIE (@) 44,499 82,985
Deposits received Blize 4,183 5,238
Amounts due to related parties  FE{~HBEES 5 Z0E (e 288 5,468
48,970 93,691
270,729 1,167,117

234  Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 28. ESRHMEMKIEE)
(a) Ageing analysis of trade payables (@) ESEMFTERERIN
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RBERAR - B ENZERAAEERE
payables by date of issue of invoice is as follows: AHRBRER ST T
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHBIT
Less than 1 month DR —1EA 6,858 1,722
1 month to 3 months —==18A 4,100 76
3 months to 6 months =E=XEA 70 986
11,028 2,784
(b) Settlement terms of accounts payable (b) EFERREEHRN
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of business RUEREEEERE 2 AEEKBIE
of wealth and asset management services are repayable to FEEZENEREEFERIT -

clients on demand.

Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of business RRERPRIFREFLME » HBHL
of brokerage in securities in respect of cash clients and margin WEBKZHBEEBBERELEZEMAE
clients are two or three trading days after the transaction HARRZBEMER =EX S HE A
dates. Ho

Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of business MIEE BRAEBHESNZELE
brokerage in index, commodity and currency futures contracts BEBBEBBEREEZEMANERRK
represent the margin deposits received from clients for their TIEREFHNHES RS B KEIER
trading in futures contracts. The excess over the required NIFRIES - BARTTFRIZSHNE D
margin deposits stipulated are repayable to clients on demand. ARERREBHRER

No ageing analysis has been disclosed in respect of accounts MEREEAACLESUARMERE
payable arising from the ordinary course of brokerage business EEEREESATEBTRELENERN
and wealth and asset management service business, as in the ERZERERAN  REAAEEERAE
opinion of the management, it does not give additional value in ERFNEBME AW T SELEIME
view of the business’s nature. (E0
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HEZTZ

—F+ A=t AR

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

()

(d)

(e)

29.

Contract liabilities arising from the

The Group maintains segregated accounts with banks and
authorised institutions to hold cash on behalf of clients
arising from its normal course of business in provision for
brokerage services. At 31 December 2021, client money
maintained in segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in
the financial statements amounted to HK$613,084,000 (2020:
HK$543,603,000).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, included in other payables
are salaries and bonus payables, professional advisory fee
payables and bond interest payable.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the amounts due to the
directors of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment term. The carrying value of the amounts
due approximate their fair value.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

segment of:

Wealth and asset management,

financial brokerage and 18 A AR %

related services

28.

29.

B RHEMBENRIE®E

(©

(d)

(e)

REBRIRIT REERERIBR B
B URKREBEFHABHRHRELRE
W—REBBRTFELENRES - N=F
—Z—F+ZRA=+—8 GHRRBEILE
FmiRERVBHRESITEENES
KB 5613,084,0008 L (ZE=FF ¢
543,603,000/ 7T) °

RZBE-Z—FR=-_ZT-_FTF+=A
=+—8 EtEMRESEEMNETS
NIEHT - BN EEEMS R EMNESF

=

o

RZEZ—FRZZTZTEF+=A
=+—H ENf—HEHREBARESRE
ARER 2 EBEETERER - E
NeENRAEEEANEMEE -

BHNEE

HATABELEZEFIRIE

BEREEER RELENR

2021
—_E-_—5F

2020
—E-FF
HK$'000
TH T

HK$'000
TER

18,357 16,056

The Group receives in advance of advisory service fee which
represents total contract value upon the signing of insurance
advisory service agreement by customers.
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29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 29.

Movements in contract liabilities:

BREE@®)
BHEERE:

2021 2020
=B —F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January ®n—A—H 16,056 16,566
Decrease in contract liabilities as a HREFYERTAGNAR
result of recognising revenue during ZFRABRAEBHEHEE
the year that was included in the NERAR
contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year (16,056) (16,566)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result {RGERREAIEEER ALY
of billing in advance of insurance BE®EM
advisory services 18,357 16,056
At 31 December Rn+-—A=+—8” 18,357 16,056
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. FTEERMIA
Assets Liabilities
BE a&
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E- - —_T-TF B —T-TH
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Ht it FHET T T FHET FH T
Forward exchange RHANEA K
contracts @) - 19,529 - 19,521
Fixed coupon notes  EEZEE (b) 22,295 = = =
22,295 19,529 - 19,521
Notes: BiEr
(@)  The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts (@) AEBEEIUZHERPEEAENER
for acting exclusively as commission agent of the clients. EAEEFPHAENREA ZEERHE
These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge BEHNWRIETREH TRAEREZR
purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or |0ss. REFTABRIE -
The fair value of foreign currency forwards are determined RENESGHZ ARBERARERH
using forward exchange rate at the reporting date. HRHEXREE -
(b)  The Group has entered into various fixed coupon notes by AEBEIUETEEREEAN %

contracts. These fixed coupon notes contracts are not
designated for hedge purposes and are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

The fair value of fixed coupon notes are based on quoted
market prices in active markets.
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION
Movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
position are as follows:

31.

EER R
RNEEAEBETHEFEAT 2 LB :

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Recognised net deferred tax ERABEHEEE (EE)
liabilities/(assets) B
At the beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥k 2 2§ 9] 25,899 20,184
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss Gt A) /B8 (#:13)
(Note 13) (1,699) 3,971
(Credited)/charged to other GtA) /fFna Em2mlA
comprehensive income (567) 359
Exchange realignment [E 3 2 (382) 1,385
At the end of the reporting period RHIREHK 23,251 25,899

Recognised net deferred tax liabilities
reporting period represent the following:

at the end of the

RIEIIR 2 CHEREEHIB R EFEMNT :

Assets Liabilities
BE 8E
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F BT B —ZT-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHETT FET T
Pension obligation BREEMT - 1,086 - -
Tax losses HIAEE 3,684 5,716 - -
Intangible assets EmREE = S (13,418) (18,872)
Financial assets at fair value 2 AR ETABRZ
through profit or loss EHMEE = = (13,517) (14,075)
Others Hh - 1,122 - (876)
Deferred tax assets/ BELEHBBEE
(liabilities) (B8R&) 3,684 7,924 (26,935) (33,823)
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
HK$580,623,000 (2020: HK$802,288,000) and deductible
temporary differences of HK$180,000 (2020: HK$26,180,000).
Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary
differences expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these items
because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the Group can utilise the benefits

therefrom.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of temporary
difference associated with the Group's Australia subsidiary’s
undistributed retained profits, amounting to approximately
AUS$2,186,000 (2020: AU$4,125,000). No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of this difference because
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of
the subsidiary and it is probable that such difference will not

be reversed in the foreseeable future.

32. REVERSE REPURCHASE AND REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS
(@) Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Reverse repurchase agreements are transactions
entered into by the Group, with financial institutions,
which are the counterparties entering into a
commitment with the Group to purchase the specified
bonds eligible for Swiss National Bank General Collateral
Basket at a future date at an agreed price. As part of
the reverse repurchase agreements, the Group receives
securities allowed to be re-pledged in the absence
of default of the agreement by counterparties. If the
collateral received declines in value, the Group may, in

certain circumstances, require additional collaterals.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount
paid for the reverse repurchase agreements was
CHF24,748,000 (equivalent to HK$217,641,000) and was
recognised as receivables from reverse repurchase
agreements. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value
of the specified bonds received as collateral for the
outstanding receivable in connection with its reverse
repurchase agreements was CHF24,841,000 (equivalent
to HK$218,455,000. All the above collateral is allowed to

be re-pledged.
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31.

32.

SEREBLE ()
MWZZE-—F+-A=+—8 A£EL
R Bt & 575 78 85 $8580,623,000/8 7T (—ZE =
TF 1 802,288,000 7T) K A] 0% E b5 M 2=
%8180,00078 7T (ZZF = Z 4 : 26,180,000/%57T)
WRECHBEE - RBRATHE BIE
EREEANBTEREZE9TS R - &
7S 52 (8] 1 K 7] B Al A R 3R FE SR B0 1)K
AR AR AT ERZSZEE
HRELEHIBEE -

R-ZT-_—F+-A=+—H BXEE
BN BRARZ AN ERRBEHBEENE
B 2= 5BAAEAK) 52,186,000 T (- BT ¢
41250008 7T) » R ANER B A B 1 1R 3%
EMBARINKREBEIE RS E8AEA
TBRARKIRATBE T S B - MO TR EZ
EEERRRLEHRERE-

J 10 [2] #& K [ B Hh

(@ RMEEH=R

REFNA @B R RO E R
MRS E F IR AN B ET R
o URARBHUOEBREBER
AERESHEIBRRRIT—ETF—
ARAEFH SB(Swiss National Bank General
Collateral Basket) M5 EfE % ° fEAR
MEBREN—D  EXZSEFIL
MERBENIBTRT - AEEUET]
FEFEFOES o WATREA K IF
mEBE TR AAEBEATRERE TS
ST EREEIMER S

RZE_ZTF+-_A=+—H"
RRABBHEINOREES
#8 524,748,0003 34 B8 (M & R
217,641,000 7T) M #ER AR M [E
BipmERFE R _FF+=
A=+—8 BURENEEESLAR
BEABERALEHENREE
FEUFRIE RO IR f0) 424,841,0005H +
3% BB 48 & $2218,455,0008 7T) © Fi A
R HR AR T S R E T IRIE o
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32. REVERSE REPURCHASE AND REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS (Continued)
(b) Repurchase Agreements
Repurchase agreements are transactions in which the
Group sells a security and simultaneously agrees to
repurchase it at the agreed date and price.

32.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount
received from the repurchase agreements was
CHF27,231,000 (equivalent to HK$239,479,000) and
was recognised as obligations under repurchase
agreements. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value
of the specified bonds which the Group re-pledged as
collateral in connection with its repurchase agreements
was CHF26,963,000 (equivalent to HK$237,121,000).

Both the reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase
agreements were settled during the year ended 31 December
2021,

33.

SHARE CAPITAL 33.

J 10 (21 B8 R 0 B8 1 i 42)

[E] 55 thh =

ClfE AR E L & E F LR R
BERKE B RANEBREBZE
FHIR 5

(b)

RZZEZEF+=-A=+—H g0E
B 17 M ER B0 R 45 B 88 /27,231,000
B 1055 BF (A& 74239,479,00078 7T) &
WHERARLEBZETHEE - R
TZEF+A=+—H X5EE
THEARERER B RZEER RO
TE B FH B A 7 B #26,963,0008 + 7%
BB (P& 7237,121,000/ 7T) °

RAEEm#ENREREEIDR T
F+T+A=+—HFERNEN -

&

Number of
shares
% 17 8 B
Issued and fully paid shares: ERTRAZKRM
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZEF—H—H 44,375,065,557 6,142,962
Cancelled during the year FAB T (10,180,000) -
At 31 December 2020, R-—eE-—s=&+-g=+—H-
1 January 2021 and —E--¥-A—-Hk
31 December 2021 —_E-_—-%4+-H=+—H 44,364,885,557 6,142,962

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
repurchased 10,180,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited for a total consideration of HK$1,100,000,
at a price per share between HK$0.086 and HK$0.121. The
Company has cancelled these 10,180,000 shares on 23
March 2020. No shares were repurchased or cancelled by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BE-_T-NF+ZA=+—HLFE"
KRR EBEABERZARAAER
10,180,0008% A% 17 - 484X.{E /1,100,000%4 7T -
TR EE N F0.086% 7T K012 T « AA
RIER-ZZ_TF=A-+=HEHEZZE
10,180,000/ it - HZE T - —F+ A8
=+—HIEFE  AA B D 5
EAAIRRAD
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HE—T—
34,

35.

—F+ZA=t+—HIFE
RESERVES

(@ The capital reserve was arising from acquisition of
interest in subsidiaries in prior years.

(b) The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
exchange differences relating to the translation of
the financial statements of the foreign operations of
the Group and/or its associates from their functional
currency to the Group's presentation currency which
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

(c) The FVOCI reserve represents fair value reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9
that are held at the end of the reporting period.

(d) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no reserves were
available for distribution to the equity holders of the
company.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The Group has provided for its eligible employees a defined
contribution retirement scheme under Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the "“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
each of the employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% (2020: 5%) of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
which are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the aggregate
amount of employer’s contributions made by the Group to the
defined contribution retirement scheme was approximately
HK$1,988,000 (2020: HK$1,686,000). As at 31 December 2021,
the Group was not entitled to any forfeited contributions to
reduce its future contributions (2020: Nil).
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35.
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@ BARFEBIHBEFEWEN B
MR MEEE ©

b INBERBEEEENEAERR S
HEBERBIRINEBE AR 2R
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RHERRIA R FESNIETE H T Rt e

© RAnEFAEMEZERGEREER
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35. BERMNKERN#)
Defined benefits retirement plan REBREMAKE

The Company operates a funded defined benefit plan for all
its qualifying employees in the Principality of Liechtenstein.

The Group’s defined benefit plan is a cash-balance plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered multi-employer collective pension fund. The
plan has the legal form of a foundation and it is administrated
by independent trustees with the assets held separately from
those of the Company. The trustees are responsible for the
determination of the investment strategy of the plan.

The employees are insured at least in accordance with the
legal provisions for pension funds. The pension plans cover
the risks of the economic consequences of old age, disability
and death in accordance with the Liechtenstein pension act
(BPVG).

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes
in the life expectancy for pensioners and equity market risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and
the present value of the defined benefit obligations at 31
December 2021 and 2020, were carried out by Martin Kuhn
of Ernst & Young AG, who is a Swiss Certified Pension Fund
Manager and a member of the Swiss Association of Actuaries,
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

ARBB/EMBEIZBLTENEHRER
REFERRNEE

RE B FEBAE B 2R REET S
BEHERMEBEEBNZEISERERS
HEeHH - ZArB RBESgMERT A
HBYXEAEE MEEERARFE
EDRBE XTEARREEZENER
BRHES o

REEVRBEARSEZRREESFRRE -
RIBIXBLEERZLERBPVC) BES
APEIREEF  BRAIETHEERRE
R

ZatEEEN RER EESENERS
S B C R E e LA R A T 5 H AR o

ZEEEEN R BEMERN =T =—
FR-Z_ZEF+_A=+—BARAEBEH
HERIRETIAEMSt & Young AG AIMartin
Kuhn (%8 Bin T MR E S 438 Rin 48
dftrees)FAERENEEREME
JIERETT o

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE

243



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0|

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-"A=+—HItFE

35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35. EERKER @)

Defined benefits retirement plan (continued) REBREMNKE (2
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the RMEARFTHEAC EZRBERRNOT

reporting period are as follows:

Discount rate (%) AL 38 % (%) 0.30% 0.20%
Interest credit rate on retirement BEZHFRAEEEE%) 1.00% 1.00%
savings (%)
Expected rate of future pension cost KRB EZEFAFEIR (%) 0.00% 0.00%
increases (%)
Expected rate of salary increases (%) TR EA R (%) 1.00% 1.00%
Mortality table E=RTE BVG/LPP  BVG/LPP 2015
2020 Generational
Generational Menthonnex
Menthonnex
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan BEMERT %8 EENTIEEER
assets was CHF1,830,000 (equivalent to HK$15,617,000) (2020: 1,830,0008 1% BF (#8 & 715,617,000/ 7T)
CHF4,776,000 (equivalent to HK$41,997,000)).The deficiency of —E-TF 47760005 AR (FHE R
CHF275,000 (equivalent to HK$2,345,000) (2020: CHF886,000 41,997,000/ 7T.)) © T8 HA #§ i 35.275,000% 4=
(equivalent to HK$7,613,000)) is expected to be cleared over SEER (B E 23450008 7T) (T E T & :
the remaining service period of 15.11 years (2020: 19.34 866,000k L% B (18& 747,613,000/ 7T) ) &Y
years). BREST 15.11F (2T -ZF : 1934 F)
IRISHAREH -
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions
as at the end of the reporting period is shown below:

Increase
in rate

FMEEFH
%

Increase/
(decrease) in
defined
benefit
obligations

REEF
BE#mM,

35. BERMWKER @)

REBAMBMNE 8 (@)
RO K 10 B K R AR 0 BAL BB 4T
mF

Increase/
(decrease) in
defined
benefit
obligations
RERF
BEEm/
(R 2) (R 2)
HK$'000 %
FHET FHBT

Decrease
in rate

2021 T
Discount rate BHIR & 0.25% (601) 0.25% 641
Future salary increase % T 2 B 1 A 0.25% 19 0.25% (17)
Future pension cost AKRBESKAEM

increase 0.25% 437 N/ARE H N/ATiE F
2020 —T-TF
Discount rate ARIR & 0.25% (2,903) 0.25% 2,287
Future salary increase R T 2 B 1 A 0.25% 65 0.25% (58)
Future pension cost REREZSHAEM

increase 0.25% 1,102 N/ATNE A N/AZN3E A

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based
on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant
assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual
change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely
that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

ERSgREIMIDERERERMNEER

FPEBMARTIERRILBAABEESHMZE
MEEETHEN T AEE - SRRESN
ERE-ERBREROEE  REHAAEM
REERFTE - GREIM IR TAER
NEENEREZSY DHERZSEMEROE
BETSEREL -
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35. EERKER @)

Defined benefits retirement plan (continued) REBREMNKE (2
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement MZETEIN R G B R R P RERNAH T -

of profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows:

2020
—E-FF

HK$°000
TAET

Current service cost B EA AR 7% Ak AN (1,405) 2,905
Interest cost SN N 69 154
Net benefit (income)/expenses BF (WA HZF5E (1,336) 3,059
Recognised in employee benefit expenses  HME & 18 MBI S 132 (1,405) 2,905
Recognised in finance costs PRl E B AR R 69 154

(1,336) 3,059
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit AERABEEHRBELBFHTIWT

obligations are as follows:

2021 2020

=—B=—fF —T_EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&IT

At 1 January n—A—H 49,610 51,893
Current service cost BIVER B 75 A 75 1,831 4,351
Past service credit BARBESR (3,236) (1,446)
Employee contributions BEMHH 886 1,953
Interest cost FE A 69 154
Benefit paid =R (30,020) (10,507)
Actuarial gain BEEF 394 (1,255)
Exchange difference on a foreign plan HMEFHEIE X =5 (1,572) 4,467
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 17,962 49,610
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair
value of plan assets are as follows:

35.

BERNER ()

RERMBAKETE (20

REBNBEENAEIEEAR

BT

2021 2020
“E--f “2°%
Defined Defined
benefit Fair value Benefit benefit Fair value Benefit
obligations of plan assets liability obligations of plan assets liability
RERT THEE RERH iTEEE
Bff ME EHEE af o BHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR Tin TiEn T T b
1 January -A-H 49,610 (41,997) 7,613 51,893 (41.282) 10,611
Pension cost charged 18/ GEA)BEM
(credited) to profitorloss: B EHA:
Service cost R (1,405) 34 (1,371) 2905 70 2975
Net interest expense HERZ g 69 (54) 15 154 (121 k4]
Sub-total inclucied in profit or -~ 5t AJB# &0/ vat
loss (1,336) (20) (1,356) 3059 (1) 3,008
Benefits paid by the plans g &I 08 (30,020) 30,020 - (10,507) 10,507 -
RemeasLrement gains/ EFiERE2ZE
(losses) in other LoN:¢:74
comprehensive income: (BR):
Return on plan assets HEEEDR
(excluding amounts (REHEEA
included in net interest MERFRM
expense) %) = (2,114) (2,114) = (1619) (1,619
Actiarial changes GHBRREGELN
arising from changes REZ
in demographic
assumptions (598) - (598) - - -
Actuarial changes arising £ 2EBFEDELH
from changes in financial ~~ EE%2
assumptions (251) - (251) 815 - 815
Experience adjustment HEFL 1,243 - 1,243 (2,070) - (2,070)
Sub-totalincluded inother st AEMZERAL
comprehensive income et 394 (2,114) (1,720) (1,255) (1619 (2.874)
Contribution by employer ~~ E¥ 45t - (1,950) (1,950) - (3906) (3906)
Contribution by employee. B4t 886 (886) = 1953 (1.953) -
Exchange realignment EiHBE (1.572) 1330 (242) 4,467 (3693) 174
31 December T-A=t-H 17,962 (15,617) 2,345 49610 41,997) 7613
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35.
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets

are as follows:

Equity instruments, quoted in an
active market

Debt instruments

Property

Cash and cash equivalents

Alternative investments

RIREMIGRENEDZ TR

EIHTA

SUES
AeRIREFEY
BREE

BERKERN 2
REBAMBMNE 8 (@)
HEEERENARBEBHBIMT :

2020
—E-FF

HK$°000
TAET

26.00% 24.53%
64.50% 58.69%
7.50% 0.88%
0.00% 4.18%
2.00% 11.72%

The plan assets do not include ordinary shares of the
Company and no property occupied by the Group.

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future
years are as follows:

FFEEEYEBREARRNERER AR
SEMEERYE -

RIRFEHFERMGTEI BTN -

Within the next 12 months RAR K128 A 637 2,312
Between 2 and 5 years MEEZRF - 7,517
Between 5 and 10 years AFEE+F - 8,519
Total expected payments TEERS SRAR KR 637 18,348

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the
end of the reporting period is 15.11 years (2020: 19.34 years).

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021
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36. LEASES
The Group as lessee
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
recognised and the movements during the year:

36. HE

REBER/EBAA

THIHEERNEAEEENRADER

REES

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT

Land and building T RETF
At the beginning of the reporting period 7 k2 2§ #] 29,012 63,025
Additions NE 47 916
Depreciation expense WERX (14,562) (18,467)
Lease modification MEEE = (1,181)
Lease termination HEKIE = (15,864)
Exchange realignment fE 3 & (296) 583
At the end of the reporting period RiREH R 14,201 29,012
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36. LEASES (Continued) 36. HE#)
The Group as lessee (continued) EEBERAEA @
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and UTEAFEHEARENRESERHE

the movements during the year:

2020
— BB

—_—= =

HK$°000
TAET

At the beginning of the reporting period k& Hi 4] 32,103 65,184
Additions NE 47 916
Accretion of interest R 218N 1,781 3,300
Payments (g (17,662) (30,415)
Lease modification HEBE] = (1,181)
Lease termination HE&IE = (6,035)
Exchange realignment fE 3 2 (332) 334
At the end of the reporting period Rk EHER 15,937 32,103
Analysed to: HUATSAEEL DT

Current Vik2) 12,288 16,202

Non-current ERE 3,649 15,901
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36. LEASES (Continued) 36. HE#®)
The Group as lessee (continued) EEBERAMEA @
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: TF &N ERER

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET

Depreciation expense of right-of-use FREEEITERX

assets 14,562 18,467
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaBMNEMEZ 1,781 3,300
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHEERENAX - 48
Loss on termination of leases KIEHERNER = 9,829
Total amount recognised in profit or loss MNIBRERHE S 16,343 31,644
The Group had total cash outflows for leases of AEEBR T —FHHERSRLAET
HK$17,662,000 in 2021 (2020: HK$30,463,000).The Group 717,662,000 7T (Z & ZF 4 : 30,463,000
also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease BIT) RZT-—F  AEEMNEHAES
liabilities of HK$47,000 (2020: HK$916,000) and HK$47,000 ENBEEEENIFRSENTED R /H47,000
(2020: HK$916,000) respectively in 2021. BT (ZEZFF : 916,000 7T) K&47,000%

(T -FF : 9160008 70) ©
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37. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY 37. HE—FNBLRANEEKRE

On 26 February 2021, the Company’s indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Mason Healthcare Group Limited (“Mason
Healthcare”), entered into the share purchase agreement
with a third party company (the “Purchaser”) in which Mason
Healthcare transfer 64.85% equity interest in its subsidiary,
Mason Reproductive Technology Limited (“MRT"), to the
Purchaser at a cash consideration of HK$268,000,000. The
transfer was completed on 26 February 2021. After the
disposal, MRT ceased to be an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and the Group ceased to have any
interests in the MRT.

The following summarises consideration received and the

MRZZBE-Z—F-A=Z+X8 KX2Q7FM
E2EWNBRRIKRRBESBEABRAA
((EREBEDEEFE=FRRIUTEFDF
VR Bt KREBERAERE
BERMBRAXREBEMEBRA
Al ([XEEER ) #64.85%H # - IR
% {8268,000,000/8 7T - E:ZE R -F
Z—F A+ NEEK -RHER
EREBERBETBEAARRNMEEIES
BB AR MAKETHERKREHE
B PHEE (A o

THBGENEE BHERREAREE

carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the date of FBEREE:
disposal:
HK$'000
FE T
Net assets disposed of: FFHEREE "
Interest in an associate (Note 20) R— A E Qe (W iz20) 422,141
Non-controlling interests IR ER (149,497)
272,644
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—fEMBRRAEE (4,644)
Total consideration satisfied by cash BRENRSER 268,000
Net cash flow on disposal of a subsidiary HE-EBLARANKRSRFE
Cash consideration ReRE 268,000
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents RERBEESEBYRANTE 268,000
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 38. Bik#EsHE

On 22 May 2012, with approval by the shareholders, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for a period of ten years to replace the share option scheme
approved on 20 November 2002 that would otherwise
expire on 20 November 2012. Under the Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries and any other persons including consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The purpose of the Scheme
is to provide participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to encourage the
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and other share option scheme of the Company is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time, without prior approval
from the Company's shareholders. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company or any of their respective associates in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be subject to
prior approval by the Company's shareholders.

Under the Scheme, an amount of HK$1 is payable on the
grant of an option. Options may be exercised no later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share option.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant and the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

No share options under the Scheme were granted/exercised
for both years nor outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.

RZT——FRAZ+—BREBRRIE
NA TR AR AR AERT B (5T 81)) -
UREBERZETE-F+—AZTHEZ
BRETE (AR =2 ——F+—A=+H
[Em) o IREZAE - RARESE AR
BRETEERES (RREAARRENE
RAZES) REMEMA LT (BIEER -
BEACREA-BF - -#HEFSE) UR
BANBIRG - Ztdl g Em2EERE
BEUBEDMARTMRARER  WEBHE
HBEARSAAARERMEEMELS
71 AR AR B RRRA R -

REARRBRRELIAE - BREBEZFEI R
AR BE (AT EL A B AR R 804 B M R 7T
& Z BT S R 2 Iy &% TS BB A
RAETE B BTN AEZ10% - REXR
NARERE LI - NERT+ZEA BE
BT 68 %At 813 2 P B s AU T 7 B 2%
TFEABEAZBROEETSEBRAR
ERETRNEBZ1% HMEFARAEE
BREBIFATEETRRES B Z2EM
BB AL ZBRERMS R 2B 8B BB
ARARBETRM 201% BREERB
50000008 7T » RIBBREARBRRIELH
JE o

RigZATE - BRESOBRIEAN BT -
FERHE R 8RB AR B I+ RTTE
TEERARTERTEE  ATNERAR
ARONEL A2 KT ERRONER
RHAHpAEEEA 2 PR ERE
hZESE -

RZEZ—FRZIEZEF+ZA=+—
B W EFE I ER B Z A ERE 1TEE
B MEZZ A NEZT B TS
ARAE AR THE o
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39. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 39. B&REXRME
(@) cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@ RERRESEYWEE:

2020

—E-FF

HK$'000
TAET

Cash available on demand RERTARS
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRESZEBY 1,185,994 848,130
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMETHELENEBZHER:

financing activities:

Interest- Lease
bearing liahilities
borrowings (Note 36) Total
HESRE
FTEER (Kist36) EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAT
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F5—-f—H - 32,103 32,103
Changes from cash flows: Renggl
Repayment during the year FRER = (17,662) (17,662)
Interest paid B E (4,030) = (4,030)
Total changes from financing cash flows.  EBER&REL (L 8% (4,030) (17,662) (21,692)
Other changes: Hi#
New lease capitalised MHEERL = 47 47
Interest expenses FIEFY 4,030 1,781 5,811
Exchange realignment B A = (332) (332)
Total other changes Hi &b @zt 4,030 1,496 5,526
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—%
+-A=1-H = 15,937 15,937
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39. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT  39.

HE—T-

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities: (continued)

Interest-
bearing
borrowings

it RAER
HK$'000
TAT

RERERWE @

(b) REFBHELENEBEZHER:

(&)

Lease
liabilities
(Note 36)

HK$ 00
TAL

Redeemable
and
exchangeable
preferred
share

(Note 32)
AEE R

H K$ 000
THET

HK$'000
A7

At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF-H—H 295,725 65,184 152,822 513,731
Changes from cash flows: RemaEg:
Repayment during the year ENEX (294,750) (27,115) - (321,865)
Interest paid BERFE (14,581) (3,300 = (17,881)
Total changes from financing BEREREE

cash flows: Hak R (309,331) (30,415) - (339,74)
Other changes: Htb 21
New lease capitalised HHEEERL - 916 = 916
Interest expenses MERY 14,581 3,300 - 17,881
Lease modification HEEBT - (1,181) - (1,181)
Lease termination HEXR - (6,035) - (6,035)
Settlement HE - - (152,822) (152,822
Exchange realignment [E H iR (975) 334 - (641)
Total other changes Hib 8@zt 13,606 (2,666) (152,822) (141,882)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF

+-R=+-H S 32,103 = 32,103
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of the Company’s directors and other
member of key management during the year was as follows:

40.

BBE X5
BRRGAMBHRREMEBOMKESIN - K
SENANFENEBBTETZRXZMT

FTEEBABZHME
REERN FRARAEFRAMERZEREA
BZBEmT :

2021 {020]

—E-—F —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Short term employee benefits REREBET 11,288 12,766
Post-employment benefits B EERA 41 76
11,329 12,842

The remuneration of the Company’s directors and
other member of key management is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

Further details of the emoluments of the Company’s
directors are included in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Transactions with other related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

ARREERHEMTIBZERASZHESH
FNEZBE2ZEARRETHBE(EL

LA, 2

ag =\[ o
AR

ARBEEMENE - THBHNERAM
TSR o

BEHMBERLTNXS
HEEABITEITIR ST

Management fee paid to a company
owned by a substantial shareholder of
the Company

Consultancy fee paid to a company
of which a director of the Group'’s
subsidiary is a controlling shareholder

Consultancy fee paid to a director of a
subsidiary of the Group

BENRARIERE

IR

EFMERE

EXNTF—R2AKEHRBL
EEREZERBRODEN

EXNTFAEE-HHRBL

EXNFARB-—RETERR

1,828 1,084

=
604 1,560

=
- 1,000
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 4. BBEREERERBEE
AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments mainly include financial AEBEZEMIAFZERERAABEA
assets at FVTPL, derivative financial instruments, financial BasWBEE -TE2MIAE ROk
assets at FVOCI, financial assets at amortised cost, loan Bt A2 EB M B EE  REE
receivables, reverse repurchase agreements, trade and other KAGECHHKEE BWER - RAME
receivables, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, Bz E5 REMEKKIE - FHRT
trade and other payables, repurchase agreement, lease GRCRITEHRERS BHREMER
liabilities and long-term liabilities. The accounting policies FIE - BERE HEEERRHEE-©
for financial instruments have been applied to the line items BT EAMEHECREEANUATIERH -
below.
Financial
assets at fair
Financial value through Financial
assets at fair other assets at
value through comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost
BARETA REBHEHA
BAAERA  HttZEKA B2
BRZUBEE ZHBEE HBHREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TR THET THET
At 31 December 2021 RZE--¥+ZF=+-H
Financial assets BBEEE
Financial assets at fair value through %A A B ABRZ
profit or loss NHEE 926,953 - - 926,953
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMIA 22,295 - - 22,295
Financial assets at fair value through &2 % EEF ARt 2 E YA
other comprehensive income LIBEE - 942,975 - 942,975
Loan receivables EWRER - - 173,174 173,174
Trade and other receivables ZHREMERTE - - 318,539 318,539
Fixed bank deposits EHRITER - - 551,457 551,457
Bank balances and cash RITGEHERS = = 1,185,994 1,185,994
Total @t 949,248 942975 2229164 4,121,387
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BIRREEEERBEE®)
AND POLICIES (continuead)

Financial
liabilities
at fair value Financial
through liabilities at
profit amortised
or loss cost
BARE 25 85 B A
STABZEZ FHEN
b 3=R i b =R f@gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER TER
At 31 December 2021 R-B--F
t=HR=+-H
Financial liabilities B%aE
Trade and other payables 25 REAMERNRIEA - 266,546 266,546
Lease liabilities HEA®RE - 15,937 15,937
Long-term liabilities REEBE - 47,967 47,967
Total Mt = 330,450 330,450

258  Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MBRREEBERBEK#)

Financial
assets at fair
Financial  value through Financial
assets at fair other assets at
value through  comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost
RE KR
‘ FEZ
wl HRE LI AE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET THET
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ-EE£+-A=1-H
Financial assets MHEE
Financial assets at fair value through %A A B ABRZ
profit or loss NHEE 1,016,736 - - 1,016,736
Derivative financial instruments fTESmMIA 19,529 - - 19,529
Financial assets at fair value through &2 % B A A2 E WA
other comprehensive income JHBEEE - 1,026,883 - 1,026,883
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ IREIM A E 2 R EE - - 153,996 153,996
Loan receivables ERER - - 457816 457,816
Reverse repurchase agreements REEE Gz - - 217,641 217,641
Trade and other receivables 25 R EmEKFE - - 569,396 569,396
Fixed bank deposits THRTER - - 1,194,299 1,194,299
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRR R - - 848,130 848,130
Total @t 1,036,265 1,026,883 3,441,278 5,504,426
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BIRREEEERBEE®)
AND POLICIES (continuead)

Financial
liabilities
at fair value Financial
through liabilities at
profit amortised

or loss cost

BARE R SH AR

FTABZZ ATEH
B aE BBasE B
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHAL

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF

tT=ZA=+-—-H
Financial liabilities B%aE
Derivative financial instruments TEemTH 19,521 - 19,521
Trade and other payables B MEMENRIA - 1,161,879 1,161,879
Repurchase agreements [E] B 1h % = 239,479 239,479
Lease liabilities HERE - 32,103 32,103
Long-term liabilities REEE - 468 468
Total Mt 19,521 1,433,929 1,453,450
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments rEFEemTAMEECEEZRAR AT X
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk, [E g - SNE RS - BRAERER - EERRE
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not have any ErnBEeRk REREREFARE
written risk management policies and guidelines except SREMBWREBEHRBASEERRIN  NE
for monitoring the credit risk on loan receivables and trade E A 2 AR E B kIR -
and other receivables. However, the management generally R BEE M ERKREERIURT
adopts conservative strategies on its risk management and TRBS - S AN 58 B P IR 2 BB R I AE &
limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum. The BAXAE - BEERTAAZER LEE
management reviews and agrees policies for managing each [Bfg 2 ARG - SRR SET -

of these risks and they are summarised below.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s loan receivables,
reverse repurchase agreements, repurchase agreements and
bank balances. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points (2020: 100 basis points) higher or lower while
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s net loss
for the year would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$4,043,000 (2020: HK$8,579,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for all financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points (2020: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next annual reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2020.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk
because the exposure at the end of each reporting period
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, PRC, Liechtenstein
and Australia with majority of business transactions being
denominated in HKS$, US$, RMB, EURO, CHF and AUS.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities and therefore,
exposed to foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of
those financial assets and liabilities are analysed as follows:

41.

MBEREREBERBE A

A 2= ELER
AEBRNEXESEHMAZE T HRREE
HAKBEEWRER RADEHZE LB
W LIRTTRESAR - ARBYEERIT
EERT AL RREE -

PR HA AR - fiw R 3 F 3k T PR 10018 &
(T _ZTF 100EER) mMEMATE
BEHERBTE AEEFERIBFES
B S N 494,043,000 7T (B -4 ¢
8,579,000/ 7T) °

ERBRESWT 2 EETIBRRFEEHRN
BRERREL YD BREHERANZA
FEZAMESBRTA®Y 2 MERER - &

MO A100EEE (ZF =T F : 100fAE
Bh) 15 @F&ﬁﬂfﬁﬁiT FERE
HRAR 2 A A B cZEZETF
Z M IR R LT
AEFBERERS BREREHRZE
Bl NREAFE 2 R BRE DT
TREEEFERBE o

SN [ B
REFBFEREL PEH - -ITHTER
BMEERBOEBRS  ZFEXHHU
BT ET > AR BUT - WA RIR

JCRTE

AEEETHHREERMBRETIASE
EEREER NN ZEEFE  AfE
RINERR ZEMBEERBBEZERA
BT :
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continuead)

M. BBERBEEBERBEK#)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) ShEE R B ()
Sensitivity analysis BREDN

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s net loss before taxation and equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to

THRIIERBE AR A BARR 2 E i
AU A BB - AEERHAEEA
Rt 2 B2 -

262

which the Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period.

2021 2020

—E--F e S 23
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss before (decrease) loss before
in foreign taxation and in foreign taxation and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rates losses rates losses
ExEm/  HREMGER RN,/ HHRENBEK
(M) BiAFBEz¥E (RP) ZRFBREzZYE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
RMB AR 5 67,304 5 73,695
(5) (67,304) () (73,695)
EURO BT 5 3,666 5 31,205
(5) (3,666) (5) (31,205)
AUS BT 5 903 5 1,638
(5) (903) (5) (1,638)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied to each
of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial

instruments in existence at the date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’'s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the end of the next reporting period. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would not be
materially affected by any changes in movement in value of
the United States dollar against other currencies. Results of
the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2020.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency
risk because the exposure at the end of each reporting period
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed equity. The sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market
prices of the equity securities had been 10% (2020: 10%)
higher or lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit before taxation would increase or decrease
by approximately HK$91,071,000 (2020: HK$90,701,000) as a
result of changes in fair value of investments.

41.

MBEREREBERBE A

ShEE ELBR ()
@@Fﬁﬁﬁ@
MESHHEREHEXRBEET —E2
ﬁ#”ﬁi%ﬁWWAET%QEM%ﬁ
RUME  CBRRETEERYEMER
B (Efr] S B T & B T B SR ST A B B [ K
HEELBATE - ERMADTHRIE
ﬁzﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%%%ﬁ%%$
BB S A R RS HRE
ﬁE“Rﬁ%%E%ha%%%QOF:
T _RFE AN HRARELEE

AEEERERA  HRWE R AR
WRRBRAEEZ BB - HEEE DT
REEGIMERR «

BB R
AEEZBRAEEERDREEE TR
AN o GUBEE DT TYER AN 2 B A (B

EBREE °

RBEBRR WRAZBSH 2 MHRE L
FH T FE10% (ZZ Z 24 : 10%) M A
FiBEgSHSTE  NEEZKRT AR T
HERE 2R EZB TGN DL
91,071,0007% 7T (ZZF = 4 : 90,701,000
JT) e
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the reasonably possible changes in the stock prices had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to equity price risk in existence
at that date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
investments of the Group would change in accordance with
the market price and that all other variables remain constant.
The stated changes represent management's assessment of
reasonably possible changes in the relevant market price over
the period until the end of the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk
because the exposure at the end of each reporting period
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, fixed bank deposits,
bank balances and cash. The carrying amounts of these
balances substantially represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period.

Credit quality analysis for provision of financing
services

The Group regards a loan receivable as impaired if there
is objective evidence that a loss event has occurred since
initial recognition and the loss event has an impact on future
estimated cash flows from the asset.

A loan receivable that has been renegotiated due to a
deterioration in the borrower’s credit/financial condition is
usually considered to be impaired unless there is evidence
that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BBREREEEERBR @)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality analysis for provision of financing
services (Continued)

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
The Group provides financing services only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
these borrowers are subject to credit verification procedures.

Loan receivables that are past due but not impaired are those
for which principal payments are past due but the Group
believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of
the level of security or collateral available and/or the stage of
collection owed to the Group, if any.

Credit quality for business other than provision of
financing services

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures.

The Group performs credit evaluations on accounts receivable
from all clients, including cash and margin clients. Accounts
receivable from cash client are due within the settlement date
commonly adopted by the relevant market convention, which
is usually a few days from trade date. Because of the short
settlement period involved, credit risk arising from accounts
receivable due from cash clients is considered as low. The
Group normally obtains liquid securities as collaterals from
margin clients of its financial brokerage business.

The Group normally enters into transactions with brokers and
clearing houses which are registered with regulatory bodies
and with sound reputation in the industry.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited in
financial institutions, which are leading and reputable and are
assessed as having low credit risk. The Group has not suffered
any significant losses arising from the non-performance by
these parties in the past and management does not expect
this position to change in the future.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continuea)

Exposure to credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each client, customer and
borrower. The default risk of the industry in which clients,
customers and borrowers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as 86%
(2020: 70%) and 54% (2020: 23%) of the total loan receivables
and trade and accounts receivable respectively, which were
due from the Group’s three (2020: five) largest borrowers and
five (2020: five) largest customers.

The Group does not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group to material credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the
consolidated financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represented the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk without taken into account the value of any collateral
obtained.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility principally through
bank and other borrowings. The Group closely monitors
its exposure to liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position
report on a daily basis and analysing the efficiency of fund
management.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 41. BXRREEEERBEE®)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER®)

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial REBRFEHRIZEORINBENRETE
liabilities at the end of the reporting period, based on EFTEM ARG BB R - ANEBRR
contractual undiscounted payments. The Group's financial EHARZBRTANIBATECTKEE
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the Bt

remaining contractual maturities, are summarised below:

Total Within More than More than

contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than  hut less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

CHER 18R 1F0E 2L
REE RRSRAE REX {825 LA R SFLLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER T B AL T TER

At 31December 2021 W=-E=-£

+=A=t-A
Trade and other payables & 5 REMERZE 266,546 266,546 266,546 - - -
Lease liability HEARE 15,937 16,938 12,821 830 2,598 689
282,483 283,484 279,367 830 2,598 689
At 31December 2020 R-Z=%
t-RA=+-R
Trade and other payables &5 RE i fE( 58 1,161,879 1,161,879 1,161879 = = =
Repurchase agreements BB {73 239479 239479 239479 - - -
Lease liability HEaR 32,103 35,319 18,098 12,394 3,160 1,667
1,433,461 1,436,677 1,419,456 12,394 3,160 1,667
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The following presents the assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value or required to disclose their fair value
in these financial statements on a recurring basis at the end
of the reporting period across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value measurement categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement. The levels of inputs are defined as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level). quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Management believes that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation techniques are reasonable, and that they
were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation technigues(s) and
inputs used):
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 42.

DAEFE
INTARAREFEXFTEEERZE
BRARBERAABZEERARBRR
HRREEVBRELANEIREIAE
EMREZAABE=ZEFRLEY WA
B ERREEERBABBHEGES
BERFERERI B -IAE2BAZR
LIRS

p=1U3

258

.

>

PO OF S8

|
=

e FM(REFER  AKERFER
ARGHERAEEXRETIETSZ
HE CRERE)

o F2CKRERRFEZEBEN Y
REESABEZBABIBATEER
RZERBEME &

e FEIMM(ZEZFR -HREEXERF
ZBABUBRT N ATERRER -

EREERRAGERMEENMEFAAE
TEBAE UAREHRZZEEEE-
TERREHFHREEZEVBEERMBA
ERREZER (LERAERZMETE
REABIE)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—HItFE

RREEZRERDT / 2021FEHRE

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 42. AREFTE#E)
Financial assets and Fair values as at Fair value Valuation technique(s)
financial liabilities 31 December 2021 hierarchy or significant input(s)
R-B--£+t-R=t-H

BREERMBER ZARE AREER (AERRIEZBAHE

Unlisted equity securities classified HK$942,975,000 Level 2 Market approach
as financial assets at FVOCI (Note 23) — Guideline Public

Company Method

PERELRBEFAEMZERAL 942,975,0003% 7T E2R Ti5E — B3I ARAANE
BHREENF LTRAES (#i223)

Equity securities listed in and outside Hong Kong held  HK$788,745,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices
for trading classified as financial assets at FVTPL (Note 22)

PERRARBIABRNHKEENREEE 7887450008 T EAF iz EAE
W EBREAIN LT RAE S (H5222)

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong not held for HK$67,544,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices
trading classified as financial assets at FVTPL (Note 22)

PERELAEFABRNIBEERY 67,544,0007% 7T E11R iz BAE
FREEENREE LTNREES (Hiz22)

Equity securities listed overseas not held for trading ~ HK$54,419,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (Note 22)

DEARA R BT ABRNEEEERY 54,419,0007% 7T F11 iz EAR
FREBENNEN LTHOREES (H#22)

Unlisted equity securities not held for trading HK$16,245,000 Level 3 Net asset value
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (Note 22)

PEARA LB ABRNEEERY 16,245,0003% T £3R BEFE
FRHEEENFE LTRASE S (Hit22)

Fixed coupon notes HK$22,295,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices

(Note 30)
EERE 22,295,000/ 7T R iz EAE
(H1330)
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 42.

Fair values as at
31 December 2020

Financial assets and
financial liabilities

R-B-BF+-A=+-A
ZARE

MBEERMBAR

Unlisted equity securities classified as financial HK$1,026,883,000

assets at FVOCI (Note 23)
PERELRBEFAEMEERAL 1,026,883,0007 7,

HBEERNFLTREES (H#23)
Equity securities listed in and outside HK$819,708,000

Hong Kong held for trading classified (Note 22)

as financial assets at FVTPL
PERELARBEFANBENIBEENFEEER 819,708,000 7T,

WREBREAIN TR RAE S (H#22)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong HK$52,920,000

not held for trading classified (Note 22)

as financial assets at FVTPL
PEREDABEFABRRNIBEERL 52,920,000 7T

FRBEEENREE LTNREES (H#22)
Equity securities listed overseas HK$34,383,000

not held for trading classified (Note 22)

as financial assets at FVTPL
PEREDABFABRRNIBEERL 34,383,000 7T

FREEENREIN LTNREES (H#22)

Equity securities listed overseas not held for trading ~ HK$14,701,000

classified as financial assets at FVTPL (Note 22)
PERRAREHABENMEEERYT 14,701,0003% 7T
FHEEENNEI L TMRAES (Hz22)
Unlisted equity securities not held for HK$95,024,000
trading classified as financial assets (Note 22)
at FVTPL
PEARAREHABENMBEEERYT 95,024,0007% 7T
FERHEEERNFE LMRAE S (H22)

Assets: HK$19,529,000
Liabilities: HK$19,521,000
(Note 30)

Forward exchange contracts classified
as financial assets and financial
ligbilities at FVTPL

SBEBRDAEFABENTBEER B E 19,529,000 ¢
HEEENREINESD A& 1 19,521,0008% 7T

(H1i£30)
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Fair value Valuation technique(s)

hierarchy or significant input(s)

AAEER HERNREZRAEE

Level 2 Market approach —
Guideline Public Company
Method

2 A — B3 DRRAE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices

F1 iz EAE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices

F1 iz EAE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices

F1 iR EAE

Level 2 Market approach — Index
Return Method

EYL M5k — BB ERE

Level 3 Net asset value

E3R BEFE

Level 2 Forward exchange rate

EYL RHER
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 42. RREFTE#E
Fair value hierarchy AREER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRINTERIAN AR EFESER

hierarchy of the financial instruments:

Fair value measurement using
FRAAEE

Quoted
bid price Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HEERT 5 EATEE EAFTTEZE
FrzEAE BAYE BARE

F1R E28f E3R EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TAT FRET
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAESABRNHBEE
Equity securities listed in and REBERS LT
outside Hong Kong MR AES
— held for trading —HIEEE 788,745 - - 788,745
Equity securities listed A LTRAES
in Hong Kong
— not held for trading — UHBEEE 67,544 = - 67,544
Equity securities listed overseas BN ETREES
—not held for trading —BHHEEE 54,419 S - 54,419
Unlisted equity securities FLEMBAES
—not held for trading —WHHEEE = - 16,245 16,245
Fixed coupon notes TEER 22,295 - - 22,295
Financial assets at FVOCI BARBEFAHME2ZERA
WEBEE
Unlisted equity securities FLTRAES = 942,975 = 942,975
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2020
Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL

R=B=-%F+=A=t-H
BE
BAREFARENABRE

42.

Quoted

bid price

in active
markets

Level 1
EEET S
iz EANE
F18
HK$'000
FHEL

A

SREFTE @)
DIREEFR®E)

Fair value measurement using
FRARERE

Significant
observable
inputs
Level 2
EAABR SATAIEE
EYN- ¢ BAHE
F2R F3
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Level 3

HK$'000
TET

Equity securities listed in and REBERI LT
outsice Hong Kong MR ARES
— held for trading —BEBE 819,708 - - 819,708
Equity securities listed BA L MRAES
in Hong Kong
—not held for trading —UHHEEE 52,920 - - 92920
Equity securities listed overseas B ETRAES
— ot held for trading —UHHEEE 34,383 14,701 - 49,084
Unlisted equity securities FLMRAES
—not held for trading —YIHEEE - - 95,024 95,024
Forward exchange contracts BENEAD - 19,529 - 19,529
Financial assets at FVOCI BEAAEGAHMEZEKA
WHBEE
Unlisted equity securities ELEMRAES - 1,026,883 - 1,026,883
Liabilities =15
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRAREGABRNHEEE
Forward exchange contracts EHINERH - (19,521) - (19,521)
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was a
transfer of fair value measurements from Level 2 to Level
1 for equity securities listed overseas not held for trading
classified as financial assets at FVTPL of HK$9,928,000 (2020:
HKS$NIl). The transfer out of Level 2 into Level 1 recurring fair
value measurement during the year was due to the listed
equity securities whose trading on the Australian Stock
Exchange had been in suspension in the prior year and has
resumed trading during the year. There were no transfers into
and out of Level 3 fair value measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

Fair value measurement of unlisted equity securities-not held
for trading

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the unlisted equity
security is HK$16,245,000 (2020: HK$95,024,000) and a fair
value loss on financial instrument of HK$89,437,000 (2020:
gain of HK$14,454,000) is recognised in profit and loss during
the year.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan receivables, trade
and other receivables, fixed bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, and amount due to an
associate that are carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair value as at the end of reporting
period.
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HE—T—
43,

44.

—FTZA=+T—HIEFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividends to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts. The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
shareholders (comprising issued share capital and reserves).
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, which are engaged in the
brokerage of securities and commaodities and related services,
are entities regulated by the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and subject to the respective minimum capital requirements.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure to be
maintained, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of these subsidiaries. The minimum capital
requirements for these subsidiaries were complied with
during the year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following capital expenditure commitments:

43.

44.
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Contracted but not provided for, net of
deposit paid

BERINEREE  HKRENRE

56,649 66,962
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45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45. KEMBKEERMKAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of financial instruments TRIEATEE  AIRTZAFREER
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements B GENSR T ARS -

and similar agreements.

Financial assets subject to offsetting
THEERBEE
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
{IEE] assets Related amounts not offset
liabilities presented in the consolidated statement
Gross  offset in the in the of financial position
amount of  consolidated consolidated GERGAUBRRREH 2 EBEE
recognised  statement  statement Cash Securities
financial  of financial of financial collateral collateral Net

EN position position received received amount
REAERE
RAREHz  REAHH
BRR  BRAME HRR2IZ ghRe ELEES
HBEEEE AEEE UBEERE gk gt} et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERL TR B TR T TERL

At 31 December 2021 R-Bz-%
+ZB=1+-H
Type of financial assets HBEERY
Accounts receivable due from EURFREPER
margin clients 275,282 (940) 274,342 = (154,432) 119,910
Accounts receivable due from HKSCC ENERREERR 36,488 (14,798) 21,690 - - 21,690
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-2F
+ZA=t-H
Type of financial assets HBAERR
Accounts receivable due from RURAREPER
margin clients 207,185 (6,782) 200,403 = (81,059) 119,344
Accounts receivable due from HKSCC EUABEERR 71,144 (70,307) 837 - - 837
Reverse repurchase agreements RAEEHZ 217 641 - 217,641 = 17.641) =
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45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45. BEMBEERVBER @
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial assets subject to offsetting
THEERBEE
Gross
amount of  Net amount

recognised  of financial

financial assets Related amounts not offset
liabilities presented in the consolidated statement
Gross  offset in the in the of financial position
amount of  consolidated consolidated GERGAUBRRREH 2 AHEE
recognised  statement  statement Cash Securities
financial  of financial  of financial collateral collateral Net
assets position position received received amount
RERHE
RRZEHZ  REEEE
BRR  BRIME HRR2IZ ghRe ELEES
HBEELE BEEE UBEERE gk gt} et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERL TiERL TBTL T T TR

At 31 December 2021 R-Bz-%
+ZB=1+-H
Type of financial liabilities BhaRER
Accounts payable due to margin clients  ERABREEHR 10921 (940) 9,981 - - 9,981
Accounts payable due to HKSCC EREEREEER 18,854 (14,798) 4,056 - = 4,056
At 31 December 2020 R-2-%2F
+ZA=1+-H
Type of financial iabilities BBaEEE
Accounts payable due to margin clients  ERHFREEEH 23,530 (6,782) 16,748 - - 16,748
Accounts payable due to HKSCC ERERLEER 118,215 (70,307) 47908 = = 47908
Repurchase agreements EEHE 239479 - 239479 (239.479) = S
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46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

As at 31 December 2021, other than the disclosure
in below paragraph, the Group does not provide any
guarantees to any other parties.

The Group previously entered into agreements to
provide certain parent guarantees for bank loan facilities
granted to AYD Group Limited and its wholly owned
subsidiaries for their working capital requirements. As
at 31 December 2021, the maximum aggregate amount
of the guarantees was RMB7,430,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,094,000) which were fully utilised. A guarantee fee
will be charged at 1.5% per annum of the drawdown
amount.

47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures in the consolidated financial
statements have been re-presented to conform with current
year presentation.

48.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS

(@)

(b)

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors of the Company that were
entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
After consideration, the management is of the opinion
that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. KRN FBBEMR R R
COMPANY
2020
—ETF
HK$'000
FHE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries YNGR 3,636,836 3,946,227
Financial assets at fair value through RAREFAEMEEKA
other comprehensive income BB 75 & 942,975 1,026,883
Other receivables H b B W 5K I8 5,000 5,000
4,584,811 4,978,110
current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b e U 5kI8 1,367 1,698
Fixed bank deposits R1TE B X 423,507 =
Bank balances and cash RTEHRMRS 105,729 401,932
530,603 403,630
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b3R8 (2,805) (8,411)
Net current assets FEREBEE 527,798 395,219
NET ASSETS FEE 5,112,609 5,373,329
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital A& A 6,142,962 6,142,962
Reserves (Note) & (B az) (1,030,353) (769,633)
TOTAL EQUITY R 5,112,609 5,373,329

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 30 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Han Ruixia
BREE
Director
EZE

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2021
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COMPANY (Continued)
Note:

Movements of reserves of the Company

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

49. RRFEBARRRE (42)
Hat
RABREE
Retained
profits/

(accumulated
losses)

Fvocl
reserve
BAAERA
Ht2EHRA
Ay EER A
HK$'000 HK$'000

AL THET

Treasury
shares

REUR/
(RitEE)
HK$'000
T

Total
reserves

HK$'000
TR

At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZE£-F-H 169,701 (1,102) 260,307 428,906
Loss for the year FREE - - (1,476,121) (1,476,121)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREH2EKWA
Item that will not be reclassified HEEBTEEMHEZ
subsequently to profit or loss w2z EH
Changes in fair value of equity BaTARANETAEM
instruments at FVOCI 2ARAZARELEE 277,582 - - 277,582
Total other comprehensive income Hin2ERAGE 277,582 - - 277,582
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERARE 277,582 - (1,476,121) (1,198,539)
Cancellation of repurchased shares FEEEER D - 1,102 (1,102) -
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R=-Z=Z&+=-A=+-H
k=—Z2--%-8-H 447,283 - (1,216,916) (769,633)
Loss for the year FRE#R = S (176,812) (176,812)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREH2EKWA
Item that will not be reclassified REEBTEENMHEZ
subsequently to profit or loss Bw B
Changes in fair value of equity BaTARANETAEM
instruments at FVOCI FERAZAREED (83,908) = = (83,908)
Total other comprehensive income Hio2ERAGE (83,908) S = (83,908)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2ARAGE (83,908) = (176,812) (260,720)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-_-E+-A=+—-AH 363,375 - (1,393,728) (1,030,353)
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBEENEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AT AKREBEMNBEREMINEE 2 28 HEE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited REEHE  HiaKBEREA BRI LE
consolidated financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is E&E# 78 -

set out below.

RESULTS £

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--f ZR2CRF ZENF ZE-N\F ZELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FEL FHET BT FHEL
Revenue 3 604,426 528,955 1,651,972 3,506,994 2,900,438
(Loss)/profit before taxation B BiAT (B518) /% F (736,394) (187,122) (1,200,927) 207,010 87,401
Income tax (expense)/credit  FrE# (Fisz) /H % (2) (2,735) 28,730 (30,998) (60,931)
(Loss)/profit for the year  F & (#518) /&F (736,396) (189,857)  (1,172,197) 176,012 26,470
Non-controlling interests R 2,773 49,146 22,341 (85,828) (79,630)
(Loss)/profit for the ERREREREEA
year attributable to EiEER
equity holders of the (8 &7
Company (733,623) (140,711) (1,149,856) 90,184 (53,160)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-—-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-_-f Z—Z-TF —T-hEF ZE-N\F ZZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx AT FBT FTHET FHEL
Total assets BEE 4,806,748 6,926,057 7,791,129 11,376,554 7,793,748
Total liabilities BER (392,572) (1,525,175) (2,521,447) (4,574,922) (1,300,905)
Net assets FEE 4,414,176 5,400,882 5,269,682 6,801,632 6,492,843

Equity attributable to equity AR A El#EREIEE A

holders of the Company FEL 4,364,787 5,189,564 5,001,689 6,161,419 6,070,763
Non-controlling interests el g g 49,389 211,318 267,993 640,213 422,080
Total equity B 4,414,176 5,400,882 5,269,682 6,801,632 6,492,843
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